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SAN DIEGO. CALIFORNIA., WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 21, 1984, 9:38 A.M.

--00000~-

THE CCURT: Mr. Negus.

DAVID C. STOCKWELL,
called as a witness on behalf of the People, having been

previously duly sworn, testified as folloed:

CROSS EXAMINATION (Resumed)
BY MR. NEGUS:

Q. Mr. Stockwell, returning for a minute to the
hallway, you -- yesterday you couldn't quite remember where --
exactly where the -—- the UU-7 was; is that right?

A, Yes. I couldn't remember in relation to which was
Joshua's room and which was Jessica's room.

Q. In fact, this particular diagram, the -- let's see,
put an orange "A”" next to one wall and an orange "B"™ next to
another wall so we can discuss them --

In fact, in the actual layout of the house the wall
that I have labeled "A" is in fact considerably shorter than the
wall that I have labeled "B"; is that right?

A. I don't recall right now if it is or not.

Q. Well, do you recall that between the two walls that
we have there that I've labeled "A" and "B", that in fact the
UU~-7 was taken from the shorter of the two walls?

A, It may have been.

Q. Did you so testimony at the preliminary hearing?
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A. I don't recall.

Q. At the preliminary hearing was your recollection
better than it is now?

A, It is could have been, yes.

Q. And were you trying to be accurate at that point in
time?

A, Yes.,

Q. Showing you Exhibit 503, do you recognize that
exhibit as a Xerox of an outline of the Ryen hbme with various
numbers and letters filled in by yourself?

A. Yes.

Q. And the letters and numbers in orange are your
indications that at that point in time of the locations of the
various different stains in the UU series that you picked up; is
that tighf?

A. The cones in orange, yes.

Q. And so the No. 7 would be at that point in time of

your remembrance of where UU-7 was, right?

A. Yes.
Q. And the -- apparently the outline of this
particular -- appears to be that in that -- in this one the wall

which we've labeled as "A" appears to be considerably shorter
than the wall th;t we labeled as"B' in the smaller diagram; is
that right?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, the stain that you had labeled there as 8,
that stain was sort of -- didn't look like -- didn't look to be

blood, right, is that's correct?
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A, It's listed only as material collected from the

hallﬁay wall.
Q. What is, at least as far as you could tell with

your naked eye, 7 appeared to be a bloodstain, right?

A, Yes.
Q. Now was No. 7, was that discovered fairly low down
on the -- on the -- on the wall?
| A, Yes.,
Q. In your -- and you wouldn't -- would you consider

four—-and-a-half or five feet above the ground to be fairly low
down?

A, It's easily accessible, yes.

Q. But if -- well, would you -- was there -- was the

particular drop, UU-7, four—-and-a—~half to five feet off the

ground?
A. It was no higher than that.
Q. Was it considerably lower?
A, I really don't recall how low it was. All I recall

is that it was five feet or below because it was easily
accessible.
MR. NEGUS: I'd like to read, your Honor, from the
preliminary hearing transcript Page 37 Lines 15 through --
MR. ROCHIS: I need a volume first,

MR. NEGUS: Volume XX, Page 37, Lines 15 through 38 Line
THE COURT: Just a moment.

MR, KOCHIS: I have that.

THE COURT: Go ahead.
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MR. NEGUS: "Question:" To Mr. Stockwell:
"What was the form of UU-72 What pattern was it
was it a drop, smear?

"Answer: I don't recall offhand.

"Question: It was located in the hall near Josh's
bedroom?

"Answer: Yes.

"Question: Had you seen that on the night of June
the 5th?

"Answer: Not to my recollection.

"Question: Do you remember whether it was up,
down, where it was, whether it was high low or where on
the wallz?

"Answer: It was fairly low on the wall.

®"Question: Did it appear to be total five feet or
was it something less?

*Answer: It was not of a five feet impression.

"Question: UU-8 was on the same Qall?

'Answer:- No.

"Question: Well, what wall was it on?

"Answer: A-7 was on a fairly small wall A-8. It's
on the wall connecting to that small wall.

*"Question: Okay. You said A-7 and A-8?

"Answer: Oh, I'm sorry UU-7 and UU-8.".

Q. Was in fact the stain, UU-8, about shouldet height?
A. As I recall it was higher than that.
Q. How much higher?

A, It was above my head, and I stand approximately
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five foot eleven.

Q. The -- did you -- did you prepare a lengthy summary
of all the -- all the items of evidence that had been logged
into the crime lab as of June 6th, 1984, together with a
description of the various tests that had been performed on

those items?

A. Yes.
Q. Do you have that with you?
A. Yes.

Q. Could you -- could you look at a-36.

The description that you have in that A-36
indicates that that blood drop came from the shelves on the west
wall, right?

A. It states: "Scraped blood samples recovered from
shelves, west wall."

Q. Are you still sure that -- that you didn't take the
blood off the -- off the shelves?

A, I don't recall taking it exactly from the shelves
of that wall unit.

Q. But you don't recall where you took it from either;
is that right?

A. The blood that I recall collecting was either from
the dresser or the sliding door portion of that wall unit, as I
recall.

Q. When -- when you were -- when you were collecting
it, did you sort of like mark on the item of furniture itself,,
you know, with your initials, date and time and laboratory

number, the spots that you were removing the blood from?
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A. Excuse me. I'm not sure what items you're talking
about.
Q. A-36 -- Excuse me. I'm back to A-36 now.

A-36 at that point when you took that it off the
unit, wherever it was, did you sort of like make a little
notation on the unit that, you know, DCS, date and time,
laboratory'number?

A, No, I did not.

Q. Have you seen Mr. Ogino do that procedure?
A, I don't recall having seen Mr. Ogino do that, no.
Q. Is Mr. Ogino one of the people that you sort of

did, I don't know, ride-along, whatever you call it when you're
in your training, as far as going to crime scenes?

A. I recall going to one crime scene with Mr., Ogino
during my internship.

Q. Did that involve the collection of blood?

A. No.

Q. Showing you for a second a big photograph, 8 by 10
photograph,.Exhibit 205, and a smaller photograph, Exhibit 424,
does that -- do those photographs appear to depict the area, the
general area of the room from which you ~- from which you
collected item A-37?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. Now if you -- one's a little out of focus on -

the walls, but on the bigger one you can see that there's
numerous drops, smears, and other different types of blood
deposited on those walls. It also would appear from the little

photograph that there's some blood on the typewriter where you
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have the number, and then there's some blood around the corner,
there's blood on one wall on the sill, whole different areas of
blood in that particular thing.
Do you remember which one you happened to take the
blood from?
A, It was blood from the wall. I believe it was one

of the smears on that wall.

Q. You made —-—- Ms. Schechter made a note that it was
from the wall; is that right. I mean, is that how you know it's

from the wall?

A. ' I'm using the notes which states that it's a thread
sample, and I would have used thread samples on smears where
scraping action would not be sufficient.

Q. Well now, let's see. We may need another

photograph here.

There was also some -- some -- some smears on
the --

Well, can you distinguish between a smear on the
wall that you may have -- that you took the samples from, and a

smear on the molding? I mean, can you say that you didn't take
it from one of the smears on the molding, it was definitely
something on the wall?

A. No, I don't think I could say that.

Q. bkay. Showing you two other little photographs, if
I can put them up here, which would be Exhibit 274 and Exhibit
227, andlfirst off directing your attention to some -- some
smears above the door latch on the —— on the molding there.

Can you eliminate those as possible donors of A-37?2
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A. Yes.

Q. How about -—- the;e also appears to be a smear right
near the light switch on the wall there; can you eliminate that
as a possible donor of A-37?

A. Yes.

Q. So, then it would be basically one of the smears on
the molding down near Jessica on this little piece of wall that
is right on the border between the hallway and the -- and the
bedroom, or on one of the smears that appears around the corner
heading towards the filing cabinet; is that right?

A, Yes.

Q. As far as a criminalist is concerned, do smears and
drops of blocd deposited on walls have different evidentiary
significances?

A. They may have.

Q. Did the -- did the various smears and drops in that
particular area of the room, did they appear to you to have
different evidentiary significance when you were observing them
on the night of June the 5th?

A, Not to the extent where I had collected them
separately, no.

Q. Well, I understand that. But did they appear --
but leaving aside, whatever is in them, did they appear to you
to have different evidentiary significance?

A. They had significance in that they were deposited
in different manners.

Q. Showing you a small photograph, Exhibit 425, does

that appear to depict the -- the area from which you took the
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sample that was labeled by you as A-382?
A. Yes.
Q. And that sample was again from a smear?
A.  Yes.
Q. Do you know where on the smear it was from, whether

it was this big long one, the middle size one, or one of the
little ones? -

A. No, I don't recall.

Q. That door still exists, does it not, in the loft of

the identification division of our Sheriff's Department?

A. I don't know if it does or not.

Q. You haven't seen it up there?

A, Not personally, no.

Q. Have you made any attempt at all to go back and

review that part of the physical evidence in this case which has

been -- was -- you know, was carted away and put in that loft to

determine whether or not you can tell where you got the various

blood samples from?

A. I have not, no.

Q. This is approximately the third time that you‘'ve
been asked about that particular area; is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. Showing you photograph 422, again, small’
photograph, does that depict the area from which you got the
stain which has been labeled as No. A-39?

A. Yes.

Q. Was that stain -- was that a drop or a smear, or

something else?
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A. It was a smear.

Q. Okay. Was that from the -- from the doorway or
from the molding or do you know where?

A. I believe it was from the doorway.

Q. Okay, all right. It doesn't show too good in that
picture.

Well, do you remember whether it was from the main

pacrt of the door or the edge or particularly where?

A. I recall that it was on the door. I don't recall
if it was the edge or the large broad surface.

Q. Then in -- in this whole area of the room near
where Peggy and Jessica were found, from wherever it was on
the -- on the -- on the bedroom shelving thing there over to the

area where Chris was, did you collect any drops of blood from

the walls?
A, A-36, along the wall unit were drops.
Q. Leaving aside the -- After you got past A-36, any

of this area up in here?

A, Are you including “A" 40.

Q. We have -- A-40 is over by Chris, is it not? I'm
talking about the area near where Jessica was found, Peggqy was
found, from that wall unit over, all the way over to that?

A, In just that area, no. Everything I collected was
from smears.

Q. Showing you Exhibit --

By the way on the various smears that you
collected, can you say that it was just from one smear that you

collected it or did you get it from a variety? I mean, on each
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one like A-37, is that just one smear or is that more than one?

A. I don't recall, no.

Q. A-38?

A, Again, I don't recall.

Q. A-39?

A. A-39 would have been from one smear.

Q. The little No. 4 here indicates in photograph -- in
photograph 423, that indicates the location from which A-40 is
taken; is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. And the reason it just says four is sometimes,
well, before your arrival in the crime lab that number zero got
lost somewhere; is that right?

A, Those numbers are from Identification Bureau's kit
and they did not have number zero. |

Q. Has that been a long-standing thing with them --
well, that doesn't matter.

Where did you get the A-40 from?

aA. There were various blood spatters in the form of
drops on the wall that included the vent sometime on that wall,
above the vent on that wall, and along the closet doors
immediately to the east of that vent.

Q. Well, did you take a collection from all of them
and just put them in the same little bin?

A. It was a collection of drops to provide sufficient

material for serological purposes.

Q. And how many drops would that be?

A. I don't recall.
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Q. Did they come from -- was it a sample a little bit
from each of the different areas to get a representative sample
of the whole area?

- I can't say exactly how large the area was that was
covered. I took enough of an area to include enough blood drops
to give sufficient sample for serological purposes. Right now I
could not say how large of an area that encompassed.

Q. Finally, showing you a photograph which has been
marked as 418, that depicts the general area from which you

picked up your last drop or your last sample of blood, Exhibit

42, right?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. The -- can you see that, where that was on

that wall? You can take it off if that makes it easier.

A, It's rather hard to see the exact sample that I
collected from that wall.

Q. Well, was it a drop or a smear or what?

A. I don't recall at this time. The notes don't

reflect that it was scraped or a thread sample.

Q. Well, I take it then you have no idea of what
manner of -- what particular shape it was in; is that right?
A, According to Mr. Gregonis' note as to what I wrote

on the metal canister, it was blood scraped from the wall and

therefore it would have been blood drops.

Q. Okay. But then I take it from your -- the way
you've answered the question that would it be correct to say
that you have no present recollection or memory as to the -- as

to the shape of that particular drop?
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A, That's correct.
Q. Placing on the board next Exhibit 505.
You recognize that as the central portion of the
south wall that was removed from your particular, your
particular laboratory, or removed by the Sheriff's office and

deposited in your particular laboratory, right?

A. Yes.

Q. And you were present when I took that picture,
right?

A. Yes,

Q. Now, based on your training as a criminalist, all

these little drops of blood that one can see can be interpreted
to give certain types of information; is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. Starting at the most simple level. One of the
things that you can do is determine the direction that a drop of
blood was going when it hit the wall, right?

A. That is possible, yes.

Q. And that is a fairly straightforward procedure; is
that right?

A, Usually, yes.

Q. For example, there are -- well, there are certain
kinds of drops cf blood which look like exclamation points,
right?

A. Yes.

Q. And you can tell which way those drops of blood
were going because they -- there's an general rule that based on

some stuff we don't have to go into right now, that the little,
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the dot of the exclamation point indicates the direction in
which the little blood drop is traveling when it hits the wall,
right?

A, Yes.

Q. So, like on this particular, on this particular,
that particular part of the wall there were drops going up,
drops going down, drops going left and drops going right when
they hit the wall, right??

A. Blood was deposited from several directions on that
wall, Yes.

Q. But up, down, left, right on the picture, right?

A. Yes. |

Q. Now, the -- well, the drop of blood that you
collected, A-41, that.appeared to be one drop of blood which had
been falling, more or less falling down due to gravity and was
coming at an angle very close to the angle of the wall, right?

A, Yes., |

Q. And appeared to be just one individual drop of
blood as far as you could tell.

A, Yes.

Q. I mean there was separations in it, there was wall,
part of the molding, but at least you could say that was
consistent with being one drop of blood.

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. The amount of blood in that one drop, if one
were to use proper procedures, could one get, just from that one
drop alone, just about all the serological information which is,

which is normally used by your laboratory and other laboratories
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working in the field to develop a profile of the person that
ga;e that bloed?

A. Again, that depends on several factors. If it is
fresh bloecd within a week, say, many of the systems would yield
useful information.

Q. I'm trying to focus on quantity, quantity. Just
the quantity of blood that you scraped off the wall for A-41,
testing procedures being adequate, the blood being fresh, all
other things being equal, there was enough quantity of blood
there to do all the tests, right?

A, I can't say there was enough to do every single

test. That is possible.

Q. No --
A, For most of them, yes.
Q. All the tests that are commonly used by your

particular laboratory, and your particular laboratory uses
basically the standard, your particular laboratory generally
uses the standard tests that are, that are practiced in. the
field of criminalistics in the State of California, right?

A, We do many of the systems that are possible. There
are some that we currently do not do that are fully capable of
being done.

Q. Just making it easy then, all the ones that you
guys currently do could be gotten out of a drop of blodd, A-41,
if everything was equal.

A. Again, I can't say totally every system could have
been obtained from that drop. Most of them, yes.

Q. Were the drops of blood that you picked up from the
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wall unit, the A-36 drops, were they significantly smaller than

A-41?
A, The individual drops I do not recall as to that

item number so I couldn't say.

Q. From somewhere on that, on this wall, which is not
totally depicted in this picture, but somewhere either on that
central area or some other area, you took some, um, blood drops,
tight?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And those were scraped.

A. Yes.

Q. And you have had a chance to examine the six
segments of that wall which have been taken back to your
laboratory, right? A

A, I had thé cpportunity, yes.

Q. And you have examined them, have you not?
Q. Sat there and looked at it.
A, I have looked at it, I would not necessarily term

that an examination.

Q. Have you any idea where you took the drop of blood

from from that wall?

A, I believe I said i took more than one drop of blood
from that wall. No, I could not state exactly where they were.

Q. Okay. The -- on that particular, on that
particular wall, there appears to be big drops, little d;ops,
roundish drops, speckled drops, exclamation drops going all

different directions.

Do you have any idea which kind of those drops it
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was that you took?
A. No.
Q. Do you know if you mixed the exclamation-type drops

with scalloped-type drops?
A. Those drops that I did collect were all placed in

the same containers. I don't recall which drops I did collect
and what their form was on the wall when I collected then.

Q. Let me ask it this way. When you were collecting
them, d4id you take care to make sure that all the drops that you
collected were going the same direction?

A. I don't believe so.

Q. Did you take care to make sure they were all the
same type as we have been using versus the scallped, versus
exclamation, versus other types?

A. I don't believe so.

Q. From your training, are you aware of the proper
procedures to document photographically the patterns of blood on
a wall so that a criminalist can interpret them?

A. Yes.

Q. Does that involve eventually two things, having a
ruler in the picture so you can see what the dimensions are and,
if it is a flat surface making sure take the picture is at a 90
degree angle so that you can firalize parallax? I am not even
sure how to spell it. Maybe Mr. Stockwell knows.

A, Would you wish the spelling. P-a-r-a-l-l-a-x.

Those are two factors involved, and I would include
one more, that of a sense of orientation, you have to make sure

that you know what part of the wall you were taking a photograph
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of.

Q. Okay. Well, that involves essentially taking some
sort of a note of what you took, or some other memory aid.

A, That, and include something in the photograph to
aid your recollection of that at a time, a later time.

0. Altnerate ways of doing it, right?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you -- you were working with Mr. Duffy on that
particular night, right?

A. Yes.

Q. And in the division of labor between crime lab and
I.D. bureau, having that particular knowledge was your

responsibility rather than Mr. Duffy's, right?

A, I would not say -- would not say it is totally my
responsibility.
Q. You don't expect him to have had training in

criminalistics to take the pictures, do you?

MR. KOCHIS: VYour Honor, I am going to object.

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: ‘Yes, I will sustain the objection,
argumentative.
BY MR. NEGUS:

Q. Did you in fact ask Mr. Duffy to take pictures of
certaih things?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Did you ask him to take pictures of the various
blood splatters on the wall in such a way that a criminalist

could interpret them?
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MR. KOCHIS: I would object, lack of relevance., The
whole wall is in the c¢crime lab. Any ¢riminalist can look at it
and try to interpret it.

MR. NEGUS: Not the whole wall in the house, obviously.

THE COURT: Overruled.

THE WITNESS: I asked Mr. Duffy to take photographs of
the areas where I did collect blood from the walls.

BY MR, NEGUS:

Q. Did you ask him to do it with a ruler in place and
at a 90 degree angle with some sort of orientation so that you‘'d
be able to tell what drop you collected?

A. No.

Q. Did you ask Mr. Duffy to take photographs of the
bed as you successively took items off it?

A. I don't recall making that request.

Q. As you, for example -- as you took the comforter,
A-5, off the bed, did that reveal a bunch of blood, other types
of evidence, below the comforter which you couldn't see when the
comforter was in place?

A. I don't recall at this moment.

Q. Well, on, on -- or just before July 5th, 1983, when
you decided to cut out some blood drops from the, from parts of
the bedding, did you try and rearrange that bedding on the
laboratory table to detetmine,_you know, what position it had
been in at the time of the crime?

A, I attempted to arrange certain items of bedding on
a laboratory table in order to orient where I found the shoe

impression on the top sheet.
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Q. And those items -- what items did those include
that you tried to orient?
A. As I recall the bottom sheet, the top sheet, and
the blue blanket.
Q. Did you also attempt to take, you know, photographs

at that point in time, photographs, and to study various stains
that appeared on the two sheets?

A, I photographed some impressions that were on the

‘sheets, yes.

Q. - How did you go about arranging the sheets to try
and figure out what position they were in at the time that
the -- at the time of the crime?

A, First of all I could not necessarily orient the
sheets or the bedding in the order that they were in at the time
of the crime. All I could do was orient them at the time I was
at the scene and deputy Duffy was taking photographs of that. I
used those photographs to aid me in placing the items from the
bed back in their proper perspective.

Q. Did you have some photographs then of the bed first
with the comforter on it, then with, then with the comforter
removed, then with the blue blanket removed, and then like that?

A, I had several photographs of the bedding. Just
what orientation they were in at the time, I don't recall.

Q. During the first half hour you were there, were you
working really fast?

A. Not exceptionally, fast;

Q. During that first half hour, that, let's say, from

3:00 to 3:30, whenever you were interrupted by ;he call to go
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down and look at the hatchet, you collected, according to your
present memory, eight different items of evidence, right?

A, Yes.

Q. And each of those eight different items of evidence

were individually packaged, right?

A. Not totally.

Q. What were they?

A. As pointed out yesterday the tourniquet, A-4, and
the top sheet, A-8, were in the same container.

Q. I take it that»before each of those, each of those
particular items were removed, did you do anything to try and
preserve any trace evidence, like hairs, or other things like
that that might be found on them?

A, We collected the bedding in a way from the physical
folding of them, in a way to help maintain any trace evidence
that was adhering to them and then placed them in paper sacks.

| Q. How long did it take you to fold up the comforter
in that manner, in that careful manner?

A. I can't give the specific time for it. It would

have been minutes.

Q. 15 minutes or something like that?

A, Probably less than that.

Q. You did the same for the blue blanket and top
sheet?

A, Yes.

Q. Well, how long did it take you to check the

telephone wires to see if any of them had been cut?

A, I don't recall,
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Q. Just a couple minutes?
A. It was longer than that.
A. Then was there sometime involved in going outside

around the house and picking up the rope and putting it in the
bag, or whatever you did with it, and then coming back in the
house again, that sort of thing?

A, There's time involved there, yes.

Q. After you got inside the bedroom, was there any set
up time involved? I mean, did you have to sort of setup your
equipment, get out your bags, that sort of thing?

A, The setup time mainly was done outside the bedroom.
I kept my equipment out near the patio.

Q. That reminds me. Would you clarify for the jury ~--
showing you Photograph 173, and specifically directing your
attention to what looks like a green box and cardboard box

outside the, outside the door of the Ryen house. 1Is that your

equipment?
A, No.
Q. Was that there when you got there?
A, I don't recall.
Q. Where did you have your equipment?
A, In this photograph, it would be off to the left

side of the sliding glass door.

Q. Right over here?
A, Yes,
Q. Well, you also, you also had to figure out your

numbering system, did you not?

Did you know what item you were going to call l, 2,
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3, 4, 5, 6, 7, that sort of thing?

A, Yes.

Q. You sat down and made that list out of the various
items that you were going to -- that you were going to collect;
is that right, 1 through 7?

A, Normally the items are listed in the order in which
they are picked up.

Q. Well, on this particular occasion you didn't do
that, right? |

A, The only thing that was not done in that manner was

the pillow that was found on the bed.

It was assigned a number earlier but the time of
collection shows that was actually placed in a paper sack at
some later time.

Q. All right. Are you -- are you in essentially
relying on present recollection to tell us that or is that your

interpretation of the various notes and stuff that you managed

to save?
A, Both.
Q. When you were doing the bed, if an item were on top

of another item, did you remove the one that was on top first?

A, When possible.

Q. Do you recall any situation in working the bed,

where that wasn't possible?

A, Yes. With much of the bedding the various items

were intertwined at the foot of the bed.

Q. Well, basically the comforter was on top of

everything, right?
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A, Por the most part, yes.
Q.  Okay. And then the blue blanket was on top of
everything else, right?
A, I don't recall specifically, but I believe below

the comforter items began getting intertwined.

Q. Was there a -- welf, let me back-up.

Were you attempting to take and package each and

every item that was found on that bed?

A, I can't recall specifically if my intentions were
to take every single item that was found on the bed, no.

Q. Well, were you trying to take each item that had
some evidentiary value?

THE COURT: Counsel, his subjective intent perhaps is not
at germane as what he actually did.
BY MR. NEGUS:

Q. To your knowledge, did you take everything on the

bed that had evidentiary value?

A, At the time, yes.
Q. what was the evidentiary value of the tourniquet?
A, It showed that there was someone there before we

arrived, namely, paramedics. Wwe had information that Joshua
Ryen was found alive, that life-saving tactics were given. That
goes to show that someone else had been in the scene subsequent
to the attacks but before our arrival.

Q; There wasn't any -- it wasn't like there was any
blood or anything like that on the tourniquet?

A, Not that I recall, no.

Q. Placing on the board Exhibit 216, a sixteen by
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twenty photograph of a portion of the bed and Douglas Ryen.
I would -~ first I would direct your attention to a

blue item that is laying there at the foot of the bed.
| Do you recall what that was?

A, I can't say for certain I knew what it was, it is a
blue elastic band of a nature.

Q. Like some sort of a —- like a girdle type thing
that you would use in exercising?

A, Possibly.

Q. It appeared to be elastic made of material, that

sort of thing?

A, Yes.

Q. Did you make a conscious decision not to seize
that?

A. I decided not to seize it, that's correct.

Q. Did it appear to you to be devoid of evidentiary
value?

A, Yes.

Q. What did you do with it when you decided not to
seize it?

A. I don't recall,

Q. Did you throw it on the ground?

A. I don't believe so.

Q. Excuse me. Did you throw it on the floor?

A. I don't believe so.

Q. Putting on the board photographs 502, 409, and 410;
do those appear to be photographs taken as various items of

bedding were removed?
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A, They would be, yes.

Q. Okay. In == In the top photograph, 502, you can -
that photograph was taken after the comforter was removed and
the sweatband was placed somewhere, but before the removal of
the blue blanket; is that correct?

A. Those items are -- have been taken off the bed,
yes.

Q. Okay. Once you got the comforter off and put in a
bag you didn't put it back on again; right?

A. Right.

Q. And did it too with the blanket and other items?

A. Right. What I meant to say is I don't know what
else may have been taken off the bed at that time,

Q. Well, all right. Between the comforter and the
blue blanket, the only thing that -- that you had was the gold
crown, right?

A, Did you mention the tourniquet? That was also —-

Q. Between -- The tourniquet came off before the
comforter, right?

A. Right. It was something, though, in addition to,
that was removed.

Q. Between -- between the time of the -- between the
time of the comforter and the time of the blue blanket, the only
thing that came off was the gold crown, right?

A.  Yes. |

Q. Was the bathrobe ~- The bathrobe is what's circled

in blue on the two bottom pictures that we have there; is that

tight?
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A, Yes.

Q. The bathrobe was -- was laying over the top sheet,
right, as it was revealed after you got the blue blanket and the
comforter off?

A. Yes.

Q. What did you do with the bathrobe while you were
taking off the top sheet?

A. I don't recall.

Q. Is it possible you took it off before you took off

the top sheet in a sort of logical manner?

A, I don't remember packaging it before taking the top
sheet.

Q. Well, the packaging got changed around quite a bit
there as you were —- as you were working, right? I mean, that

you started with one I.D., and then you went to the other.

A. I'm not sure what you mean by "packaging was
changed around”.

Q. Well, 1ike with this bag here, Exhibit 501, you
were first going to put a whole bunch of things in one bag, then
you changed it at some point in time; is that right?

A, Yes.

Q. So is it -- it at least is possible that you could

}haVe taken off the item on top first, the blue blanket, even

- though you might have earlier assigned them a number in a

different sequence; is that right?
A. I don't believe there's a discrepancy between the

order in which it was taken off and the itemization it was

given.
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COURT: Find a point that's convenient.

NEGUS: 1I'm getting there real quick, I hope.
Well, I guess maybe I better do it afterwards.

COURT: This is it? Okay.

NEGUS: That wasn't what I planned, but that's it.

COURT: We will take the morning recess. Remember

the admonition, please.

THE

(Recess taken.)

COURT: Please continue.

BY MR, NEGUS:

Qo

picture of

Showing you Exhibit 303, does that appear to be a

the area where Doug Ryen was taken after the

Coroner's Office had removed his body?

A.

Q.

Yes.

Anything -- any item of evidence that you seized

that you recognize in that particular picture?

A.

The bottom sheet from the bed.

That's A-10?

Yes.

Okay. Anything else?

I would have collected blood from the night stand.
Okay. Anything else?

I would have collected blood from beneath his body,

a standard blood sample. That's all I can recall at this point.

Q.

Okay. That little clock -- this is -- this thing

here is -- right there at the top of the picture on the

nightstand, that's a clock and barometer type thing?

-
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A, Appears to be so.

Q. Was the -- was the clock -- was the clock running
and showing correct time while you were there?

A, I don't recall.

Q. Can a clock have evidentiary significance in a
crime scene?

A, Sometimes,

Q. Did you examine it at the time, do you recall?

A, I don't recall examining it.

Q. According to your memory, all of the items except

A-11 up through A-15 were removed before the bodies of the

victims were taken out, right?

A, That is what the notes reflect, yes.

Q. And that was your testimony this morning and
yesterday?

A, Yes.

Q. Does that photograph that I placed on the board,
does that shake your confidence in your testimony?

A, To the éxtent that apparently the body has been
removed, the bottom sheet is still on the bed.

Q. So, obviously you're wrong about the bottom sheet,
right?

A, Wrong to the extent that it was not actually in a

paper sack.

Q. Well, except for the fact that it's been sort of =--
it's been sort of scrunched up there at the top, the bottom part
still seems to be tucked into the side of the bed, right?

A, As it appears, yes.
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Q. So you hadn't actually moved it or anything of that
nature when the bodies were temovgd, right?

A. Apparently so.

Q. And showing showing you again photograph 176, there
was a good reascn for that, right?

A, Naturally, Douglas Ryen was leaning against it.

Q. So, you couldn't remove the sheet and take it away
and package it until the people came and took Douglas's body
away, right?

A, Yes.

Q. Having been wrong about that then, do you still
have the same level of confidence in your testimony about the
order in which you collected the other items?

A. I'm not necessarily sure I am wrong. I don't
believe I ever stated a time for the bottom sheet, for in the
notes there is no time listed for item A-10, the bottom sheet.

Q. Well, Mr. Stockwell, you told us that with the
exception of the pillow, you collected them all in order, right?

A, I believe those were my words, yes.

Q. And you also told us yesterday that you collected
the bottom sheet before Douglas Ryen's body was removed, right?

A, I don't recall if I did say that.

Q. Well, you certainly had to be wrong at least about
the order in which the items were collected; will you give me
that?

MR. KOCHIS: Your Honor, the form of the question is
argqumentative.

THE COURT: Yes, it is. Sustained.
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BY MR. NEGUS:

Q. Is it true -- will you -- Do you acknowledge that
you are at least wrong about the order of the -- in which you
seized the particuiar items?

A, The physical placement of the items in containers
is not in order.

Q. And the removal of them from the bed is not in
order, right?

A, By the item 1istipg they appear to be in order.

Q. The -- A-14, a number higher than A-10, was
collected before 6:00 o'clock, right?

A. Yes.

Q. And the body of Douglas Ryen was not removed until
approximately 9:05, right? |

A, I don't knoﬁ the exact time of his body removal.

Q. It was during the time that you -- it was around
the time that you were collecting items A-16 through A-11,
right?

A. That sounds about right.

Q. By the way it lcoks from the photograph here like
you collected the pillow, A-1l1l, before you collected the bottom

sheet, right?

A, I don't know that I can necessarily tell from that
photograph.
Q. At least the pillow is not where it was when you

first got there; it somehow got moved; right?

A, I don't know. I would need to see more

photographs,
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Q. Deces that photograph show the position where the
pillow was when you arrived -- Oh, I will give you back the
other one for reference.

Showing you again the 1ar§er photograph, 176, the
area of the pillow in fact extends all the way over to the
nightstand, does it not?

A. It appears to, yes.

Q. So the pillow at least got moved then before that
picture was taken?

A, Apparently so, yes,

0. Mr. Stockwell, do you have any reluctance to admit
when you're wrong?

A. I don't like to be wrong. I may have some
reluctance to admit it, but if I'm honestly wrong I will admit
it.

Q. Let me try and find the form of the question that
we can -- without --

Mr. Stockwell, did -- does the photograph that I've
shown you and the inferences which can be drawn from that
photograph shake your confidence as to the order --

MR, KOCHIS: Your Honor, I would object.

MR. NEGUS: I would withdraw that gquestion.

MR. KOCHIS: His confidence is --

TBE COURT: 1It's withdrawn.

BY MR. NEGUS:

Q. Does the photagraph which I've shown you and the

inferences which can be drawn from that make you believe that

there's a possibility that you were wrong about the order in
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which the other items were taken?

A. All of the other items? No.

Q. Well, just your general proposition that, for
example, you're sure that you took item 8 before item 9?

A, I feel good about those items. They have times
listed. I feel those times are accurate.

Q. The written list that you prepared yourself prior

to your going down the hill to look at the axe has 1 through 7
on it, right?

A. Yes.

Q. Then the list that you -- that was after that list
of 1 through 7 was completed, you and Ms. Schechter changed your
entire procedure of working and she was assigned the task of
taking notes and you essentially seized that particular task; is
that right?

A. First, I would say we did not change our entire
procedure; andbsecond of all, she did take most of the notes
after that.

These notes do reflect some of my own handwriting,
so I know that I have added things to these‘notes even after the
first page.

Q. Okay. But there was at least, in your
documentation there was a basic gap or break or change, a basic
change between the way you listed items 1 through 7 and the way
you listed items 8 through the rest of it, through 45, right?

A, Yes.

Q. Didn't that reorganization of the way you were

doing things, didn't that take place in the gap of time after
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you got back from the -- from the picking up the axe?
A, No. .
Q. In this bottom photograph, which has laboratory

number T-13 on it, the top sheet is still in place,_correct?
A. Yes.
Q. When you came back and were removing items --
After you picked up the axe, had Mr. Duffy shifted
his duties from taking photographs to lifting fingerprints?

A, I don't recall that.

Q. Item A-9 -- Well, the ~-- there are, in the notes
that you have there, various errors as far as correctly
designating things in military time, is that right, that is,
people -—- there is some sign that the person that wrote the --
those notes as to times made mistakes as far as their
designation of things in military time, right?

A. Yes.

Q. And if you look at, starting on the page where Ms,
Schechter started taking the notes; you have a time of 1527 for
A-8 and then 1732 for A-9; is that right?

A, Yes.

Q. | And then the next one where she has a time, that
would be 1747; is that right?

A. A-11 occurs before that and has a time as well,

although it's ——

Q. We've already decided that A-11 happened later,
right? That's out of sequence?

A. The actual placement of it into the sack, yes.

Q. Is it possible that you were starting to work on --
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on A-8 when you got the —-- when you got the news that they had
found the axe and sort of left it there and on the bed and
didn't actually put it into a package until you got back?

A, No, not according to the times listed.

Q. Okay. Well, the times listed don't tell you when
you put the things in the package is what I -- I mean, they

list -- they are just a time listed?

A. On the contrary, I think that is what they refer

to, is the times they were actually placed in a package.

Q. The 1527 that you -- that you wrote here on the bag

where it says "A-8", did you write that before you put the sheet

in the bag?
A, ~ As I placed the sheet in the bag.
Q. You are placing the sheet in the bag and writing at

the same time?
A. Relatively speaking.
Q. In terms of steps, in terms of Step 1, Step 2, Step

3, Mr. Stockwell, did you first write on the bag so that the
writing would be on the bag and it wouldn't sort of disturb
whatever you put in the bag by writing on it? Did you do that

first, that step first?

A, . I don't recall the exact step-by-step nature,
whether I wrote on the bag first and placed the sample then into

the bag or placed the sample into the bag and then wrote on the

bag.

Q. Well, as far as -- the only thing that you're, that
you're relying on as far as your particular -- your particular

memory of what happened on that particular afternoon about when.

COMPUTERIZED TRANSCRIPT



PN

w» W N

W O N 0w,

10

11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

!

3687

the sheet was placed in the bag is the time that you wrote on
the bag; is that right? I mean, you have no clear recollection
now of -- of doing that particular act; is that correct?

A, I rely on the notes, yes, to refresh my memory as
to the actions on that date.

Q. So if the notes are confusing and ambiguous and in
conflict with other evidence that we have, then your memory
could be the same?

MR. KOCHIS: I would object. That's argqumentative.

THE COURT: 1I'm not sure. Repeat the question, please.

MR. NEGUS: I will try and rephrase it.

Q. Is it true that your memory is no better than your
notes?

A, I can recall some things that are not in the notes
at this day, things that I did not think to write in notes at
that time. On other subjects there are things in the notes that
I would not remember today, but I rely on my notes to refresh my
memory.

Q. Time and sequence I take it are one of the later;
is that right?

A, Yes.

Q. I note yesterday -- is it true like, for example,
yesterday when Mr. Kochis would ask you a question about that,
that you had Eo sort of even look up to see what was A-7, what
was A-8, and what the sequence of items collected was?

‘A, Yes.
Q. With respect to this particular sheet, do you feel

it's important to testify that it was collected as early as
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possible to minimize the possibility that one of the many people
who were coming through that master bedroom may have left the
foot impression that you've testified about?

A, I feel it is important to tell the truth.

Q. That wasn't the question exactly that I asked you.
Would you try and answer the other question?

A, I don't know that I can answer that particular
question., Why do I feel it's important? I feel it's important
for telling the truth. It may also be important as to the time

that the sheet was collected for the very purpose that you spoke

of. I

Q. By the way, is one of the requirements of being a

good criminalist that you have a certain amount of manual

dexterity?
A. I don't know that that is a requirement.
Q. You can't go around dropping evidence and

throwing -- dropping photographs and that kind of stuff, like
for example, I wouldn't make a good criminalist, right?

A. I would not necessarily say that.

Q. Let's see. I guess we are going to have to do this
by halfsies.

The big hole that's missing from that particular
sheet was not taken by yourself, I mean, it was not removed by
yourself; is that right?

A, That's correct,
Q. The little holes though, which have a little letter
in it, looks like a black, some sort of marking pencil next to

the, next to the, next to them, those were the ones that were
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removed by yourself on July, July the Sth; is that right?
A. Yes.
Q. Now, putting on the board Exhibit 507, is that an,

is that a photograph of the sheet, this particular sheet, befocre
this big hole was taken out of it, but after all the little
holes were taken out of it?

A, Yes.

Q. And -- okay. And obviously you were present when
the photograph was taken and Mr. Forbush is sort of hiding
behind the other corner there, and that was taken approximately
in December of 1983; is that cofrect?

A, I believe so.

Q. Now, before you cut these little holes out, did you
take that picture, such as the one we have up here, of the sheet
in its uncut condition?

A. No.

Q. Did you take any pictures of the individual drops
of blood that you, that you cut out, before you cut them out?

A. No.

0. wWhen you test the drops of blood that were cut out,
does their position on the little piece of cloth, does their
condition on the little piece of cloth~-cut become altered?

A, The sheet itself has been altered, the stain itself
is just replaced into another container.

Q. Okay. But the stain -- when you take them and you
do the electrophoretic testing, do that kind of stuff, at that
point ih time did the little pieces of cloth -- I guess it is

"D" -- does "D" look the same after it's been tested as when --
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as before you cut it out?
A, No.
Q. How many different, how many different areas did

you cut stains from on that particular date, July 5th?
A. From this item alone, or all of the items?

Q. We're only with just one sheet at the time.

A, 11.
Q. Were those just randomly selected samples?
A. There was some thought that went into the

collection of each and every sample. In that sense it was not

random,
Q. Was there a sense in which it was?
A. Yes.
Q. What sense was that?
A, Samples were taken from various portions of the

sheet where the patterns suggested that they had been deposited
by separate sources,

Q. You can sit down. I think we're going -- what do
you mean by "patterns®?

A. The shape and style of the stains, as they appeared
on the sheet, suggesting different manners in which they were
deposited upon the sheet.

Q. When you -- when I orginally packaged that sheet,
did you and Ms. Schechter both work on it?

A. I believe it was.both of us that packaged it, yes.

Q. Okay. And basically you wére -- you were trying to
work over the bed so that if you diopped anything off the --

that particular sheet, it would just fall back on down to the
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bed and get caught up in one of the other items of bedding; is
that right? '

A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember exactly how you arrranged that?
Was one standing on one side and the other on the other side of
the bed. How did you do that?

A. As I recall that was a close approximation to our
positions as we folded the sheet.

Q. As that sheet exists now, the blood on it is all
pretty much dried out; is that right? I mean, there is no --
hopefully.no wet blood on there?

A, It is dry blood, yes.

Q.  Was that the case when you were, when you and Ms.

Schechter were folding it up?

A. I believe so, yes.
Q. Did you check to see?
A. Just to some extent, yes.

Q. What do you mean by that?

A. I checked over as much as of the sheet as I could,
in the manner that it appeared on the bed.

Q. Then when -- well, like up in here. Did you check
up in that area where it seems a little heavier than some of the
others? -

A, I believe I did.

Q. You are not sure?

A, Not totally sure,

Q. Did you and Ms. Schechter just then fold it up into

a bunch of different parts?
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Yes.

So, you like halvsies, and then halvsies and on

down until you got it to a manageable size,

A,

Q.

Yes.

Was that the same procedure that you followed with

all of the different comforter, the blanket and the other sheet?

A,

Q.

A,

Q.
mattress; is

A.

Q.
sheets for a

A.
bottom sheet.

Qo

Yes.

All done over the bed?

To the greatest extent possible, yes.

Then there was also a pad, No. A-12, underneath the
that right?

Yes.

That pad, did that get packaged with one of the
time until you got it back to the lab?

Yes. The notes state that it was packaged with the

The pad was a thicker, a thicker piece of material

than the cotton sheet?

A,
Q.

a lot, had a

Yes.

And if you just qualitatively, the bottom sheet was

lot more, you know, blood on it than the top sheet;

is that right?

A.
Q.

Yes.

I mean the actual mass.

Putting on the board also item 506. 1Is that a

picture of the bottom sheet taken at the same time and same

place as the

A.

top sheet?

Yes.
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Q. When you and Ms. Schechter folded the bottom

sheet -- let's see.

Well, is that sheet being held so that the slightly

- longer part of the sheet is being held horizontal and the

slightly shorter dimensions of the sheet is being held vertical,
right?
A, I really can't tell the dimensions. That could be.
Q. Well, okay. In the photograph there -- well, let
me just -~ actually your -head would be to the, to the bottom of

the sheet as it actually lay on the bed; is that right?

A, I don't believe that is actually the way it was on
the bed.
Q. But, the top of the photograph, the portion of the

sheet depicted on the top of the photograph would have been
towards the top of the bed portion, where your head is would be
towatds the bottom of the bed, right?

A, That -- to that limited extent, yes.

Q. Now, in fact this photograph is a photograph of the
side of the sheet that was towards, was towards the mattress of
the bed, that is not the part of it that's facing up, correct?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. So, this big glob of blood over on the left
side, that would have been the area where Doug Ryen was 1aying.v

A. Yes.

Q. When you and Ms. Schechter folded up that sheet,
did you do the same process? That is, take this particular side
and fold it over to that particular side?

A. I don't recall which side met which side. That was
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the general sequence in which we did fold it.
Q. That particular sheet was still partially wet,
right?
A, I don't recall.
Q. Ir your opinion, if a sheet is dry, there is no

danger of transfer, for example, of blood from this stain over
to this -- one of these stains, if in fact they are folded
together, right? Is that right?

A, That's correct.

Q. But, you would -- would you agree that if in fact
the sheets are damp, there is such a danger?

A. Yes.

Q. The blood on the bed underneath Doug Ryen, had sort
of like become jelled without necessarily being hard.

A, The term is coagulated. Yes, there was coagulated
blood underneath Douglas Ryen.

Q. Well, okay. I am not trying -- I don't know, I am
not trying to be technical.

Was the blood sort of in a jelly-like state as
opposed to being hard?

A, Some of it was, yes.

Q. And that would have been some ¢of the blood on the,
on the plastic mattress directly underneath this big hunk right
here, right?

A. I don't really recall if the portion that was on
the mattress itself was -- I recall in the crevice between the

mattress and the side of the bed, that in that crevice there was

that coaqulated blood.
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Q. This whole area was tucked in, right?
A, I believe part of it was,
Q. From approximately where you start seeing that

whole area, where you don't see any spots down here, and that

whole area in there, that was all tucked like on the photograph,

left three-quarters of an inch or so?

A, It may have been, I can't state for certain.

Q. In the crevice where the jelled blood was, right?
A, Maybe, yes, into the crevice.

Q. Did the mattress pad have heavy concentrations of

blood on it as well?

A, I don't recall just how heavy the concentration on

the -- were on the mattress pad.

Q. Well, the blood that had been on top of the, on top
of the sheets, had like scaked through to the bottom, sort of,
you know, had caking on it there on the photograph?

A. Yes, it may have.

Q. Did you put the folded up mattress cover on top of
A-10 in the bag?

A, I don't recall which order they were actually in

the bag, they were side by side one on top of the other.
Q. Did -~ did this -- showing you on the actual sheet
a sort of the speckled area which I will label with a
corresponding point on the photograph with a red "A®., That '
would be the cortespondinq point on photograph 507.
When you were, when you were looking at that, did

that appear to have any evidentiary significance to you?

A, On July?
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Q. On June the Sth.

A, July 5th.

Q. You didn't really look very closely on June the
5th, right?

A, Not in any detail, no.

Q. So the time you studied it was July Sth.

A. July Sth.

Q. Did you have -- on July 5th did that appear to have
any evidentiary significance to you?

A, Yes, it would have had some. Just the fact that it
was blood on the sheet is evidence. I did not cut it out for
serological purposes.

Q. I know that. But did you say, okay, that's not
important, it didn't appear to have any evidentiary
significance?

A, I did not say that, no.

Q. When you looked at it did you interpret that
particular pattern?

A. No, not that I recall.

Q. There is a trail of blood which I will put a "B"
for on the photograph and indicate to you on the sheet appears
to be a line of blood drops. A

Did you interpret that pattern when you were
flipping out the spots for comparison?

A. No.

Q. Showing you a brown stain on the, on the sheet,
which would be located at the approximate spot where I put a red

“C® on the photograph.
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Does that stain appear to you to be blood? 1Is that
like -- did I put it in the right spot?

A, That's what I'm checking. No, it does not look
like blood to me.

| Q. Did you analyze that to find out what it was?

A. No.

Q. The -- the spot that was labeled, I believe "C® on
the --.on the sheet, what was it about that particular spot that
made it of evidentiary significance worth doing serological
analysis?

aA. There is a pattern of blood in this general
location, and I took one sanmple of it. It is divided from the
first sample I took, "A", up in here, by a somewhat intervening
space where there's not as much blood.

Q. So you were trying to take samples from each of the
different geographical areas of the sheet?

A. To some extent, yes.

Q. wWhat do you mean by that?

A. I did take samples throughout the entire surface
area of the sheet as representative samples at least.

Q. When you were taking the samples, did you -- did
ycu have the -- did you have the photographs that Mr. Duffy had
taken of the bed before you s0 you could try and determine from
the position of the sheet at the time that it was found, you
know; what would be the more likely areas that would be -- have
some sort of evidentiary significance?

A. I don't recall if we had those pictures on July the

5th or not.
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Q. When did you do the -- your reconstruction of the
position of the sheets to try and figure out where the
fingerprint was -- where the foot -- the shoeprint was?

A. I don't have a specific date for that.

Q. Was it before or after July 5th?

A, I don't recall.

Q. The blood on the sheets, you might be able to do

one, if you were lucky, two of the many tests on it, but the

vast majority of serological testing could not be done on that
sheet at this present time; is that correct?

A, The majority of the tests that we do would not
yield useful results at this date, that is correct.

Q. As far as if you -- if we -- if we take the fact
that that's human blood as somehow a given, that is only one
that you can do, that your lab does that can still be done at
the present time time, right?

A, You can attehpt more than one, but one that I am
reasonably confident of getting a reliable result.

Q. Or at least there's a chance to get a reliable

result; is that right?

i
LJ
[
u
-
l
E‘

A, There's a chance.
Q. At no time during the course of the
invesfigation - , '

-

Well} at any time during the course of the

investigation did you attempt to freeze like the whole sheet?

(-

A. No.
Q. By the way, are you aware of the results, without

saying what they were, but just generally, are you aware now as
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you testify of the results of the serological testing that was
been done on the portions of the sheets that you cut out?

A, Not in totality, no.

Q. Some of it you are?

A. Some of it, yes.

THE COURT: Can we break now, Mr. Negus?

MR. NEGUS: So sure.

THE COURT: Thank you, Let's take the noon recess.,

Remember the admonition and return at 1:30. Thank

you,

(Noon recess taken.)
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SAN DIEGO, CALIFORNIA., WEDNESDAY, NQOVEMBER 21, 1984 1:33 P.M.

~-00000~--
THE COURT: We're all together. Go ahead.

DAVID C. STOCKWELL,
The witness on the stand at the adjournment, having been

previously sworn, testified further as follows:

CROSS EXAMINATION (Resumed)

BY MR. NEGUS:

Q. The towel that was draped over -Peqgy Ryen's leg,
did you collect that as evidence? ‘

A, I don't recall collecting anything like that.

Q. Showing you this little picture, 430, there appears
to be a dark blue thing down near a business machine of some
sort on the floor, next to the dressers.

Does that'—- was that the blue, the blue sweatband

that was on the bed?

A That appears to be that.

Q. Do you know how it got there.

A, No.

Q. On blood that you took inside the, inside the Ryen

house, did you make any attempt, as you were, as you were
collecting your various samples, to try and and analyze the room
in order to determine where the most likely sources of blood
which would have some evidentiary value would be, or did you

just sort of go around the room sort of taking random samples
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from this wall, that wall and the other one?

A. The specific blood samples I collected, I
collected, you know, in a way of collecting samples in areas
where blood appeared that was separated from other areas by
intervening spaces where there were no blood.

Q. Well, let's see. Between this one that you have --
I believe it is, I think it is "B®", this one cut-out and this
other cut-out on the sheet are the same sort of general idea.

A. That is a closely paralleled idea, yes.

Q. Well, in most crime scenes, or particularly in this
particular crime scene, forgetting about other ones, but in this
particular crime scene, did you appear, did it appear to you
that evidence, that the highest evidentiary value was evenly
distributed around the room?

A, I wouldn't say that the blood was evenly
distributed around the room, no.

Q. Okay. But were there some areas where there seemed
to be richer concentrations of blood that might have a high
evidentiary value?

A, I don't know that I assigned degrees of evidentiary
value to those areas of blood where I collected it.

Q. Directing your attention to a bare spot in the
carpet, in this photograph that I put on the board, Exhibit 216.
There are what appears to be various droppings of blood over on
this, that piece of concrete.

Did you see those when you were there at the crime
scene on June the 5th? 7

A, I may have.
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Q. You don't remember?

A. I don't independently recall it without looking at
these photographs.

Q. Did -- was there any items -- well, in that
particular area you found a, a Gold crown that you seized as
item A-6; is that right?

A, Yes.

Q. That Gold crown would have been located just, just
a little bit towards Doug from where the tip of the, the tip of

the blue bathrobe is; is that right?

A. It would have been somewhere in that general
location.
Q. Photograph A-87, I.D. A-~87, our Exhibit 297, does

that depict the area where the Gold crown was seized?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. And that Gold crown is circled in what looks
to be purple and has a number little No. "C" next to it on that
photograph; is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. Would that be within a couple of feet of that spot
on the concrete?

A. within a few feet, yes.

Q. On the bed depicted in Exhibit 297, between the

bathrobe and the crown, there is what appears to be a circular

‘or a U-shaped lock of hair, correct?

A, Yes.
Q. Did you seize that particular lock of hair?
A. Not independently, no.
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-

Q. Did you even notice it?

A, I may have at the time, I don't recall right now.

Q. Does that lock of hair appear in the large
photograph right where I'm pointing just above the blue blanket
in the large photograph, No. 216, I believe it was?

A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell from the photographs that we have of
that lock of hair whether or not that came from Doug Ryen, just
by looking at the photographs?.

A. I don't believe I could make that determination,
no.

Q. Basically one of the ways that you determine, you
know, whether or not hair could have come from a person is
color; is that right? |

A, Yes.

Q. And the particular color in these particular
photographs isn't totally accurate; is that right?

A. I would not assume that it is.

Q. In fact, we have photographs, different photographs
and these walls appear green, they appear to be pink, they
appear yellow, just because of the different, just because of
the nature of color photography; is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you collect any of the blood from that hole in
the carpet then?

A, Ne, I don't believe so.‘

Q. When you went back on June the 30th, was that, was

that blood still there in that spot?
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A. I don't independently remember looking at that spot
to see if it still was there. The carpeting on June the 30th
was no longer there.

Q. Did -- on June the 5th did you notice any of the
droppings of blood over there on the corner between the bed
stand and Doug's closet?

A, Yes., I may have, yes.

Q. And did you see any evidentiary significance in
those drops of blood?

A, Again, to the extent that it was blood at the
scene, that is evidence. In the areas of blood that I was
collecting I would have attributed that to the same blood as I
collected from the the nightstand.

Q. Is that -- well, did you, as you collected blood on
that particular, that particular day, were you qualified, in
your own opinion, to make determine as to whether one drop of
blood came from the same source as another?

A, By .what means?

Q. By just using whatever experience, common sense,
knowledge, training, education, background you had?

MR. ROCHIS: Well, your Honor, I am going to object, it
is vague. 1If we're talking about back in the laboratory
analyzing, certainly he has qualifications. I don't know where
we are at this point.

THE COURT: You want to define your area of'éxpertise.

MR. NEGUS: Sure.

Q. You indicated that you felt that at the scene that

that drop of blood there in the corner came from the same source
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as the drop of -- as the blood on the nightstand, right?

A. I attributed the blood in that area to that same
general location. The blood I collected for that location, I
did so from the nightstand.

Q. Right. But did I misunderstand you, did you
attribute it to the same source?

MR. KOCHIS: Well, I would object, that would call for
speculation. He didn't -- he can't make that decision.

THE COURT: That's one of the criteria, however, he used
in making his collection, counsel. Overruled.

THE WITNESS: I.cou1d not make the determination
conclusively that blood came from the same source as the blood I
collected from the nightstand. It was in the same general
location.

BY MR. NEGUS:
Q. Well Mr. Stockwell, would it be fair to say that

some criminalists could analyze that blood to form an educated
guess, as you would call it, as to whether or not the blood came

from the same source but you lack those particular

qualifications?

A, Yes. A further analysis could be carried out at
the scene by what we refer to as blood splatter interpretation,

the degree of which I am not capable at least at that time of

doing.

Q. Are you now?

A, I have not received any further training since that
time.

Q. Does that mean no?
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A. Yes, that means no.

Q. Basically then on the night in question, um, June
the 5th, given your level of expertise and training at that
point in time, is it fair to say, to say that you had no way of
knowing whether or not you collected sufficient samples of blood
for a blood splatter analyst to do his work?

A. I would say that I had not done it to that extent.

Q. On that particular night, did you attempt to
consult with anybody who might have had more expertise than

yourself in determining how much, how many samples of blood to

collect?
A. No.
Q. You indicated yesterday that, that you hoped that

you were still undergoing training in your particular field.
Is part of that training peer review of your work?
A, Yes.
Q. Have you received peer review from other people in
your crime lab as to your collection and preservation of
physical evidence on the night of June the 5th?

MR. ROCHIS: I would object on two grounds, relevance and

‘hearsay.

THE COURT: You object to him reciting his qualifications
or for training?
MR. KOCHIS: No, your Honor. The question was, has he

received peer review of his evidence collection on the night of

June the 5th.
MR. NEGUS: But he's testified that he believes that he

did an adequate job and that peer review is pacrt of his
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education and training.

THE COURT: You are asking him as a matter of fact
somebody else's opinion as to his qualifications.

MR. NEGUS: Right. But that's something that he relies
upon in his particular opinions. He relies upon other opinions,
he says, so if they're adverse, I think I am entitled to them.

THE COURT: You can ask him an opinion he's based it
upon, but the number of factors you are not entitled to,
counsel. I will sustain the objection. Move on. Your not
entitled to go into everyone of those factors.

MR. NEGUS: Well, Mr. Stockwell, in your, in coming to
your opinion that you did an adequate job on that particular
night, is there any information to the contrary that you are
overlooking?

MR. KOCHIS: Well, your Honor, I am going to object as
calling for speculation on his part. I don't think he knows
what everybody in the world may think or not think about his
job.

THE COURT: I assume you are asking whether of his own
personal knowledge --

MR. NEGUS: Yes.

THE COURT: -- that he is overlooking or disregarding.
Does he know something that he's disregarded in order to come to
that opinion, 1Is that what you are asking?

MR. NEGUS: That's probably a better way to phrase the
question,

THE COURT: I won't sustain the objection to my question,

if you want to re—ask it.
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BY MR, NEGUS:

Q. In coming to your opinion that you did an adequate
job on that, on that night, are you disregarding any information
to the contrary?

A, I don't believe I'm disregarding any information.

Q. Are you sort of putting it aside, that is, not
giying it any weight, any information to the contrary?

A. There are areas I'm giving less weight.

Q. Would that include the opinions of your peers?

MR. KOCHIS: Your Honor, again I'm going to interpose a
hearsay objection.

MR. NEGUS: Everything in expert testimony is hearsay if

you really get down to it, I don't think. But when you are

dealing with Mr. Kochis he has the right to have =--
THE COURT: Counsel, I will take this up at the next
recess if you wish.

MR. NEGUS: I will try and figure out something else to

get into.

Q. In making your evaluation of what to, which samples
to seize and not to seize on the night of June the 5th, did you
treat it of no consequence as far as the value, evidentiary
value of an item of evidence as to whether it was a drop, a
smear was flung on the wall, fell on the floor by gravitational
for;e or how it happened to get there?

A. I 4id not take that into account to any great

extent, other than by the means of collection.

For instance, a smear was normally collected on a

thread sample, drops of blood were collected by scraping.
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Q. Other than that, was it your opinion that blood is
blood and didn't matter what its source was?

A. I feel that is rather terse in form. The manner in
which I collected it, I was going under the assumption that
blood in a general vicinity most probably was deposited from the
same source, not necessarily by the same actions.

Q. If I could read Volume, Volume XIX of the
preliminary hearing transcript, page 125. Excuse me, 124, in
order to I guess get the context, 124, Line 24. No, wait a
minute., Excuse me. 125, Line 7 through 11.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR, KOCHIS: Well, I have it but I don't think its
inconsistent with what he just said so I would object.

THE COURT: What did he just say?

MR. KOCHBIS: Mr. Negus just asked him an opinion about
the process by which he took certain samples.

THE COURT: Is there, for example, anything inconsistent,
Mr. Negus?

MR. NEGUS: I think it is, yes. Well, let me back-up and
try to it more artfully if I can.

Q. Mr. Stockwell, you indicated that you thought that
the statement "blood is blood" was too terse.

Did you'in fact make that statement at the
preliminary hearing?

A, In some context, yes, I did.

Q. And did that context have to do with your failure
to make notes as to whether, as to whether the blood that you

collected was from a smear or was from a blood drop or was flung

COMPUTERIZED TRANSCRIPT

ey _t — C:ﬁ



&y

O 0 NN e W N

DR NN NNNN O e e e e e e e
® N AU e WM O VN WV oW N ~ O

3710

or was gravitational?

MR. KOCHIS: Well, I would object as not being relevant,
what he said at the preliminary.

THE COURT: Overruled.

MR. KOCHIS: Well, your Honor, it is not inconsistent
with anything he said here today. He's testified here today he
didn't make specific notes as to whether he took certain samples
frém the smear or a drop and whether the drop was going up or
down or sideways. What he said at preliminary is not
inconsistent with that,

THE COURT: Mr. Kegqus.

MR. NEGUS: He's indicated, however, he's stated
inconsistent positions. One, that he thought it was significant
I believe that whether a blood came from a particular source or
not but, two, that he didn't, he didn't, he didn't actually take
any notes of it.

THE COURT: Mr. XNegus, some of your inferences are
becoming a little less clear. I think that I have given you
very wide latitude but it's starting to run together and I am
going to start cracking the whip that under 352 it is becoming
particularly time-consuming.

However, you can finish up this one and I will
overrule his objection.

BY MR. NEGUS:
Q. Mr. Stockwell, did you -- at the preliminary do you

remember saying in that particular context of noting that you
didn't take any notes, that you just thought blood is blood?

A, Yes, somewhat inaccurately I made the statement
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blood is blood. I know as a scientist all blood is not the

same.,

Q. Then later on at the Hitch motion did you deny

making that statement?

A, I don't recall if I denied making it or not.
Q. Did you ever say, "I don't think I ever said that®?
A, I don't recall,

Q. Well, Mr. Stockwell, in your testimony here today
you've had the benefit, have you not, of having gone through
this material at least twice before on the witness stand.

THE COURT: Counsel, that's been brought out several
times now. Asked and answered.

MR. NEGUS: Mr., Stockwell, have your answers here on the
witness stand today changed as you have been educated on the
witness stand?

MR, KOCHIS: I would object to the form of the guestion.
It is argumentative,

THE COURT: No. Overruled on that basis.

THE WITNESS: I don't believe so.

MR. KOCHIS: Well, it is also not relevant. I don't know
if Mr. Negus is claiming he's educating people or what.

THE COURT: Overruled.

THE WITNESS: I don't believe my answers are
sﬁbstantially changing due to the fact that I'm sitting on the
witness stand and being asked questions.

BY MR. NEGUS:
Q. When you first began testifying at the preliminary

hearing, did you tell us that you were collecting blood so that
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a reconstruction of the crime could be done?

A. I believe'my term was “limited reconstruction®,

Q. Did you testify at page —-

THE COURT: Volume,

MR. KOCHIS: Volume XIX, Page 41, lines 15 through 17,

MR. ROCHIS: I need just a moment, your Honor.

" Volume XIX or XX?

MR. NEGUS: xix.

MR. KOCHIS: I have that portion. Again, I would object
in that.it is hearsay and it is not relevant.

THE COURT: As I understand it is foundational.
Overruled.

MR, NEGUS: Did you testify: "I attempted to take
evidence from the scene in such a way that later if a
reconstruction was required, that it can be done?®

Was that your original testimony at the preliminary
hearing? ‘

THE COURT: You have read it, counsel. If you wish to
attack the authenticity of the transcript you don't have to ask

the witness.

MR. NEGUS: Well, I know. It is foundational, your

Honor.
Q. Do you remember saying that?
A. I believe I said that, yes.
Q. Then as you were asked more questions under

cross—-examination, did you change that testimony so that it was
just a partial reconstruction that you were doing?

A. I would say that I qualified what I meant earlier
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by talking about a reconstruction.

Q. Did you have a reason for not taking blood samples
from the blanket and the two pillow cases and preserving them

serologically?

MR. KOCHIS: Objection. I believe this was the area we
handled sometime previous.

THE COURT: Yes, I believe so.

MR. NEGUS: Well --

THE COURT: I don't want to go through a subjective
thinking process, counsel. Sustained.

BY MR. NEGUS:
Q. Did the blanket and two pillows appear to have any

less evidentiary value to you than did the sheets?
A. One pillow definitely had different evidentiary
value in that it was not found on the bed, it was across the

room and into the bathroom.

The mere fact that it had changed locations from
its expected place gave it some real relevant evidentiary value.’
Whether that is serologically important, I don't know at this
point. |

Q. You didn't preserve any of that, any portion of the
blood on that pillow for analysis, correct?

A, That's correct.

Q. And likewise you presecved no portion of the blood
on the blue blanket for analysis; is that correct?

A, That's correct.
Q. At the preliminary hearing do you recall saying,

when you originally were testifying, that you attempted to take
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representative samples of arterial blood, blood from all the
different sources, that was deposited around the room?

A, I don't recall making that statement.

Q. When you first were asked about your time of
arrival at the Ryen house at the motions last spring, did you
forget that you had gone down to pick:up the axe?

A, At some point during the testimony I was asked
whether I'd ever left the Ryen residence, and I believe I said
that I did not recall leaving the scene, although at some point
I actually had left to go down and look at the hatchet.

Q. Okay. Right after you said you hadn't left then
you were prompted and you remembered, right?

A, Yes,

Q. Did you also orginal;y, for example, testify that
you arrived at the Ryen house at 2:00 o'clock in the afternoon?

A. There may have been something said to that effect.,

Q. And then did you, after that you were prompted and
did you then recalled that you had gone to the Hughes house
first mistaking it for the Ryen house and then actually arrived
45 minutes later?

A. Yes. Something to that effect.

Q. When you were in the Ryen house on June the 5th,
did you attempt to vacuum the carpet in the room to pick up
items of trace evidence?

A. No.

Q. On June 22nd did you go to the I.D, lot to vacuum

that carpet?

A. I don't remember the exact date, but yes.
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Q. From a criminalistics point of view, if you are
going to vacuum a carpet for trace evidence, is it preferable to

do it before 75 police officers have walked over it, if that's

possible?
A. Yes.
Q. Each time somebody who is, who is not connected

with the the actual commission of the crime passes over a crime
scene, especially as far as trace evidence is concerned, does
that produce the likelihood that the trace evidence is going to
be altered?

A, It may be altered, it may be relocated, it may be
taken away, additional evidence may be left behind. There are

many possibilities.

Q. On June the 22nd did you spray the carpet with

luminol?
A, Yes.
Q. Did you spray the -- was there still a lot of blood

on the carpet that was visible to the naked eye?

A, Yes.

Q. Did that glow mightily in the dark there when you
sprayed it with luminol?

A. Yes,

Q. Could you distinguish anything when you sprayed it
that you couldn't see with the naked eye?

A, We didn't know anything of exceptional‘value that
we could not already see as visible blood.

Q. Did you, within ten or fifteeh minutes of the time

that you finished spraying the stuff with luminol did you then
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roll up the carpet again?
A, Soon thereafter, yes.
Q. Ten or fifteen minutes is what you testified to
before?

A. Could be, yes.
Q. Had the carpet -- Well, excuse me.,
Had the blood on the carpet had a sufficient chance

to dry in those ten or fifteen minutes before you rolled it up?

A. I believe so, yes.

Q. When you sprayed the carpet on June the 22nd, was
it mildewed?

A. In portions.

Q. If blood is mildewed it can't be reliably typed; is
that right?

A. I don't believe so,

Q. You don't believe it can be reliably typed?

A, I don't believe that could be reliably typed, that
is correct.

Q. While you were working on June the Sth, 1983, with
Ms. Schechter, was there a problem of not having enough time to
do the job adequately?

A. I did not think there was a problem with time, no.

Q. When you took the different blood drops off the —-

off the sheets, did you consult with anyone with more experience

than yourself as to how many samples should be collected and

from where?
A. I believe I consulted with Mr. Ogino, not to each

and every individual spot that I collected, but how best to go
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about collecting the samples.

Q. Okay. By that do you mean he gave you advice as to
cut them out and put the little letter on the sheet where you
took them out from?

A. It was more than that. It was how to approach
different areas of the sheet and what samples to take.

Q. While -~ while you were collecting evidence and on
the night of June the 5th, with the exception of the fifteen
minutes in which the samples in the bathroom were collected and
helping you to fold the sheets, did Ms. Schechter primarily
stand there watching you taking notes?

A, She definitely wrote many of the notes herself,
what she did in addition to that I don't think I could say.

Q. Did you ever see her do anything besides stand
there?

A. She accompanied me on my tour through the house.
She did other things as well,-but what they were I don't think I
could say.

Q. She produced two pages of notes, essentially, while
you were collecting evidence; is that right?

aA. There are two pages of written notes, also the
items that you had me initial yesterday as to who the author
was. She has two diagrams as well as the written notes.

Q. So, whatever else -—— is it fair to say that
whatever else Ms. Schechter was doing, it wasn't collecting
evidence?

A. That's correct. Otherwise it would have been

entered into the log.
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Q. Showing you photographs 264, this person standing
holding something, looks like the person is writing, to the
right-hand side of that photograph, was that Ms, Schechter?

A, It could be.

Q. Does that —-- does that look like her?

A. She was the only female that I saw in the bedroom.
I would assume it was her.

Q. The same in photograph 2662

A, Yes.

Q. Did you make any attempt to document the different
areas where there was blood in the master bedroom?

A, I made some attempt at that, yes.

Q. Was that just by the notes of where you had -- you
yourself collected evidence?

A, More so the diagram of the bedroom that I drew.

Q. That doesn't purport to be complete or anything of

that nature, does it?

A, Of course not.
Q. Was there any blood on the ceiling?
A, I believe I've seen pictures that show blood on

certain portions of the ceiling.

Q. You've seen pictures?
A. Yes.
Q. ~Did you happen to notice any when you were out

there that particular day?
A, I don't remember if on that particular day I
noticed any particular bloodstains on the ceiling.

Q. We mentioned the word "reconstruction®, does that
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have a technical meaning in criminalstics?
A, It has a meaning, yes.
Q. Okay. What does that mean?
A, Reconstruction is basically attempting to sort out

the events that occurred at a particular location, possibly at a
particular time.

Q. And in the context of the -- of the Ryen crime
scene, does that, would that include the question how many
assailants there were?

A, It copld, yes.

Q. Would that include the question of where the
victims were when they were attacked?

A, It could, yes.

Q. Would that include the question of attempting to

sequence an attacks.

MR. KOCHIS: Your Honor, I would interpose an objection.
This is beyond the scope of any direct and it calls for

speculation. 1It's not relevant.

THE COURT: No. Overruled, both grounds, all grounds.
TBE WITNESS: It's possible.

BY MR. NEGUS:
Q. But you didn't do that, did you, you didn't try and

collect evidence .for those purposes?
A.  Would you list the three areas again..

Q. Number of assailants; location of victims when they
were attacked; and the sequence in which the victims were

attacked?

A. To a limited extent the second one is taken care of
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by the fact that I collected blood from areas around the room

that might help in positioning various victims around the room.
Q. well, you didn't do that in the sort of systematic

fashion that would be necessary to obtain a rigorous answer to

that particular question, did you?
A, Let's say I did not -- I did not do all that is

possibie for 1 do not have the requisite background in blood
spatter interpretation.
Q. The documentation that you provided us as to where

you got the items from, do you consider that an adequate job for

a criminalist?

A. I believe it depends also on actions of others. If
there was no photography done, no, definitely not. If there are
no measurements taken, no, definitely not. The way we handle a

crime scene normally the criminalist does not do those

functions.

Q. As to each item of evidence that you collected, did
you make sure that the I.D. Bureau identified it in place in
such a manner that itAcan be used in a reconstruction before you
collected it?

A. I believe I discussed with Deputy Duffy the items
that were being collected. I can't say for certain that
everything was photographed. 1I'd have to go through the
photographic records for that at this point.

Q. How about measurements, did you -- did you -- at
the crime scene did you make sure that the homicide people, if
they are the ones that are responsible for it, had measured the

location of each item before you collected it?
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A. I can't state for certain that each and every item
was measured, no,

Q. Well, Volume XIX, Page 37, Lines 4 through 9, when
you were testifying in the -—- in the early stages of your
testimony about -- about your job of collecting and preserving
evidence at the preliminary hearing, do you recall saying that:
'Beﬁore I collected any particular piece of evidence I would ask
the person from I.D. if they had photographed that,"?

A, I believe I said that, yes.

Q. That was -- actually it wés a bit of and idéalized
version of what actually happened on June the 5th. You didn't
actually do that, did you?

A, I can't recall for each and every item that that
was done.

Q. That's what should have been done but not
necessarily what was done; is that right?

A. It depends on the type of photographic record that
is being done. Many times an overall shot will encompass
several items of evidence and individual pictures need not be
taken.

Q. But you didn't ask Duffy each time you picked up an
item of evidence whether he had taken a picture, right? That
was an exaggeration?

A, I don't recall asking him each and every time I did
collect an item of evidence asking him, no.

Q. And similarly you didn't really ask homicide

whether they had measured an item each and every time before you

picked it up, right?
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A. That's true.

Q. Again, that would have been an exaggeration if you
testified that way at the preliminary hearing?

A. That's true.

MR. NEGUS: I am about to get into a different area. I'm

going to need to shuffle my with exhibits around if you want to
take the break now.

THE COURT: You will conclude with this witness today,
Mr. Negqus?

MR. NEGUS: I doubt it,

THE COURT: You. doubt it?

MR. NEGUS: Yes.

THE COURT: Let me see all counsel briefly in chambers.
Let's go in the back.

All right. We will take the afternoon recess

alleges early. Remember the admonition, ladies and gentlemen.

(Chambers conference reported.)

THE COURT: I won't keep you long, counsel. This is the
third day on him, Mr. Negus.

MR. NEGUS: Well, it's only, you know, but I -- it's not
a third day of my cross—examination on him.

THE COURT: Well, heaven's forbid. What else are you
going into?

MR.NEGUS: Well, I'm going to -- I expect to spend the
rest of the afternoon on luminol which I haven't got into yet.

THE COURT: Indeed you have, many times. You have gone

into the chemical composition, where all he sprayed it. What
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else are you going do on that?

MR, NEGUS: We certainly haven't done much of luminol on
this particular witness, haven't done the chemical composition
or that sort of stuff with hinm.

THE COURT: I thought we did.

MR. NEGUS: No, just a few --

THE COURT: Who did we do it with?

MR. NEGUS: Ogino, and Ogino didn't know most of the
answers. But Mr, Kochis lays the foundation again each time, so
Ivthink I'm obligated to go into that. Anyway, I expect the
luminol, just given the fact that it takes a long time for me to
get information out of Mr. Stockwell, I expect that to take most
of the rest of the afternoon.

| And I deliberately have been trying to hold off
most of my prior inconsistent statements till I get all the
transcripts in so I can go through it a little bit quicker, so I
expect to do that on Monday. That's basically what I expect

will happen.

THE COURT: Okay. So be it. You do have staying power.

MR. NEGUS: I'm not too sure about that. ¢

MR. KOCHIS: Your Honor, before we leave, the objection I
was interposing in front of the jury was this stuff about
reconstruction where we may have -- it may have been somewhat of
a proper area of inquiry for Hitch, but I think, as we brought
out during Hitch, there are many questions that could never be
ansﬁeted in a given criﬁe scene. Perhaps this scene is one of
them. |

THE COURT: That's argument though. He has a right to
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say, "Hey, you gquys didn't do the things that you should have
done to determine the real killers in this case.®™ And he has a
right to cross-examine on that point. I can't stop him from
going into reconstruction imperfection.

MR. NEGUS: As a practical matter, seeing as how it takes
five hours, if we start asking "why™ questions with Mr.
Stockwell -- I'm not trying to change your ruling on that,
because -- that I'm not supposed to ask him "why" questions, but
there are some areas where Mr. Kochis has brought out
interpretations of the evidence on the part of Mr. Stockwell,
and those areas particularly have to do with some of the stuff
about the luminol. And in that particular area where Mr. Kochis
has elicited interpretations, I think that it's fair to ask "why
didn't you do this? Why didn't you do that? Because that goes
to the -- that goes to the weight of his opinion and it's a
different type of area than: Did you pick up a piece --
particular piece of item of evidence?

So 1'd like to at least be able to bring that kind
of question which, I have fairly well avoided except for a few
lapses, which Mr. Kochis has caught me at.

THE COCRT: I can't see specifically how that —-- you
know, the specific areas that you're going to go into, couldn't
you get at it another way, saying, couldn't you conceive of
other criminalists doing this or that for that reason.

MR, NEGUS: Well, I've avoided that., I mean, I'd love to
ask that question, too, but I sort of have not asked that '
particular question. And if and when I do ask it, Mr. Kochis

objects.
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MR. KOCHIS: That's the specific area that the Court held
the day before we did general -- opening statement that he would
not go into that, and 1've got the transcripts on that. And I
did not ask reconstruction type questions of Mr. Stockwell based
on luminol. I asked two questions about: 1Is that consistent
with any type of activity? And that was it.

. MR. NEGUS: But that's a reconstruction type.

MR. KOCHIS: Nothing about blood splatter pattern, number
of assailants, positions, nothing. And now I'm forced to go
back over that.

MR. NEGUS: But that's today -- that is a reconstruction
question, He asked him: 1Is it consistent with? That's just
another word for asking him to reconstruct what happened. And
once he gets —-

THE COURT: Here's a man that collects the evidence.
You've got to go into the grounds or the method of evidence
collection, and that's just won't of the methods. I can't keep
that out.

MR. KOCHIS: Well, no, your Honor. He has gone in with a
fine tooth comb to the method of collection. I haven't objected
to any questions by Mr. Negus on the method of collection. But
the way he wants to expound something is, if I ask a question:
Do you see a stain in the photograph that’s visually consistent
with human blood? Yes, That doesn't opened the door up to
every question on reconstruction. I asked a question on
luminol: Was the reaction consistent with blood?

THE COURT: If you asked no question on reconstruction,

to my mind he would have a right to go into it with this witness
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since this witness is the specialist that went in there and

collected the evidence. PFor what purpose, neither I nor he

knows apparently. All right. So he can go into reconstruction.
I don't know how to anticipate your other
guestions. I may well sustain an objection to that.
MR. NEGUS: Okay. The other thing about the fact that
he's been, what I believe is the fact, that he's been told by

Gregonis and Ogino he didn't collect enough blood samples.

THE COURT: 1 know specifically what you're referring to
on that, and I suggest to you that there is a distinction
between cross-examining on what an expert relies upon in forming
his opinion and cross-examining on what an expert did not rely
upon in forming his opinion. 1In his opinion he did an adequate
job and he did not base that upon some peer contrary evidence or
contrary opinions. And so therefore one is for a hearsay
purpose the other is for a nonhearsay purpose.

MR. NEGUS: Can I make an analogy? A psychiatrist comes
in and says, "“"Joe Schmoo is a peaceful -- peace loving
individual." The prosecution is allowed to say, "Well, did you

take into -- did you take into account in your opinion, doctor,

others?® I mean, the expert can't just sort of --
THE COURT: "Have you heard,” and since you have to go
into have you heard, did he do that, and then did you take it

into account.

MR. NEGUS: I'm going to ask him --

X
J
!
/
“
| /
the fact that Joe Schmoo has murdered five people, raped three '1
L__d
B
1
/
'-
Nz

THE COURT: I'm satisfied as to my ruling on that. I'm

not changing it based upon what you're now saying.
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Anything further?

MR. KOTTMEIER: Yes, your Honor. Based upon Mr. Negus'
estimate, I then will not plan to bring Dr. Root until Tuesday.

THE COURT: We are not going to spend all day, are we, on
this?

MR. KOTTMEIER: We will we have two witnesses that follow
Mr. Stockwell, and due to the logistics of bringing Dr. Root
down it would be very difficult if we have an open-ended Monday
planned to have Dr. Root wait here for half day or all day.

THE COURT: I would suggest you use other witnesses as
fillers, sounds reasonable, rather than the doctor.

MR. KOTTMEIER: We are going to try to, but I am just
suggesting we may wind up with a period of time on Monday that
is not filled because of the difficulty of trying to get
everyone here.

TEE COURT: Just do the best you can. I recognize the
problems. Thank you.

Take a recess.
{Chambers conference concluded.)

(Recess taken.)

TEHE COURT: All right, Mr. Negus.

BY MR, NEGUS:

Q. Okay. Mr. Stockwell, at some point in time over
the last couple of days you mentioned that at some point in time

you did a test where you took an impression in blood off of a

shoe.

Can you describe what you did there?
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A. In that particular instance I was attempting to
make an impression on white sheeting that I could later
photog:aph. I basically put some blood on a spounge, placed the
shoe on the spounge to get blood onto the contours of the sole
of the shoe, put my foot in the shoe and then stepped on the
white sheeting to make the shoeprint,

Q. Okay. And it did in fact make a shoeprint?

A, Yes.

Q. Now, let's see, Did you -- when you did that did
you like keep walking with the, with the shoe on across the
sheet to see how many sﬁeps it was before the blood disappeared?

A. No.

Q. Well, had you all done any tests in your laboratory
along those lines as to how far, how far you can walk with blood
on your shoes before it sort of wipes off and you can't see it

with the naked eye anymore?

A, I haven't done any studies like that.

Q. Do you know of anybody else that has ddne any of
those?

A. Not to my knowledge.

Q. What about in your -- in your tests with luminol.
Have you ever -- have you ever done any tests along those lines

with luminol to see how far a person could walk before their

footprint is no longer distinguishable by the luminol?

A. No.
Q. Is there, in the scientific literature that you are
aware of, is there any such -- I mean, is that sort of something

that people have done published worked on?
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A. Not in that nature, no.

Q. What about, what about with sinks, s-i-n-k-s. Did
you ever like put any blood on your hands, wash it in the sink
and then come by later and see what kind of reaction you got
from the luminol?

A. No.

Q. Going back to our sink picture here, where we have

got this visible reddish~-brown stain on the side of the sink

there.

» If you were to spray that stain with luminol and it
glowed in the dark, and then you were going, then you would take
some of your ortho-tolidine and were to scrape some of the stain
off and put it on your filter paper and add the ortho-tolidine
and the peroxide, and you were to get a reaction with all have
those tests, there is not a lot of things in the world that that
could be other than blood; is that right?

A. That is true.

Q. When you can actually see something, see a stain
that looks reddish brown, even without any chemical tests at all
can you tell about as much as whether the substance is blood or
not as it would be if you sprayed some luminol on it?

A, If the stain is visible in most instances I would
say that eyesight is better than using luminol on it.

Q. Okay. When you get down then to the invisible
stains though, that's where obviously luminol has some sort of
advantages over just eyesight; is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, when you all say that, well, the reaction is

COMPUTERIZED TRANSCRIPT

==

-
a b8 4

‘rf'T-Q



TN

W O N G s WN

N N N N N N N N [ | and = - b b=t ot [ ’

3730
consistent with blood, it is -- you also could just as well say
it is consistent at any time as having stepped in horse manure;
is that right?

A, It is possible, yes.

Q. Well, visually you can normally tell the difference
between horse manure and blood, right?

A, If you see a stain on the floor, that is true.

Q. The is chart that we have on the board here, No.
206, we basically, I think with another witness, have gone
through the chemistry before, but when you do the ortho-tolidine
test in a proper manner, using the two-step test, when you do
the ortho-tolidine plus certain minerals you get a color, right?

A. Yes. |

Q. Then if you don't get a color on the first step you
go onto the second step, you have, and you have ortho-tolidine
plus animal, vegetable products, plus peroxide and you get a
color; is that right?

A. It is possible with both of those, yes.

Q. Basically, that's once you have done the test, if
you can't see what you are doing that's basically all that you
know, right? That you have what you know is either -- first on
the first step you know that there is mineral reacting with it,
one of a variety of minerals, and then secondly on the second
step that if you get a reaction it is one of a variety of
mineral or vegetable products, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, I suppose when you people are looking for

blood you tend to -- when you say consistent with blood, you say
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that rather than consistent with horse manure because that's
what you are looking for; is that right? And that's your
hypothesis, oh, gee, it could be blood; is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. The luminol is even less sensitive than the
ortho-tolidine, right? You get the animal, vegetable and
mineral products and it will give off light.

A. To be perfectly accurate it is less specific.

Q. Let's try and keep it as little technical as we
can. But basically where the ortho~tolidine will sort of
distinguish to have the minerals to the luminol, won't it?

A, Ortho-tolidine makes more distinction than does
luminol, yes.

Q. Now, I take it that from what you said before that
you personally, as far as, as far as certain tests are
concerned, you haven't like taken either of these substances and
tested them against everything in the known world to distinguish
what they will react to it or noi, right?

A, That's true.,

Q. So, basically in stating your particular opinions
about these matters before the jury, as far as the chemistry of
these particular substances, you are relying primarily upon the
published literature; is that right? '

A, Yes,

- Q. In the scientific world is there a premium put on
literature that is published as opposed to unpublished?

A, Yes,

Q. And is that because --not because of any snobbery
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on the part of the people but because the published literature,
too, is subject to what is called peer review. People have to
look at it, study it, and if there is something wrong with it
because it is published inaccurately, other people can write and
say, you are all wrong.

Is that basically the theory behind it?

A, That's true.

Q. Now, in the literature about these what are called
catalytic or presumptive tests, that's what they are called,
right?

A, They are presumptive, yes.

Q. And they are catalytic.

A, Yes.

Q. Starting at the bottom, amongst the mineral
substances that will cause either a step-one reaction with
ortho-tolidine or reaction with luminol. Is lead oxide?

A, I don't recall if I have specifically seen that

compound listed. It may be.

Q. How about Iodine. Do.you know about that?

A, I've not certain about that one.

Q. How about bleach?

A, I have seen bleach listed.

Q. Certainly we went through the bleach business many

times before, right?

A, Yes.

Q. Various salts of copper.
A. Yes.

Q. Various salts of nickel.
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A. I can't say that I have seen that. I can't recall
literature, but I would assume so.

Q. And rust, the iron oxide,

A. Yes.,

Q. Anmongst the various vegetable compounds that we're
dealing with, would there be algae?

A. Again, I don't know that I have actually seen that

in the literature that I can recall, but it seems reasonable.

Q. Fungae?

A. I don't recall seeing that.

Q. How about bacteria. And I have aerobic bacteria.
Bacteria are alive in oxygen, right.

A, Yes,

Q. And anaroebic bacteria are bacteria that 1live in
absence of oxyéen.

For example, if you had bacteria in your plural

cavity that would normally be an anaerobic spot on the body,

.

right?

A. Yes.

Q. Basically that bacteria are at least divided into
those two main categories, right?

A, That'S»corfect.

Q. So, basiéally in the literature it has been found
that all aerobic bacteria and some of the anaerobic bécteria
will react with these various catalytics and cast and produce
your color change and light reaction.

A. I have seen reports that some bacteria can react.

Q. Is it true -- have you ever seen the statement that

COMPUTERIZED TRANSCRIPT

—_—
_1

f-l'lllnl:



W O N e W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

3734

all aerobic bacteria and some anaerobic.

A, No. I have never seen that statement that I can
recall.

Q. Do you think it is untrue?

A. I would rather doubt that every single species of
aerobic bacteria was tested.

Q. Probably not. But then green leaves. They have

been listed in literature as various substances which will react

and produce the reaction.

A. Yes.
Q. And then there's a whole -- and I have just listed

a few -- a whole list of house, common household fruits and
vegetables that will react; is that right? |

A, Yes.

Q. And in fact in the literature, in the book that we
have mentioned a couple days ago, this source book in forensic
serology -- well, this book here that I have in my hand, this
book, that's basically a review of all the different articles on
forensic serolcgy and related subjects that have been published
up until 1981 or '82, whenever the author stopped collecting
material for his boock; is that right?

A, I don't know if it is an entire review of all the
literature but it is quite extensive.

Q. Certainly the most extensive thing that has been
published in the area.

A. That I have seen, yes.

Q. In that particular book, did Mr. Gaensslen report

on some studies where criminalists have actually gone out to
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shoe repair places in England and tested a bunch of old shoes
and found that at least a certain number of them would give a
positive reaction using what's called the benzedine test?

A, I believe I have read that, yes.

Q. And the benzedine test, ortho-tolidine and
benzedine, as far as here we are concerned, are basically
chemically indistinguishable; is that right?

A. For the most part, yes.

Q. As far as the results with the particular type of
issues that we're talking about in this particular case they're
basically indistinquishable; is that right?

A, Yep.

Q. The only reason that people use ortho-tolidine more

than they use benzedine is because it is felt that benzedine may

be sémehow poisonous?

A, Carcinogenic. Cancer-causing, yes.

Q. That is a class of poison

A, I suppose it is.

Q. What about various animal substances that I have

listed there. We have -- you have already said blood will

react. Will pus?

A, I imagine it could.
Q. Bone marrow, leukocytes?
A, Are you making a distinction between bone marrow

and leukocytes?

Q. No., Leukocytes out of the bone marrow. ﬂf am not

certain if they would or not.

Q. Brain tissues?
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A, I believe it would. It has blood in it.
Q. Spinal fluid?
A, It may if it has blood introduced in it.
Q. Intestine, lung saliva and mucous?
A, Intestine and the lungs have blood flowing through
them. I'm fairly sure they would react.
G. Well, what about just the -- just substances
themselves without any blood in them.
A. I am not certain.
Q. Showing you -- this is a book, "Forensic Science

Handbook.®" This is one of the books that you have in the past
said is most importgnt to you as a reference book; is that
right? )

A, I have referred to it, yes.

Q. And asking you to look at Page 273. Mr. Lee, who
wrote the chapter on the "Identification in Grouping and
Bloodstains®, back over here has listed a whole series of things
which will give quote false positive results with the benzedine
test; is that right?

A, He speaks of false positive, yes, and he defines

what he means by that.

Q. False positive is some substance other than blood

which will produce a result which you can't tell from the

results that it -- which would be produced by blood, excuse me.
A. That's not exactly what he states in his
definition.

Q. What does he say?

A. "A false positive reaction may be defined as any
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positive reaction given by any substance other than
bloodstains.®

Q. So, he lists all of these things that I have on the
chart, which I think, let me think, there may be, with the
exception of the o0ld shoes and the algae, fungae and bacteria as
false positives; is that right?

A, He lists those which you have listed.

Q. And some others that I didn't bother to list as
well; is that right?

A, That's correct. And he lists some more that you
have not listed.

Q. Right. So basically that's what we have up there
is what it says, is examples and not Mr. -- not Mr. Lee's
complete list?

A, Yes.

Q. Now, are you -- are you familiar with an article by
Edward Blake and D, J. Dillon titled "Microorganisms and the
Presumptive Test for Blood "which appeared in the "Journal of

Police Science and Administration®™ in 19732

A. I've heard of it, not having read it.

Q. You haven't read that?

A, I can't recall specifically reading it. 1I've heard
about it.

Q. From what you heard, did -- did they -- those two

gentlemen analyze a chemical called catalase, c-a-t-a-l-a-s-e, I
think; as the chemical in algae, fungi, and bacteria that
produced false positive's in those particular subjects?

A. I don't recall discussing that with anyone, whether
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that was the exact substance.
Q. Well, is catalase present in algae, fungi, all
aerobic and some anaerobic bacteria?
A, I'm not sure what catalase is so I could not say
whether it was present in them.
Q. Now, when -- when you and -- and Mr. Ogino were --

were running the luminol tests at the Ryen house on June 10th, I
think you said it was, was the significance of some of the
things that you saw, the pattern that was formed by the reaction

of the luminol and whatever substance it was?

A, Yes.
Q. Specifically the -- what looked to be shoe
impressions. Was that -- were those examples of things where

what was significant was the pattern?

A, Yes.

Q. Those -- those shce impressions under the
circumstances of that particular case could have been
significant even if the impression was in horse manure as
opposed to blood; is that true?

A, That's true.

Q. Now, you indicated just sort of in passing I think

yesterday that you had had some experience with luminol prior to

June the 10th, 1983,

On how many occasions had you used luminol at a

crime scene prior to June 10th, 198372

A, Possibly once or twice,

Q. Well, let's see. You used it once or twice

actually at the -- at the Lease house, right?
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A. That was one time, yes.

Q. Well, didn't you come back on both the 8th and the

9th to try it there?

A. I believe it was just the 8th.
Q. Any other place that you can recall?
A. I thought I had worked with it in another case

prior to that occasion at a crime scene, but I can't recall it
offhand right now.

Q. Well then, would it be fair to say that -~ that at
least your experience was limited?

A, Yes.

Q. Now, in your -- in your particular laboratory, the
laboratory subscribes for you to a series of periodicals; is

that right?

A, Yes.

Q. And they would -- they have those periodicals there
available to you to use as a reference in -- ip your work?

A, Yes.

Q. When -- when you -- when you went out to the -- to

the crime scene, did you have in mind to photograph what you
saw?

A, Are you speaking on June the 10th?

Q. Okay. Let's =~ yeah, June 10th.

A, We came prepared to take photographs, yes.

Q. Okay. 1In your laboratory is one of the -- one of
the journals that you have there the "Journal of Forensic
Sciences®?

A. Yes,
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Q. And that's the official journal of the American
Academy of Forensic Sciences, it's one of the biggies in the
field as it were; is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. In that particular journal is there an article
about just that subject, essentially how to take pictures of

bloodstains that are made visible by luminol?

A. I believe we've talked about there before, yes.

Q. And that was an article that was published by some
folks from -~ from North Carolina whose names are Zwiedinger,
Lytle, and Pitt, Zwiedinger spelled, Z-w-i-d-i-n-g-g-e-r, Lytle

spelled, L-y-t-l-e, and Pitt spelled, common spelling, P-i-t-t;

is that correct?

A. You misspelled Zwiendinger.

Q. I did? How do you spell it?

A. Z-w-i-e~d~i-n-g-e-r.

Q. Now did you go out and did you read that article

before you went out to the field?

A, I don't recall having read that article before we
went to the Ryen house.

Q. In the various reference books that you have, is

that article the one that's most often cited about photographing

luminol?
A. It seems reasonable.
Q. In fact, is that the only article that you're aware

of that's available in the English language about that subject?
A, It's the only one I've heard of to date.

Q. Why didn't you look at it before you went out
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I really couldn't say other than I had not gotten

to read that article beforehand.

Q.
A.

Q.

Did you -- you've read it since?
Portions of it at least, yes.

Did you and Mr. Ogino on the -—— on the 10th attempt

to take pictures the way that they describe in that particular

article?
A.

Q.

No.

With respect to the only patterns that were on the

tile, were those the clearest patterns?

A,
Cclearest.
Q.
A,
Q.
A,

Q.

For what was there, I believe they were the

You didn'i sketch those patterns?
No, I did not.

And didn't measure them?

No, I did not.

In no way attempted to take any sort of notes or

documentation whatsoever; correct?

A,

Qo

Only to their relative position in the house,

But as far as the -- the pattern which is, I

suppose, what you were interested in, you didn't do anything as

far as the pattern is concerned; is that right?

A,
Q.
the -- up

where you

That's correct.
Now, the other -- the two footprints coming up
the stairs from the living room, were they in an area

had seen on June the 5th people going up and down to

eat, to have briefings, that sort of thing?
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A. Yes.

Q. And when you -- when you sprayed them with the
luminol, basically those patterns were —- were so blurred that
you really couldn't even distingquish a pattern on them; is that
true?

A, That's correct.

Q. It looked like the general shape of a foot through?

A, Yes.

Q. The two patterns that were -- that were in the
hall, that is, close to the patterns that were found closest to
the actual scene of the violence, could you distinguish a
pattern on those?

A, Yes,

Q. Showing you Exhibit 498, is that a sketch that you
did at the preliminary hearing of the general pattern that you

observed in luminol on the rug?

A. Yes.
Q. And you irndicated that -- I take it that when you
saw it you were -- you were concerned as to whether or not it

could have been your particular footprint, is that right?

A, That was one of my concerns, yes.

Q. Bu£ you found out that it wasn't because it was the
wrong size?

A. Yes. It was larger than my shoe size.ultimately
when I relinked the two pieces of carpeting.

Q. So, you didn't make that particular impression in

the carpet?
A. I don't feel that I did. 1I can't see how my shoe
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size would fit what I saw.

Q. And in taking -- making that particular -- in
making that pazticula: opinion you also had an opportunity to
observe the impression on the tile which was -- which at least
in part was clear; is that right?

A. Yes,

Q.. Are you using that as also one of the bases for
your particular opinion that it wasn't you that did it?

A. I'm not using what I saw on the tile for that

particular opinion.

Q. Just what you saw on the carpet?
A. Yes.
Q. On -- When did you this drawing for me before

the -- you indicated, did you not, that that little arcow
indicates that this pattern continues along the length of the
shoe; is that right? We stopped you before you had to go
through all the work of putting in the whole pattern.

A. Okay. At the time of the preliminary hearing I
said the pattern continued for the length of the impression.

The impression on June the 10th only showed the toe

area of the shoe because, as I said, the carpeting had been
severed, thus taking away the rest of the shoe.

Q. Okay. when you -- eventually you got the missing
part of the carpet and sprayed that as well; is that correct?

A. Yes, back at the laboratory.

Q. Okay. And you found out that in fact the
impression did continue?

A, The impression continued, but the pattern was no
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longer visible.

‘ Q. In your particular -- in your particular shoe there
appears to be a -- first of all a wear pattern. 1It's where I
guess the balls of your feet go.

Did you observe any such diminution of the zig-zags
on the shoe that you saw on the carpet?
A. ‘I don't think I could say at this time., I

didn't -- make a drawing at the time that I saw the inpression.

Q. There's also, looks like on your particular shoe
two or three inch gap between -- between sole and heel. Was
there that two or three inch gap on the -- on the surface of the

carpet when you pieced it together?
A, There was a very small -- very small area where
there was little or no activity, but not the size of that gap.
Q. Is that another thing that you take into account in

your opinion that you didn't make that particular shoe

impression?
A, Yes,
Q. And in making shoe -- in making shoe comparisons,

that's basically the type of work that criminalists do, they try
and see whether or not a certain class characteristics, like
size, shape, that sort of thing, of the shoe, such that one shoe

could have left the impression, is that basically the

philosophy?
A, Yet.
Q. Now, when you -- back at the laboratory you say

that you couldn't see the pattern any more; is that correct?

A. Yes.
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Q. At the -- at the laboratory did you -- d4id you
photograph the impression?

A. Yes.

Q. Basically the impression that you photographed is
sort of a blur or a blue glow in the shape of a foot without
much of a pattern being visible; is that right?

A, That's true, yes.

Q. And the -- the general shape of the pattern had

lost some of its definition and sort of spread out a little bit?

A, Yes.
Q. By the way, did you collect a large series of
photographs from -- of the shoe wear of various and sundcry

sheriff's personnel and civilians who were thought to have had

access to the Ryen home?
A, Yes.

Q. Any of those other shce impressions that you saw,
did they all appear to be consistent in pattern with the

impression that you saw in luminol on the night of June the

10th?

A, Yes.

Q. Which one?

A, The shoes thét I saw from Deputy Coins from the
West End.

Q. Okay. To your knowledge was Deputy Coins somebody

who wasn't in the house until the 15th of June?

A. I was not given any information as to what times

these individuals were there and what times they were not.

Q. Did the -- when did you see those shoes from Deputy
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Coins?
A, I don't recall -- Approximately August 9th of this

year.
Q. Oh, of this year?
A, Yes.
Q. Did you see -- do you know Deputy Coins?
A. Not personally.
Q. I mean, would you -- would you recognize him if you

saw him walk in the courtroom?
A, No.
Q. Any other shoes besides Deputy Coins that you —-

that you saw that could have matched those impressions?

A, No.

Q. The part of the carpet that you matched up back at
the laboratory, did you go over and -- and fetch that from the
I.D. loft?

A. Yes.

Q. Andvit was your understanding when you went over

and fetched it that it was carpet that had been removed by the
career criminal folks on June the 6th?

A, Yes.

Q. And putting it next to the piece that you saw on
June the 10th, they -- the pieces matched up so that the -- that
you got like two more or 1éss complete shoes?

aA. Yes. |

Q. So, from that you could infer that the same shoe
made the impression on both pieces of carpet, that was at least

consistent with that?
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A, I don't know if I could say the same shoe made both
impressions.
Q. Well, let me -- I see I did that a bit sloppily.

If I could just, using a blue pen, put a
continuation.

Where I put the blue continuation on 6-F, is that
essentially when you pieced it together how the impressions
would have appeared?

A, One of the impressions definitely continued., I

don't believe the other impression did.

Q. Which which one was which?

A. I believe the one nearest the wall was the one that
continued.

Q. Okay. So I will put a -- an "X" over the one that

.

doesn't; is that correct?

A, Okay.

Q. Now, from the position of the carpet, was the one
that's closest to the wall, the complete shoeprint, was that
consistent with having been made by a single shoe?

A. Yes.

Q. The photographs that you took and impression that
you saw back in the lab, was that parﬁicular impression
consistent with the luminol which Qéu had sprayed at the house
on June the 10th, having seeped into .the carpet and diffused the
blood or whatever other substances was in the carpet, blurting’
the image and obliterating the pattern?

A, That is what happened, yes.

Q. You said that is what happened. We're getting
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beyond -- you are sure that was what happened as opposed to it
was just consistent with?

A. I am fairly sure that is what happened, the only

thing that I can think of at this point to account for that.
Q. Did you foresee that happening when you, when you
were out at the scene on June the 10th?

A, No.
Q. On June -- on June the 10th, the doorway that led

into the master bedroom had been carted away; is that right?

A, I don't recall.

Q. But it was possible if, for example, you put a
blanket over the doorway there, that you could just close off
enough doors so that there was no source of external light
coming into that particular hallway; is that right?

A. Possible.

Q. So, if you had followed the procedures in the
writing of the article you would have been able to get a nice
crisp black and white photo of the impression out there at scene
on June the 1l0th.

A, It was possible to photograph that, yes.

Q. Now, let's see. The shower. The reaction that you
saw on the inside of the shower door in the Ryen master
bathroom. Was that over the whole door?

A, I don't recall.

Q. Well, did you take any notes?

A, There were notes made to locations in the house

where luminol reactions were seen?

Q. What was the condition of that bathroom door?

COMPUTERIZED TRANSCRIPT

o

f . ~ O N P R C:h



W @ N O W N

bt
o

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

3749

A. I don't know what you mean "what was the
condition®.

Q. Well, was it glass?

A, As I recall glass, or something like glass.

Q. Did you spray both the inside and the outside?

A. I'm not sure.

Q. Where did you get -- did you get the specks? Do

you remember whether you got the specks on the inside or the

outside?
A, They were on the inside.
Q. And when was it that you, that you came up with the

idea that those might be fly specks?

A, I believe the ~- I believe the idea was really
formalized on June 30th when we went back to collect the "UU"
items I noticed other small specks in other areas of the house.

Q. The ones that -- the ones that you collected, the

"UU®, I guess 2 through 4.

A, Yes.
Q. They were right down there near the carpet?
A, I don't recall if they were very close to the

carpet or not.

Q. They were low down, correct?

A, I believe lower than waist high.
Q. Did they glow in the dark when you were spraying

the luminol on June the 5th?
A, I don't believe we sprayed the walls.
Q. Well, when you spray the stuff does it -- you spray

along the carpet, it does get along the edges of the bottom of
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the wall,
A, It might hit very low portions of the wall.
Q. Have you done any experiments with luminol to see

whether a speck of blood as small as that which would be
deposited by the feet of the fly would in fact give you a glow
from luminol?

A, I'm not sure what the question is you are asking.
Could you repeat that?

Q. When you spray luminol is there -- first of all,
you spray luminol long enough everything is going to glow,
right?

A, Yes, luminol has that tendency.

Q. As you spray the stuff, just in general, there's a
certain amount of background light that is given off just in
spraying it, right?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Now, with respect to the fly specks, just
the kind, the amount of blood that would be small enough to be a
fly's footprint, as it were, do you know if you could just, if
you could, if that would produce a glow which would be

distinguishable from just the background luminescence that you

see?
A. Yes, it would.
Q. Have you done experiments to show that?
A, I have not done any experiments with just very

small specks of blood, no.
Q. So you are just basing that on your own -- that is

an inference that you've made from having seen luminol sprayed,
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is that why you are saying that?

A. With the inneraction between luminol and blood, and
the amount of light shed, it would be enough to distinguish it
from the background.

Q. = How many different specks did you see on the inside
of that shower? I mean, were they all over the place or just a
few?

A, I didn't count them. There were not a multitude of
specks.

Q. Was there, was there anything inside the shower
that would have attracted flies?

A, If my memory serves me there was sort of a plant
off in one corner of the shower, a planter. If there was
something on that that might attract flies, I don't know. I
didn't take an exceptionally good loock at it.

Q. When you were out there on June the 5th did you
notice flies like congregating inside the shower?

A. I didn’'t notice that or make any note of that, no.

MR. NEGUS: I think éhat this is probably good as time as
any, your Honor.

THE COURT: You must return Monday, 9:30 on the 26th of
Novenmber.

When I repeat my reference to the admonition to
you, ladies and gentlemen, don't just take it for granted, it is
so very important. Don't try to research, don't go to the
library and try to read hp on it, don't play detective in any
way, just be patient with us. |

I don't kncw, this gets tiresome, and it is long
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but it is the nature of the business that we're on. So be very
mindful of the admonition. Don't talk to your spouse, anybody
that you might be chummy with, don't let anybody discuss it with
you, don't express or form any opinion on the case until it is
finally submitted to you, which is a long time from now.

Other than that, I wish you all a very happy
Thanksgiving and return, if you would, at the hour of 9:30. The
same with you, counsel.

~-00000~-~

(Adjournment)
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SAN DIEGO, CALIFORNIA. MONDAY, NOVEMBER 26. 1984 _9:35_A.M..

--00000--

THE COURT: Good morning, everybody. I trust you all had
a pleasant holiday. Everybody is present.
Mr. Stockwell. you are still under oath to tell the
truth,
Mr. Negqus, try to conclude.

MR. NEGUS: Well, we're certainly hoping to, your Honor.

DAVID C. STOCKWELL,
The witness on the stand at the adjournment, having been

previously sworn, testified further as follows:

CROSS EXAMINATION (Resumed)

BY MR. NEGUS:
Q. Mr. Stockwell, on this Exhibit 500. the lab report.

each time that a separate document is submitted by the lab, a
separate criminalist will sign the parts for which they're
responsible; is that right?

A, Yes.

Q. And there's also an, there's also a signature after
each, after each particular part where somebody sort of takes
over all responsibility for that particular segment; is that
right? ‘

A, Yes.

Q. In this particular case, were you the person who

was in overall charge of logging in the items of evidence and
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accounting for all the different pieces of property that were

received by the Sheriff's office in the course of this

investigation?
A, I would say for most of the evidence, I was.
Q. well, for example, whenever people came out to see

the evidence you were the person that would take it out and show
it to them, that sort of thing,
A, If I was present at that time, yes.

Q. And similarly, when there was summaries of all the

- different items of evidence and the tests that were performed on

it made, you were the one that drew up that particular summary

of all the items of evidence; is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. During the course of your receiving evidence
accerding to that particular, that particular task of yours, did
you ever receive, from the Lease house., a pair of blue

thong-like sandals?
A. I would have to go through the entire list to find

out if I did or not.
Q. Well. do you ever recall such things without going

through the entire list?
A, I've gone through the list, some items are stated
as, for instance, articles of clothing, and it does not go in

depth into what each article of clothing is.
Q. Well, all the items of clothing that were removed

from the Lease house were in the "J" series; is that right?
A. Those that were collected by criminalists, I

believe so. yes.
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Q. Any other, any other, any other items of clothing
that was received by your laboratory that you can recall having
been collected at the Lease house?

A, Without going through the entire list, I don't
recall any.

Q. Did you ever receive from the Lease house. any
items of clothing that were listed as having come from the
washer/dryer of the Lease house?

MR. KOCHIS: Your Honor, I would object, it is beyond the
scope of the direct. We didn't cover in any fashion on direct
the Lease house with this witness.

MR. NEGUS: I think we covered though his duties as the
person that was collecting and preserving all the different
evidence in this particular case.

THE COURT: But in another part or area. I think that is
a good objection, sustained.

BY MR. NEGUS:

Q. Well. in this document that you have before you,
you and Mr. Ogino both signed the general overall thing on June
the 14th; is that right?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. And then the next, first supplement after
June the l4th was August lst; is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And the final section where it says "Results and
Conclusions and Disposition of Evidence”, you signed that; is

that correct?

A. At the end of that report, I signed it, yes,
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Q. Okay. There is nobody else's signature under
"Results and Conclusions® other than yours; is that right?
A, That's correct.
Q. And your results and conclusions, August the 1st,

was that "No tests or examinations have been conducted at this

time"; is that correct? That's what you wrote.

A, Yes.

Q. That was incorrect; is that correct?

A, To some extent, yes.

Q. With respect -- getting back just for a second to

the bedding items, and showing you particularly 409 and 410,
As to A-7, the blue blanket, and A-8, the top

sheet. 1Is there any doubt in your mind that A-7 was collected

prior to A-8?
A. I have no dcubt that the blue blanket was collected

before the top flat sheet,

Q. Showing you Exhibit 4 -- by the way, you never took
down yourself a time for the collection of the blue blanket; is
that right.

A. That's correct.

Q. And on the list of notes that you have before you,
from Miss Schechter, A-8 is the first one that she listed; is
that right?

A. Yes.

Q. Could you find in your laboratory notes the

original of a sketch which, the copy of which is exhibit, excuse

me, 493. Okay.

That sketch was a view of the master bedroom south
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wall and some of the items along that wall that was done by Ms.

Schechter; is that right?
A, Yes.
Q. Okay. And at some point in time you told her that

she didn't have to do a sketch, you'd do it yourself; is that

right?
A. I did not tell her she did not have to do a sketch,
I told her that I would do my own sketch.

Q. As to the. as to the various items that are listed

on that, does she have a list of items 1 through 82
MR. KOCHIS: Objection, it is hearsay.

MR. NEGUS: Mr. Stockwell has relied upon Ms. Schecter's

notes in giving times and so testified.

THE COURT: What he has is a conclusion in his mind as to

what she has or hasn't done.

MR. NEGUS: Well, it has got to do with the basis of his

particular opinion as to what time. In the course of direct

examination he referred repeatedly to Ms. Schechter's notes.

THE CCURT: Reframe your question. Sustained.

BY MR. NEGUS.

Q. weil. does this document that has been marked as

Exhibit 493, does that have a time of collection for the blue

blanket on it?
A, I can't tell from these notes exactly what it has a

time listed for.
Q. Okay. Let's just look here. There was A-7, a blue
blanket in blue ink with the letters "1720" immediately to the

right of it; is that right?
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MR. KOCHIS: CObjection, it is hearsay if it is not his
notes,

THE COURT: Yes. Sustained.

MR. NEGUS: The exception --

THE COURT: We're not concerned with his state of mind.

MR. NEGUS: No, your Honor, but he refreshed his
recollection using Ms. Schechter's notes, therefore one is
allowed whenever somebody has used a document to refresh in
recollection, to introduce any parts of it. That is an
exception to any rule about hearsay. He's relying --

THE CCURT: Mr. Kochis.

MR. KOCHIS: My understanding is that he didn't refer to
that document when he gave his earlier time.

THE COURT: You will have to lay a better foundation that
he himself refreshed his recollection with'that particular
information.

BY MR. NEGUS:

Q. You used all the notes in the file from Ms.
Schechter of that time to refresh your recollection as to when
things were taken, did you not?

A, Up to this point, no.

Q. Well, you ha&e no present recollection, other than
Ms. Schechter's notes, as to the times of any of the items being
collected; is that correct, with the exception of the A-8 when
you think you wrote on the bag.

A, That's correct.

Q. So in giving your timeline that you did as to the

the times that various things were collected, Ms. Schechter's
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notes are your only source; is that right?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. Looking at this particular document,
according to Ms. Schechter's notes that you have been relying
on, A-7 was collected at 5:20 p.m.; is that correct?

A, I'm sorry, I have not relied on this document yet,

Q. Is this document somehow apart from Ms. Schechter's
notes? I mean, is it something that's less significant in your
mind?

THE COURT: Counsel, it makes no difference. I will
sustain the previous objection, don't go into that time element.
It is hearsay, conclusionary. It makes no difference whether he
relied upon it or not. I allowed you to see it, but not
cross—-examine it,

You can take it up later, but not now. Proceed.
BY MR. NEGUS:

Q. Assuming that Ms. Schechter, and I'm going to
introduce this evidence later on, your Honor, assuming that Ms.
SChéchter noted dcwn a time of collection for the blue blanket
as 5:20 p.m., would that cause you to change your testimony as
to the time that you collected A-8?

A, Yes, it could.

MR. MEGUS: If I could read, your Honor. from Volume XX,
Page 56, lines -- this would be of the preliminary hearing --
Lines 8 through 12. and then skipping some consistent material
to Lines 24 and 25.

MR. KOCHIS: I have that that.

. BY MR. NEGUS:
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Q. (Reading)

"Question: On the night of June 5th. did you see
anybody in the house from the Bureau of
Administration of the Sheriff's Department?

"Answer: I don't know that many people in the
Bureau of Administration.

"Question: Did you see Lieutenant Bradford of
homicide?

"Answer: Yes."

Could you put Jimmy Bradford under Eugene Majors

there on the list.

A. (Witness complied).

THE COURT: Anything else on the chart?
BY MR. NEGUS:

Q. Do you recall now having had the transcript read to

you where you saw Jimmy Bradford?

A. Not exactly., no,

Q. Was it inside the house?

A. I believe so, yes.

Q. Could you put then 6-5 under "Rest of House" next

to him and put a check mark.

A. (Witness complied).

Q. On the date that you sprayed the house with
luminol, I believe that it was June 10th, did you spray the
areas where the stains UU-10. UU-11, UU-12. UU-14 and UU-13 were
collected with the luminol before they were colLected?

A. I know we sprayed the area where UU-13 was

collected. That is inside the shower area. I don't recall
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whether or not the areas UU-10, 11, 12 and 14 were sprayed with
luminol or not.
MR. NEGUS: Well. let me -~ if I could, your Honor. I'd
1ike to read from 3598 of the motion transcripts, Line 26,
through 3599. Lines 14.
THE COURT: Just a moment.
MR. KOCHIS: Does Mr. Nequs have a Volume number?
MR, NEGUS: It appears to be Volume XXXV but I couldn't
swear to it.
MR. KOCHIS: I have that.
BY MR. NEGUS:
Q. (Reading)
"Question: Exhibit H-289, the letters in orange
were put there by yourself at the preliminary
hearing; is that correct?
"Answer: Yes,
"Question: And they correspond to the numbers
in the 'UU' series of blood that you and Mr. Qgino
collected on June the 30th; is that correct?
"Answer: Yes,
"Question: How many of those had you sprayed with
luminol?
"Answer: .Five.
"Question: What were their numberé?

“answer: 10. 11. 12, 13, 14.

"Question: Why didn't you collect those samples
before you sprayed the luminol?

"Answer: I don't know,
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And if we can find it, I'm prepared to stipulate
that H-289. the little diagram of the Ryen house with orange
numbers on it that I showed Mr. Stockwell last week, which would
be exhibit --

MR. KOCHIS: If and when we find it, if I could look at
it, I probably would join in the stipulation,
THE COURT: Perhaps later.
MR. NEGUS: wWe'll find it.
And then I'd like just to read, it looks like

volume XIX of the preliminary, page 113, Line 14, through 114,

Line 17.
MR. KOCHIS: I believe I would have an objection to that,

and I believe that on Page 114 certain portions of that are not
inconsistent with anything Mr. Stockwell has said at this
proceeding,

MR. NEGUS: Certain portions are in the -- you have to
read the whole thing in order to get the context.

MR. KOCHIS: 1I'd also have an objection to 113. I don't
recall anything that he testified at the preliminary hearing on
that page being inconsistent to what he said in the trial.

THE COURT: Mr. Negus,

MR. NEGUS: Your Honor. Mr. Stockwell has testified at
the trial that he did not take blood off the shelf areas for the
A-36 sample of blood. |

The plain import of that, this particular
quotation, is that he couldn't, he wasn't sure of that at the --

he wasn't sure where he got it,

THE COURT: It is arguable. Ill permit it. Go ahead,
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(Reading)

"Question: In that area on the west side, the
west side of the room, there is a desk and shelf
combination; is that true?

'Answét: Yes,

"Question: Did you take any blood off of that?
*Answer: Yes. -

"Question: From where?

"Answer: I can't say for certain.

"Question: No records were taken of that?

"Answer: Myself and Miss Schechter made notes as
to the general location that they were taken from.
"Question: It says something about shelves; is
that correct?

"Answer: Yes:

"Question: How many shelves were there on that
piece of furniture?

"Answer: I don't recall.

"Question: Many?

"Answer: What is many?

"Question: Ten?

'Ansﬁer: There may have been that many, I don't
recall.

"Question: How much time would it have taken to

note from which one of those shelves the blood

came from?"
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MR. KOCHIS: Your Honor, at this point I have an
objection to the continuing portion. It is not inconsistent
with anything Mr. Stockwell said at the trial. He's going into
certain --

THE COURT: Seems so, Mr. Negus,

MR. NEGUS: Your Honor, I think it goes -- if I could
explain,

THE COURT: Perhaps you can skip portions then.

MR, NEGUS: Wwell, I think that --

THE COUKRT: It seems to be amplifying upon the so-called
inconsistent now.

MR. NEGUS: I want to get the whole thing in.

THE COURT: He hasn't said want you --

MR. NEGUS: 1If you'd read it I think you'd see that you
can draw inferences from the rest of that as to that point in
tize.

THE COURT: I will sustain the objection. You may have
to lay a better foundation.

MR. NEGUS: Could you read ;t? I will show you the page.

THE CCURT: From Line 82

MR. NEGUS: To where I have marked it in orange there at
the end.

THE COURT: Through at least Line 14 appears to be
clearly objectionable. I will sustain the objection. I don't
know if there is an objection to the last two lines or not.

MR. NEGUS: Well, then, I will finish reading 15 through

17.
MR. ROCHIS: I would have an objection to that,
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THE COURT: Is there any inconsistency in those lines?

MR. NEGUS: He said that he took more than one,.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

BY MR, MNEGUS:

Q. (Reading)

"Question: Did you take that sample from one drop

of blood or more than one drop of blood?

"Answer: I don't recall offhand.®

I'd like to be heard on that outside the presence
before we finish with the witness.

Mr. Stockwell, according to the principles by which
you were collecting blood that night, that was to do a limited
reconstruction or to make a limited reconstruction possible; is
that correct?

A, That's one of the reasons for doing that, yes.

Q. According to your definition of a limited
reconstruction that would be determining areas where the victims
may have been, where they may have been injured and if they
moved from rocm to rccm, et cetera; is that correct?

A, Yes.

Q. You didn't collect sufficient samples of blood to

answer those questions, did you?

A, It depends to what degree the questions are to be
answered,
Q. Well. just as a, as a simple example, if a blood

drop was falling straight dcwn when it hit a wall, um, that
would position a victim differently than if it were going in an

up direction; is that correct?
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A, It could, yes.

Q. And you made no efforts to provide the kind of
information that would enable us to note, for example, if the
drops of blood that you collected from A-36 came from any
particular spot on this particular room.

As far as you know it could, from any spot in the
room, even could have flown through the doors in the bathroom;
is that correct?

A. It is possible.

Q. And there is nothing that you did to try and
determine whether it came from the direction of the bed, the
direction of Jessica, the direction of Chris, the direction of
where Jcsh was found, the direction of Peggy Ryen, or from some

other person, assailant over here; is that right?

A, That's correct.

Q. The same with 2ll the other blocd you collected,
correct?

A, Yes,

Q. So, other than the spot where the victims were

found by Bill Huches, there is nothing that you did that would
add to our information abcut where they had been as far as

collecting blcod is concerrned; is that correct?

A, I would say the possibilities are limited as to
where the victims were. The probabilities are limited.

Q. well, as far as, as far as, for example, the
coilection of blcod is concerned, there is no way frOm your
particular, your particular collection, that you could tell

whether the blood that you collected from A-36, for example,
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came from one or more than one victim; is that right?
A, That's correct,

Q. And by mixing up the blood, you mixed up different

drops of blood from different places, right?

A, In some 1bcations yes.

Q. By doing that that's bad practice, is it not?

A, 4 It derends on the circumstarce,

C. Under the circumstances of this particular crime,

and that particular evidence collection, that was bad practice,

was it not?

A, It richt have been dore better by scmeone with more

krcwledce about blood spatter inrressicrs tkah wrat I have. I
¢id what I could with the infcrreticn I had at hand.

C. You krew ercuch, éid you not, to know that you are
supposed to Keep the blocd drops separate from one another if
they came from different scurces.

A, That is a rule to run by and the question is, what
do you term sepsrate sctrces? I defined what I terred as a
source as to a gereral localized area. That is the way I
ccllected the blocd. 1If I had only collected ore drep of blood,
it weuld not be sufficient for serclogical purposes. '

Q. well, as far as this particular, this particular
collection of blocd is concerned that you did, the ten or
whatever it was sarples ycu collected from the walls and
furniture inside the Ryen master bedrcom on that particular
night, even according to your cwn definitions it was inaccurate,

was it not?

A, It could have teen done better, yes.
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Q. And at that point in time even you could at least
make elementary determinations as to which direction blood was
traveling when it hit the various surfaces.

B, Yes,

Q. You just ignored that information invyou:
collection of bicod, right?

A, I can't say I ignored it totally.

Q. well, you lumped tcgether the drops of blood that
care from totally cdifferent directions, right?

ME. KCCHIS: Objection, thet Las Leen asked and answered.

THE CCLFT: Yes. Sustaiined,

MR. ﬁEGCS:. I don't think trat exact --

TEE CCUkT: The same irpcrt, Mr. Megus Sustained.

BY MR, NECUS:

C. ‘Cr A-35, by lcck and studying the photographs, you
can tell tﬁat rot only did you nct tzke care rc¢t to lump dropped
blecd frem different Girections but in fact you lupped different
érors of blocd in tctally differert ccllecticns.

MR. KOCHIS: Objecticn, asked and asnwvered.

THE CCURT: VYes, that particular questicn kLas beep asked
and answered. You went blocd drcp by blood drop in the
photographs.

MR. NECUS: 1 didn't either.

THE CCURT: Sustained. Just don't reiterate, please.

MR. NEGUS: I'm trying. That particular point was not
gore into, your Honor.

Q. what did you do to determine where the -- the

victime might have been injured on the night of June S5th?
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A. Most of that evidence was collected in the form of
blood collected from the walls around the room,

Q. You were by no means trying to be -- trying to
systematically answer that question; is that correct?

A. I don't know what you mean by "systematically".

Q. Is that a word that's foreign to science?

A. It's not a word that's foreign to science; but in

the context in which you give it, it's confusing.
Q. Well, is it pcssible just to go step-by-step and

atterpt to make that kind of determination?

A, Yes.
Q. You didn't do that, did you?
A, I Ci¢ tcke step-by-s<tep several actions in that

rcom to collect bleod.

Q. But I'm talikinu about ¢ié ycu step-by-step
itréertake the collection of blced with the idea of
systeratically answering the gquestions cf where the victims were
when they were injurecd?

MR. KCCHIS: Your Horor, I'm going to okject, That
zssumes a fact ttet's ot in evidence., Ycu can't absent a movie
cerere recreate where they vwere in the rcom each arc¢ every tire
trhey were struck,

¥R. NEGUS: He has already testified they can, and that's
what he was trying to dco.

THE CCURT: I will overrule the objection. Co ahead.

THE WITNESS: I don't believe I recall all of the
question., Cculd you repeat?

BY MR. NEGUS:
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Q. When you were collecting the blood, did you do it
in a systematic step-by-step manner so that your collection of
blood was designed to answer the questions where the victims
were when they were injured?

A. I did take step-by-step actions. It was not
designed to foresee every possibility from every direction where
the victims could have been struck.

Q. Similarly yocu didn't try to systematically
determine whether the victims had moved from room to room,
right?

A. My steps there were quite limited as the only idea
I could have was whether they were moving while they were
bleeding. 1If they moved from rocm to rocm while they were not
tleedirg, I ccuvlé rot callect any physical evidence that would
poirt to that.

Q. Well, you didn't even -- you didn't even attempt to
answer that question with wlhat you rad.

For exarple, there was a trail of biccd thet led
from tlat bare spot ip tre carpet in that gereral directior,
egrcuné from the -- arcund the bed there,

You didn't, for example, collect that blood, did
you?

A, I did not collect blood from tha; location,

Q. And of the various blocd smears on. the molding, you
didn't collect any of those that you can say for sure; is that

correct?
A. Which molding?
Q. Any of the molding.
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A, That's correct, 1 really couldn't say.

Q. So, even by your own limited definition, you were
inadequate for the questions that you think are part of the
limited reconstruction; is that correct?

A, I den't believe I was inadequate for what I have
stated today and on previous dates.

Q. On previocus days you have stated that you want to

determine where the victims were when they were injured,

correct?
A, To a limited extent, yes.
Q. That was -- L[o you have your copies of the

transcript with you?
A, I have some of them,

Q. Co you happen to have the prelim?

A, Yes, 1 believe so.

0. And could you turn in the prelim to Volume XIX,
Page 112?

A. I'm afraid my copies aren't listed by volume

number, at least that I can tell,

Q. Allow me to provide with you a multicolored copy to
orient yourself.

A, Ckay. I have that page,

Q. Okay. At that point in time you were trying to
cefine the limited purposes for which you were collecting
evicence; is that right?

A.  Yes.
Q. And that limited purpose was exactly what I read to

you earlier, where the victims may have been, where they may
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have been injured, if they moved from room to room, et cetera;
is that right?
A. Yes.
Q. So, you were defining a minimum standard of what
you were trying to do, right?
A, I don't know that it's a minimum standard.
Q. It's a limited reconstruction as opposed to the !
kind of reconstruction that's -- reconstruction that somebody |

with more experience than yourself could have undertaken; is

that right?
A, Certainly.

0. And even on your limited -- under your definition

of limited reconstriction, you didn't do all you could to answer

thcse questions, right?

a. Given ry knowlecge and training at the time, 1
think I did all of those to the best extent that was possible.

It is possible to do more, but I don't believe I had that much

training to do more.

Q. when you first testified you told us, did you not,
that von could docurent what type of blcecé you have; is that
right?

A. It's possible, yes.

Q. Not rmixed blcad from different sources.

Ll NI nie

MR. ROCHIS: Objection. This has been asked and

-~
S g

answered,

(

THE COURT: Counsel, we are getting argumentative as

well,. Sustained.

BY MR. NEGUS:
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Q. Didn't you know enough to do more than you d4id?
A. I might have been able to do a little bit more than
what I did.
Q. Cf the luminol reactions that you got from the Ryen

house, did you attempt to test any of those areas with

ortho-tolidine to give you a further screening on -- on the

reactions that you saw?

Ao
Q.
A.

near T-1,

Scme of them, yes.

Do you recall which ones?
Those that I recall offhand, one of the impressicns

the north sirk of the roster bathroom, the shower area

of tre master kathrocm,

Q.

or the "T" numters, excuse re -- cculd you put a blue circle
arcur.d the luminol reactions that ycu testeé with

ortho-~tolidine?

A.
g.
those,

k.

shower area.

C.
Yvou under

ircorrect

v

c.

about how tc -- Lew to o the ortho-tolidine test?

Could you sort of put a circle arourd the *"CU" --

I'm not sure which one in T-1 as there vere two.

Ckay. Circle T-1 ther we will know it's one of

(viitness complied.) The sink area and the bathroom

Ckay. Ycw at that particular pecint in time, were

any nisapprehensicre whicl you Lave sirce learned were

I'm not sure what you're askinag.

“v.ell, did you do it incorrectly according to your

present-day krowledge?

A.

I believe I did it correctly.
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Q. Well, accorcing to your present-day knowledce the
way you tell letveen the minerals and the animal and the
vegetables, as it were, is by virtue of, if you -- if the first
reaction ycu see is -- ycu see a reaction richt off the bat,
then you knew it's a mineral rather thren blood, richt, or some
cther animal or vegetable substance?

A, If, with just the addition of the ortho-tolidine
alore, withcut hydrogén peroxide, a color cCevelops, that is
indicative of an oxidizer such as a mireral, something other
than blood.

Q. Is it possible to do that test on an one-step
basis, that is, put the orthoe-tolidine and the hydrocen peroxide
on tle sulbistence at the same time?

A, Yes,

Q. Did you do that?

A, o, It was a two-step prccedure adding the
crthb—tolidine and then addipg hycdrcgen peroxide,

C. well, do you remember -- the first time that you
cave an explanation of the ortho-tolidine test, that was when
Mr. Kochis wes egking vcu guestions at the preliminary hearing;
is that richt?

A. Yes,

0. That was before I had even ever asked you the first
question that I ever asked you, richt?

a, I suppose soO, yes.

c. End at that point in time did ycu cive a slightly
different explanation a@s to how to tell the difference between

minerals anc¢ eriral eénd vegetable substances than you did now?
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A. I don't recall exactly what I said at . that time.

MR. NEGUS: If I could read, your Honor, from Volume II,

Lines 101 -- 2 to -- excuse me, Veclume II, Page 101 Line 2 to

Fage 102 Line 1.

MR. KGCHIS: I have that.
MR. NEGUS:

"Question: Ey Mr. Kcchis,

"Mr. Stockwell, directinrg your attention back to
June the &th of 1983, the day which you rerformed the two
tests, the luminol reagert tes! oG the orthe-tolidine

test, is it one of those tests ncre specific than the

other?

"Erswer: Yes,

"Cuestion: Which one?

"lrswer: OQrtho-tolidine is rore sgecific for blood
thap is luminol.

"Cuestion: Why 1is that?

"answer: Luminol will react with quite a few
substances, some that I don't even know why it would,
tertzin fabrics, et cetera, ir thre sare way that it
would with blood, whereas ortho-tolidine will not react
with 'liize substances. There are a2 few exceptional
items, for instance, some oxides of metals that may cause

reacticns with koth, but still with the ortho-tolicdine

it gives a =lichtly different reaction than with blood.
Biood gives an immediate h:Jue cclcr, whereas these oxides
take longer to create the blue color. So even that, in

that, the ortho-tolidine is pcre specific than the
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luminol,

"Question: when you perforred the crtho-tolidine
test insicde the 2991 residence, ¢i¢ the Llue reaction you
saw, was that an irmediate reaction, or did that take
scre tire to form?

"Answer: That was an immediate reaction.®

According to the expleration that you gave at the

tréer=tanding would indicate a mireral, correct?

"0

A, If I were talking at the time atout two steps, you

are ccrrect, that I was stating there was e sipplificaticn. I

did not even wention tle twe steps that were involved.

in any of vour testimony until Mr. Kochis asked you abovt two

steps hereto today; 1is that right?

questions today.

elicited by questioning until last week.

BY MR. NEGUS:

difference between Low wvu distirguish between minerals and

ariral sutstances is not in the speed of the reaction at all; is

Q. Richt. Ycu rever n-1:ticned the two steps, in fact,

MR. KGCHIS: Objection. I kaven't asked him any

MR. NEGUS: Excuse me. Last week,.
MR, KCCHIS: And I woulé 2lso object not being relevant,

THE (CUKRT: Overruled.

“HE WITNESS: That's correct, it was pot brought out or

P L -

0

-~

AnG in fact, the difference is not -- the

3

=

that correct?

a, It can be.
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Q. well, is that -- if you put the hydrogen peroxide
and the ortho-tolidine on at the same tirce, some of the
substarces ére a Jittle slower than blood?

A. We have seen siubstarces which with addition of
ortho-tolidine alcre will rct cause reaction, subsequently the
bycrouen percxide is added, if blood were there it would give an
inrecdiete Liwue color, except --

Q. Ckay. But --

&, -~ except these cver time will ceise the reagent to
ture bhluve. 1It's rot an inmediate reacticr. It takes time,

“lzt is not consistent with teing blood.

C. Ckay. Richt. BRut tlet is also rot consistent with
teirc the oxides of retal that ycu were ralkirg atout at the
preliriréry btearing, correct?

A, It might ke; it micgcht not be., I have not done a
thcreuch study of all oxides ¢f metals to =ee which ones react
ir. which way. |
Mr. Stockwell, when you testified that blood gives

C

an irreciate blue coler whereas these cxices take longer to
.
create the blue colcer, is that an incorrect distincticn between
the -- is that an incorrect statenent of the way you distinguish
between rirerals and tlccd though?
a. No.

Q. Does bleach cvive &r irmecCiate reaction to

crtto-tolidine?

A, " Yes.
Q. and just real quick, right?
. A, Dependirc on hoew ©ld the bleach is, yes.
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Q. well, assuming that the bleach is fresh, the blood
is fresh, you get a really quick reaction with bleach, right,
even quicker than with blood?

A. You wculd get & color formation upon addition of
ortho-tolidine alcre without Lvdrogen peroxide. With blooé you
weuld bave tc aéd the hydrogen peroxide.

C. Arnd if ycv were, if you were confused and you cid
it the one-step way, that is, where boﬁh.ortho~tolidine arcé the
lreroxide were acdded at the csérie tire, the bleach would give you
¢r inrediate blue color, right?

MR. KCCBIS: Chiecticen., Assumes a fact not in evidence
and it's aroumentative,

THE COURT: I will permit the assumption and the fact.
And it might be argumentative, Cverruled.

TEE WITNESS: Under thcse circuncstances, yes.

EY MR. NEGUS;

Cc. Aré under those circumstances, hyérogen peroxide

and crtho-tclidine added together, scre crxides of metals would

take longer to uive a :eacticn than blood, right?

A, I've seen that hLeppen, ves.

Q. Just iike you describe it in your testimony?

2. Tes, =z an exarple in my testimony.

c. when you were giving that testimony then, is it
reascrable to think that you were -- ycu were thinking in your

mind's eye of a test wlere tbe crtho-tolidine and the hydrogen
percxicde were added at the same time?
A. No.

Q. Mr. Stockwell, cdon't you in your testimony always
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try to be as precise about scientific matters as you possibly
can be?

A. No, not always.

MR. NEGUS: Nothing further.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, KCCHIS:

Q. Mr. Stockwell, the victims I believe were
trersported frem the scene to the mergue in what is called a
body bag; is that correct?

A, Yes.

Q. And were ecach of the hody lécs retained by a member

of the crime lab at tke autopsy?

A, Yes,.

G. Was that yourself?

A, Yes.

Q. Were they assigned laboratory idertification
numbers?

a, Yes.

Q. Were they taken back to the crime lab and
preserved?

A, Yes.

Q. on Exhibit 500, specificallyv or-Fazges 1706, 1707,
and 1708, that contains the list of items that you renoved from
the victims at the sutcopsies; is that correct?

A, Yes.
Q. And does it also include by laboratory

identification numter, the nurber assigned to each body bag
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which the victin was taken out of?
A, * Yes.
Q. Directing your attention to a series of exhibits,

four Gocuments which have been marked for identification as
Exhibit 512 through and including 515; do you recognize what
these are Xercx ccpies of?

A. Yes.

Q. Are they Xeroxed copies of the diagrams you
prepared of the sectiors you took from the sheet and the
corrforter which were removed from the Ryen waster bedroom?

A, Yes.

Q. Aré, for example, on -- taking one of them, Exhibit
512, have you indicated on thrat exbibit, using letters or
runbers, the approximpete lccaticn of the sanples which were cut

out and later frozen?

A. Yes.

Q. Ard did you use on that exhibit,_on 512, numbers or
letters?

A. Yes.

C. which cre?

A, Excuse me. I used letters on all of theée
exhibits.

c. Directing your attention to a photograph which has

teen rerked for identification as Exhitit 511, whkich appears to

be a photograph of the tottcr cf the sole impressicn, is the

pattern on that sole irpression, is that consistent or

inconsistent with the pattern of the impression that you saw in

luminol in the Ryen home on June the 10th?
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A. It looks consistent with the pattern that I saw.
MR. KOCHIS: I have nothing further.
THE COURT: Anything else?
RECROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. NEGUS:
Q. Mr. -- let me see what picture we're talking about.

The -- This Exhibit 511, the wavy lines, you drew
on your -— on your drawing of the pattern you saw in luminol

sharp diagonal lines, is that right, without a curve to them?

a. Yes.
Q. And, in fact, that's what you saw, is it not?
A, I can't say exactly how sharp or how rounded they

actually were, What I showed you was a diagram.

Q. Okay. And the -- what size of -- what size of shoe

is your boot?

A, My personal boot,

Q. Yeah, the one you were wearing.

A, I wear size eight and a half.

Q. And the impression you saw was bigger than that,
right?

A. ‘Yes.

Q. Let's see you -~ by -- let's see, this would
appear -- that's a foot long ruler -- would be approximately a

ten-and-a-half inch shoe; is that right?
A, It looks about eleven inches to me.

0. The impression -- that's about the same size, a

little smaller perhaps than your boots?
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A. I believe it's actually a little larger than my

boot.
Q. But it would be considerably smaller than the

impression that you saw in luminol in the -- in the Ryen house;

is that right?

A. wWhen I measured that impression it was

approximately thirteen inches.

Q. So, as far as size is concerned, that would not
be -- that would not be consistent?
A, I don't know that I could say it is totally

inconsistent. wWhen I measured the footprint from the Ryen
house, as I had said, it had time to difuse due to the nature of

the liquid luminol, how much it difused I really couldn't say.

Q. Did it difuse two inches?

A, Possibly.

0. Now, Mr. Stéckwell, you -- how long is your shoe?

A, I don't recall offhand how long my shoe is,

Q. About just approximately eleven inches; is that
right?

A, Approximately ten inches I would say.

Q. It would appear that, showing you Exhibit 490

alongside of this other exhibit, 511, you apparently didn't put
a ruler in your particular picture, right?

A, I dién't take this particular picture, but there is

no ruler in it,.
Q. Well, it would appear at least that, that whatever
that printing is along the bottom of the picture is -- the two

pictures look to be taken approximately at the same place; is
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that right?

A. I don't know if I could say that or not from these
photographs.

Q. Well, does it appear to be approximately the same
distance from the shoe that they were taken?

A, It could be.

Q. Did you -- did you -~ at some point in time were

you given the assignment to -- to compare all of the
investigators' shoes with the -- with the various impressions
that were lifted from the Lease and Ryen house?

A. I was never formally assigned to it. I was given
various shoe impressions since I and Mr. Ogino were the only
criminalists in the lab that had actually seen the impression in
the Ryen house.

Q. And that particular one there of Mr. Coronado's
shoe was one of the ones that you ekamined prior to the
preliminary hearing; is that right?

A. That's possible.

Q. At the preliminary hearing did you testify that all
of the shoes that you had seen to date were inconsistent with
the impression that you'd seen in luminol?

A. That's what I said at that time, yes.

Q. In your mind as you testify here today, do you feel
it's important for the prosecution's case that the particﬁlar
luminol impressions that you saw in the Ryen house be
demonstrated not to have come from one of the assailants?

A, I feel it's important for both the prosecution and

the defense to try and determine where the particular
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impressions came from.
Q. I understand that, but that wasn't the question I

asked you,
Do you think that it's important for the

prosecution's case to demonstrate that it didn't come from and

assailant?
A. That could be used by the prosecution, yes.
- Q. Is that why your opinion has changed as to whether

or not Mr., Coronado's shoe is consistent?
A, I don't know that it's changed.

a. Well, assuming that particular photograph was shown
to you prior to the preliminary hearing, it's changed?

A, You would have to --

MR. KOCHIS: Objection. That assumes a fact that's not

in evidence.

MR. NEGUS: I assume we can tie it up.

THE COURT: Well, let's tie it up first. Lay your
foundation.

MR. NEGUS: Well, I'm going to have to bring in other
witnesses and stuff like that, lay the foundation that that was

one of the impressions that Mr. Stockwell showed me in the

laboratory that he had at such and such a date. I mean, I can

do that, but I -~
THE COURT: Ask your question again, let's see, Mr.

Negus.

BY MR. NEGUS:

Q. Assuming that that was one of the impressions that

you had in the laboratory prior to the preliminary hearing,
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what's caused you to change your opinion?

THE COURT: Overruled,
THE WITNESS: Assuming that fact, it would probably be

due to the fact that what I have to go on is purely rote, rote

memory. I did not make a diagram of it.

The photograph of the impression that I did take
was taken at a time that the iméression had difused into the
carpeting and rendered no pattern, so I am relying only on
memory, which is imperfect.

BY MR. NEGUS:

Q. By the way, were the impressions that you saw in
the carpet at the Ryen house, consistent in size with luminol
impressions that you saw and measured on the carpet at the Lease
house?

A. Yes.

0. And you have also taken foot impressions of Kevin
Cooper; is that right?

aA. No, I haven't.

Q. Were you not present when foot impressions of Kevin
Cooper were taken?

a. I may have been,

Q. And have you studied those?

A, No. |

Q. well, did you at one point in time get a pair of
Kevin Cooper's shower shoes so that you coula study those?

A, Yes, I did.

0. And you determined what size shoe that Kevin Cooper

wears; is that right?
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A. There was an approximate size.
Q. Approximate size 10?
A, Yes.
Q. And that is smaller than the shoe impressions that

you saw in the luminol in the Lease house and in the Ryen house;

is that correct?
A, It depends upon a lot of variables,

Q. The particular impressions that you saw were

smaller, were they not?

A, Excuse me. The iﬁpressions were smaller?

Q. The shoes, the shower shoes you saw from Mr.
Cooper?

A, The shower shoes —-

MR. KOCHIS: I would object, that's irrelevant. We
haven't introduced any evidence that Mr. Cooper was wearing
shower shoes in the Lease house or in the Ryen house. If it is
another shoe, it is not going to be the same size. A person's
shower shoes and tennis shoes aren't necessarily the same size.

THE COURT: Overruled, for what it's worth.

Ladies and gentlemen, I don't pass upon the weight
that you are to be given evidence, if any. You will determine
whether or not it has any weight. I simply permit it to come
in., Overruled.

THE WITNESS: The shower shoes were less than 13 inches
in length.

BY MR. NEGUS:

Q. Well, let me -~ if I could just for one second,

bring out éomething I neglected to do before,
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Showing you Exhibit 510. Is that the notes that
you took on June the 10th when you were collecting evidence and
spraying luminol in the Ryen house?

A. Yes.

Q. And is that the complete set of notes that you took
on that date?

A, In regards to the luminol, yes.

Q. Did you take any other notes of your activities of
collecting evidence and spraying luminol inside the Ryen house

on June the 10th?

A, Those are the only notes from inside the house on
that date.
Q. And is that something that you relied on in

refreshing your recollection as to your testimony last week for
Mr. Kochis?

A, Yes.

MR. NEGUS: Nothing further.

MR. KOCHIS: I have no further questions.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Stockwell.

MR. NEGUS: Before we finish with Mr. Stockwell., Could
we be heard?

THE COURT: Take the mcrning recess, ladies and
gentlemen. Remember the admonition. Let's remain in session,
we will take it up outside the presence of the jury.

Bailiff would you let them out, please.

(The jury exits the courtroom}.

THE COURT: Yes, Mr, Negqus. The jurors have departed,
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MR. NEGUS: I believe that the inference that one can
draw from his answers to the gquestions starting on Line 8, "How
much time would it have taken to note which one of those shelves
the blood came from?” And his answer, "Perhaps five minutes to
logically number the shelves®, indicates that, that is an
implied statement that the blood well could have come from the
shelves. That is inconsistent with his testimony here in court.

MR. KOCHIS: Well, I can't stretch it that far. 1t is

not inconsistent in terms of actual verbage with anything he

said at the trial.

He's testified that he's not sure where it came
from. He doesn't believe it was taken from the shelves, and
there is nothing in there that indicates that it was taken from
the shelves.

Mr. Negus went into another area and covered how
much time he would have had to document the samples in the
fashion it would have pleased Mr. Negqus, and it wasn't with

their location.

MR. NEGUS: I don't think it has to be -- an inconsistent
statement has to be exactly word for word inconsistent, and if
there is inferences that one can draw as far as admissibility is
concerned, I would submit that as long as one of the inferences
that one can draw is that it is inconsistent then it is
admissible. 1Its weight may not be very great, as you said.

THE COURT: 1I'm also considering the weight and the other
factors that I have. §So, under Evidence Code section 352 the

ruling will stand, counsel. I think I was correct the first

time.
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(Recess)

THE COURT: Everybody is present. The delay was
occasioned by something completely unrelated to the trial,
ladies and gentlemen,

Mr. Kochis.

MR. KOCHIS: Ellis Bell, your Honor, is our next witness.

ELLIS LEE BELL,
Called as a witness on behalf of the People, having been duly
sworn, testified as follows.
THE CLERK: Thank you. Would you be seated.
Would you state your full name for the record.
THE WITNESS: Ellis Lee Bell.
THE CLERK: Would you spell Ellis?

THE WITMESS: E-1-1-i-s. That's Bell. B-e-1-l.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. KOCHIS:
Q. Mr. Bell, do you know the Dunn family that lives on

0ld English Road in Chino?

A, Yes.

Q. Where is their home in relation to the home of Bill
and Mary Ann Hughes?

A. Right next door to it. ‘

Q. Oon Sunday, June the Sth, of 1983, did you visit the
Dunns at their home in Chino?

A. Yes,
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What type of vehicle did you use to get to the

A '84 pickup truck.

Do you remember what time you got to the Dunn home

Approximately 9:00 o'clock.

Were you sent to run an errand sometime in the
that Sunday, June the Sth?

Yes.,

What time did you leave the Dunn residence?

About 2:30.

Did you take somebody with you.

Yes. A girl by the name of Linda who works there.

Did you and Linda go to the store to pick up some

supplies or something?

A.
like that.

Q.

Yes. We went to pick up groceries and some things

After you made your purchase, did you come back

then to the Dunn residence?

A.
Q.

A.

Yes.
Where did you park your car when you got back?

Almost across from their driveway, on the north

side of the road.

Q-

Do you remember about what time it was on that

afternoon that you got back to the Dunn home?

AO

Q.

Approximately 3:30.

Now, when you got out of your car, did you see

anything in the area that caught your attention?
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A. Yes. I seen a hatchet.
0. Where was the hatchet when you first saw it?
A, It was laying in the weeds, between my truck and

the fence on the north side of the road back by the rear wheel.

Q. Did the hatchet have anything on it that you could

tell at that time?

A. It had a dried reddish substance on it.

Q. Locked like blood?

A. Yes.
Q. Directing your attention, Mr. Bell, to an eight by
ten color photograph which we have marked for identification as

Exhibit 521.

First of all, do you recognize any of the vehicles

in that particular photograph?
A, Yes.

Q. There appears to be a Ford pickup truck in the
middle of the picture., Whose car is that?
A, That is my car,

Q. And is that the car that you drove to the Dunn home

on that Sunday?
A. Yes,

Q. Is that the position your car -was in when you
parked it and later saw the hatchet?

A. Yes,

Q. Do you see on the photograph any writing which

indicates the approximate location at which the hatchet was

found?
A, Yes.

COMPUTERIZED TRANSCRIPT

e e

L st -

.
-l

{ "



W 0N AWM e W N

NN NN N NN e e e et
e
@ N AN e W N = o © W N o N o W : : S

3792

Q. And can you step to the photograph and can you tell
which of the letters pertains to the approximate location you
saw the hatchet,

A. Yes. The letter "H",

Q. This particular photograph, Exhibit 521, is that a

photograph of the road that in fact leads up to the Ryen home?

A. Yes,

Q. Away from Peyton Road.

A, Yes.

Q. Now, directing your attention to Exhibit 517, which

is another eight b§ ten color photograph.
Do you recognize the area depicted in that
photograph as well?

A, Yes,

Q. Is it a photograph that depicts the approximate
location your truck was parked at on June the 5th when you saw
the hatchet?

A. Yes.

Q. And is the photograph taken facing the other
direction, going down 01d English Road toward Peyton Road?

A. Yes.

Q. Directing your attention next to an eight by ten
color photograph which we have marked for identification as
Exhibit 83.

Do you recognize either of the objects in that
picture? |

A. Yes,

Q. which ones?
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A, The hatchet, and the tape measure.

Q. Does the photograph accurately depict the placement
of the hatchet in the grass when you first saw it on that
particular Sunday?

A, Yes.

Q. wWhen you saw the hatchet did you try to get
anybody's attention,

A. Yes, I said "Linda, look.”

Q. Did you eventually contact a police officer?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you point the hatchet out to him?

A, Yes.

Q. Were you there when the hatchet was photographed in
place?

A, Yes.

Q. Were you there when it was picked up by the police?

A, Yes.

Q. Directing your attention to an item which has been

removed from a bag which we have marked for identification as

Exhibit 42.

This particular Estwing hatchet. Do you recognize

that particular item?

A. Yes,
Q. Is that the hatchet you found by the roadside on

that Sunday in June?
A. Yes.
Q. Is the color the same on the hatchet today in

court?
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A. No.
Does it appear the color has changed?

A. Yes,
MR. KOCHIS: I have nothing further,

THE COURT: <Cross examination.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. NEGUS:
Q. Going back to Exhibit 521.

Just to the right of where you found the hatchet
there's a large pasture for horses; is that right?2?

A. He correct.

Q. And you could sort of see horses who are just sort

of just back behind the fence in the piéture; is that right?

A. They're on the other fence, sir. That is a cross

fence you are looking at, then the horses are behind the cross
fence.

0. And the pasture that's right here, it would be

right next to the hatchet, were there any horses in that pasture

as well?
A, Yes,
Q. And are they able -- are the horses able to get up

right to that fence?
A, Yes.
MR. NEGUS: That's all I have.
MR. KOCHIS: No redirect. |
THE COURT: Thank you vety much,
MR. KOCHIS: Sergeant Roper would be next,
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Sergeant, you have been sworn to tell the truth.
Just return to the stand, and please state your name again for

the record.

THE WITNESS: Rick Roper. R-0O-p-e-r.

RICK ROPER,
Called as a witness on behalf of the People, having been

previously duly sworn, testified further as follows:

FURTHER DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. KOCHIS:
Q. Mr. Roper, on Sunday, June the 5th of 1983, did you

become involved in the investigation of the Ryen-Hughes

homicides?
A. Yes, I did.
Q. And on that afternoon, sometime between 3:00 and

3:30, were you on 0ld English Road?

A, Yes, I was,

0. Were you flacged down or contacted by a civilian at

that location?

A, Yes. I was.,

Q. pid he direct your attention to a certain location?
A. Yes, he did.

Q. And did you find any object at that loccation?

A. Yes, I did,
Q. What was it?
A. That hatchet.

Q. Directing your attention to a series of exhibits,

CCMPUTERIZED TRANSCRIPT

v cuy s C



W 0O ~N AWM e W oN e

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

3796
first of which is a color photograph marked as 521 for
identification.

Did you take that picture?
A. Yes, I did.
Q. And did you have a purpose in mind in taking that

particuiar picture.

A. Yes, I did.

Q. What was your purpose?

MR. NEGUS: Objection, that's irrelevant the mental
processing of the officers. '

MR. KOCHIS: That's probably a good dbjection, I will
reframe another question.

THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MR. KOCHIS:

Q. Depicted in Exhibit 521, does that show the
approximate location at which you first saw the hatchet?
A, Yes, it does.

Q. And do you recall what surface the hatchet was

laying on when you first saw it?

A, Yes, I do.

Q0. - wWhat type of surface?

A, It was on a dirt and grass shoulder of the roadway.
Q. Was there any vehicle located in close proximity to

the hatchet when ycu first saw it?

A, Yes.

Q. Is that also shown in 5212

A, Yes, it is.

Q. Exhibit 83, do you recognize that particular eight
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by ten color photograph?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Did you likewise take it?

A. Yes, I did. _

Q. And does it show the condition of the hatchet when
you first saw it on that Sunday?

A. Yes, it does.

Q. Did there appear to be any substances on the
hatchet when you saw it on that Sunday?

A. Yes.

Q. What type?

A. There was -- the hatchet was basically covered with

blood, dried blocd, and there was hairs attached to the hatchet
head by the dried blood.

Q. Directing your attention to the exhibit we have
taken out of a bag which we have marked for identification as I
believe Exhibit 42.

Do you recognize this particular Estwing hatchet?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Is that the hatchet that you saw on the roadside on
Sunday, June the 5th?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. Is the color of the hatchet in court today the same
color that you saw on the hatchet back on that Sunday?

A. No, it is not,

Q. Do you know what caused the color on the hatchet to
be changed?

A, Yes, I do.
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Q. What?

aA. It was processed for latent prints by using a
Dura-Print substance to develop the latent print, plus it was
also taken to Texas Tech University and processed with dyes and
other chemicals in an attempt to raise latent prints.

Q. Did you do the Dura-Print processing on that
hatchet, Exhibit 427

A, Yes, I did.

Q. Were you able to find any latent fingerprints on
the hatchet?

A. No, I was not,

Q. Directing your attention to Exhibit 517. Did you
take that particular photograph as well?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And does it show 0ld English Road looking toward
Peyton Road?

A. Yes.

Q. And can you see in the photograph, can you see the
roadblock that was started at the intersection of Peyton and 0ld
English Road? |

A,  Yes.

Q. Directing your attention to Exhibit 516, another
eight by ten color photograph.

Did you take that picture as well?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. Is it a photograph of the hatchet as you found it
laying in the grass on that Sunday?

A, Yes,
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Q. And does it accurately depict a dried reddish-brown
substance that you saw on'portions of the hatchet on that
particular Sunday back in June?

A. Yes, it does.

Q. When you seized the hatchet, where did you take it?

A. I placed it in a paper bag and put it in the unit I
was driving, and I then proceeded to the Ryen residence.

After I left the Ryen residence I proceeded back to
the Identification Bureau in San Bernadino.

Q. Was there a fence located in close proximity to
where you found the hatchet?

A, Yes, there was.

Q. Did you examine the fence itself?

A. A pole -- one of the poles of the fence 1 did
examine, yes.

Q. Did you see anything on that portion of the pole
that caught your attention?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. Could you tell the jury what it was?

A, There was a small indentation that looked like
something had struck one edge.of the pole. And whatever had
struck it, it was a sharp instrument, it had somewhat made an

indentation into:the pole.

Q. bid you>photograph that damage to the fence?

A, Yes, I did.
Q. And directing your attention to Exhibit 523, is

that the photograph that you took of the nick in the fence?

A. Yes, it is,
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Q. Could you estimate for the jury in terms of feet or
inches how close that particular fence post was to the hatchet

when you photographed the fence post?

A. It was the very first fence poll west of where the
hatchet was located. I'd say approximately three feet,
three-and-a-half feet away from the hatchet,

MR. KOCHIS: 1If I could have another exhibit marked, your
Honor.

THE COURT: Certainly.

BY MR. KOCHIS:
0. Sergeant Roper, showing you Exhibit 524, is that

another photograph that you took?
A, Yes, it was.

Q. And does that show the relationship of the pole
that had the nick on it to the pickup truck which appears in the
other photographs?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. Directing your attention to a photograph which has
been marked for identification as Exhibit 196, do you recognize
the item depicted in that particular photograph?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. And could you tell the jury, who may have trouble
seeing the item from where they're positioned, what the
rhotograph shecws you a picture of?
| A, It was an Oly beer can that was found in a pléwed
riding arena, horse training arena, and that arena is located

approximately midway between the Ryen and the Lease residence.

Q. Do you know who took that particular photograph?
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I dia.

And do you know when you took it?

It would have been on June the Sth, 1983, and I

believe sometime approximately 8:00 p.m., 8:30 p.m,

Q.
A.
Q.
A.

Was there anything on the can when you saw it?

No,

there was not.

Was the can full or empty?

It was -- there was a small amount of what appeared

to be beer left in the can.

Q.

Directing your attention to a photograph which has

been marked for identification as Exhibit 195, appears to be an

eight by ten color photograph of the contents of the inside of a

refrigerator, specifically directing your attention to some beer

cans which appear in the photograph.

same tyre of
A.
0.
A,
Q.
A.

Was the beer can which appears in Exhibit 196 the

beer can that appears in Exhibit 1952

Yes,
Were
Yes,
were
Yes,
Same

Yes,

it was.

they both 12 ounce cans?

they were.

the cans of the same color? .
they were.

manufacture?

After you took the photograph of the beer can

depicted in Exhibit 196, did anyone take possession of that beer

can?

Q.

Yes,

Who?
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A, I did.

Q. And where'did you eventually take it?

A. To the Identification Division Office in San
Bernadino.,

Q. Would that have been the same location to which you
took the hatchet?
| A. Yes, it was.

0. Sergeant Roper, I wonder if you could join me for a

moment and assist me in lifting this up on the chalk board.

Directing your attention to Exhibit 2, a three by
five foot color photograph over which we've placed a piece of
clear plastic which we've marked for identification as 2-B; do
you recognize what that is a photograph of?

A, Yes, I do.

Q. Is it an aerial photograph of a portion of the
Chino Hills area?

A, Yes, it is.

Q. And on that photograph do you see the approximate
location at which you found both the Oly Gold beer can and the
hatchet?

A, Yes, I do.

Q. In the upper right-hand corner on the diagram could
you place your name and to date date?

A, (Witness complied.)

Q. Could you then, with a black fine tip pen, first
could you locate for the jury with an "H" the approximate

location on 2-B at which you first saw the hatchet which you

later seized?
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A. It would be approximately right here (indicating).
Q. Now the road adjacent to this location, 0l1d English

Road or English Road, is that the only paved road that leads
from the Ryen home out to Peyton?

A. Yes. That's paved up to this portion here, in
here, and then it's paved up to the Ryen residence.

Q. Could you also indicate with perhaps the initials
"B.C." the approximate location of the beer can, the 0Oly Gold
beer can, when you first saw it prior to photographing it?

A, It would be right here., 1In this little brown area
is the riding arena.

Q. Do you see the Ryen home on the photograph?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Could you place perhaps just and "R"™ on that
location?

A, (Witness complied.)

0. And do you see the home on this diagram that has

the address of 2991 Enélish Road?

A, Yes, I do.

Q. And could you place the "2991" above that location?
A, (Witness complied.)
Q. In terms of those two homes, approximately where

was the beer can located when you first saw it?

A, Well, approximately midway right where I indicated

the "B.C.".

Q. Between the two homes?
A, Yes,
Q. Could you assist me in taking this down. MNr.
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Roper.
On Sunday, June the 5th, of 1983, did you lift some

latent fingerprints from the Ryen home?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. And directing your attention to Exhibit 6, the

diagram, do you recognize that as a floor plan of the Ryen home?
A. Yes, I do.
Q. Over that we've placed a piece of clear plastic

which we've marked as 6-G. Did you make some markings on that

exhibit over the recess?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. For example, did you place your name and today's

date on the exhibit?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. And did you also locate on the diagram itself the

approximate location of the fingerprints, the latent

fingerprints that you lifted froa the Ryen scene?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. Did you also then place certain information

underneath each one of the print locations, specifically the

date on which the print was lifted and the time the print was

lifted?
A. Yes, I did.

Q.. Directing your attention to Exhibit 518, did you

have a chance to examine that over the recess as well?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And does that arpear to be a Xerox copy of the

actual latent print cards that you used to make the lift back on
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that Sunday in June?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. Front and back side?

A. Yes.

Q. And did you use that to locate the prints on 6-G?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Directing your attention Exhibit 5, do you
recognize that as a diagram of the 2991 residence?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. And did you do some work on that diagram during the
recess as well?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Did you place certain marks on the clear plastic
which we've marked for identification as 5-A -- 5-F, I'm sorry?

A, Yes,

Q. Did that include your name and today's date in the

upper right-hand corner?

A. Yes,

Q. And a notation identifying the home?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you make certain lifts from the Lease home,

certain fingerprint lifts on June the 8th, which would have been
I believe a Wecnesday of 19832

A, Yes, I did.

Q. And did you likewise indicate on 5-F the
approximate location of those particular 1ifts?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. And did you do that by placing the initials "F.P."
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for fingerprints and an arrow pointing to the approximate
location of the lift?

A, Yes.
Q. Did you likewise record on 5-F the date and the

time at which the lifts were made?
A, Yes, I did.
Q. You may resume your seat for a moment,
Directing your attention to Exhibit 519, do you
recognize what that is a Xerox copy of?
A, Yes, I do.
Q. Is that a Xerox copy of the print cards that you

used to lift the fingerprints from the Lease home on June the

8th of 19832

A, Yes.

Q. And did you use that in preparing the locations on
5-F?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. Directing your attention to Exhibit 46, which

aprears to be an eight by ten color photograph of a car; do you
recognize the car that's shown in that particular photograph?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. And do you know the location at which the car is
rarked at in the picture?

A, It was a parking lot in Long Beach.

Q. Did you go to that location on approximately
Saturday, June the 11th of 19832

A. Yes, I did,

Q. And did you learn that the car in that particular
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photograph was the station wagon that at one time belonged to
the Ryen family?

A, Yes; yes, it was.

Q. Is there any member of your department pictured in
the photograph?

A, Yes, there is.

Q. Who is that?

A. That is Deputy Gale Duffy.

Q. Were you and Deputy Duffy involved in photographing

and lifting latent prints from the Ryen car on that particular

Saturday?

A, Yes,

Q. Did you actually lift some prints from the car as
well?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. Directing your attention to Exhibit 520, do you

recognize what that is a photograph of?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Is that a Xerox cone of the print cards that you
used to take the lifts off the Ryen car in Long Beach on
Saturday, June the 11th?

a. Yes, it is.

Q. Do you remember what type of lot the car was in

when you first saw it?

A, It was a parking lot located next to, I believe

it's a Catholic church.
Q. Directing your attention to a photograph which has

been marked for identification as Exhibit 224, appears to be a
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1 black and white photograph of the bottom of somebody's shoes; do
2 you know who took the picture?
3 A, Yes, I did.
4 Q. And when did you take it?
5 A, On August the 11th, 1983.
6 Q. And do you know where you were when you took it?
7 A, At the Identification Office in San Bernadino.
8 Q. Were you one of the persons assigned to photograph
9

the bottoms of persons feet who had been inside the Ryen home on

10 June the 5th and June the 6th?

11 ' A, Yes, I was.

12 Q. And did that include photographing Mr. Barker's
13 shoes, a person who was the parmedic?

14 A. Yes.

15 0. And did you take that picture of his shoes in

16 August?

17 A, Yes, I did.
18 MR. KOCHIS: I have no additional questionms.
19 THE COURT: wWould you rather -~ Go ahead if you can for

21 MR. NEGUS: Well, I have no problem. I was -~ I didn't

22 see what time it was.
‘o

{
/
1
20 five minutes. ’
-
-~
l

23 - )
‘ L

24 FURTHER CROSS EXAMINATION
25 BY MR, NEGUS: "-?
’.26 Q. Did you also take Mr. Coronado's shoes? i
27 A, I'm not sure, I'd have to see the phoﬁograph.

28 Q. I can probably arrange that. Here's Mr, Coronado's
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shoes would, be 511,

A. No, I don't believe so., I don't believe that's my
writing.

Q. Okay. Does that appear to be taken -- did you take
Mr. Stockwell's shoes, Exhibit 490? |

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Does that appear to be taken approximately the same
time and place as Mr. Coronado's?

A. Yes.

Q. Could the "Coronado” have been done by somebody

else and you took the picture?

A, The name may have been written by somebody else

and, yes, I could have taken the picture;

Q. The -- Were all the pictures taken on a stand that
you have there in the -- in the I.D. Bureau?
A, Well, it's -- the camera is an MP-3 copy camera

-which does slide up and down a vertical rack; but the shoes

weren't on a stand, they were on a table.

Q. Okay. The way it would work would be the camera
would be up here and there would be a table down here where the
shoes are; right?

A, Yes, that's correct.

Q. And basically did you leave the camera in the same
positions for all the different pairs of shoes that you took,

that is, you didn't move it up and down for each different pair,

right?
A. Well, it may have been moved because the shoes --

all of the shoes came in over probably a two, three-week period
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and the camera was used for other things, so they would have to

be reset, which would be the reason why the ruler is in the

picture,

Q. Scmetimes you have -- one of them has a ruler and

one doesn't. Mr. Stockwell doesn't seem to have a ruler.

A, No, he doesn't have a ruler in his.
Q. Don't know why that is..
A, No, unless I just didn't put in it there.

Q. On August the 16th, 1983, did you take a bunch of
those photographs to the crime lab and give them to Mr.

Stockwell?
A, I did deliver photographs to Mr. Stockwell, I’

don't know the exact date. _

Q. Okay. Well, do you happen to remember doing that
on a date when M?. Forbush and I were there with Mr. Stockwell,
you came in and handed him a bunch of pictures?

A, Yes. That was the same day.

Q. And were those three pictures amongst the group
that you delivered on that date?

A, I believe they were, yes.

Q. Mr. Coronado, by the way, is a -- is a deputy
sheriff assigned, at least in that point in time, to the Career
Criminal Division; is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. From how many different pairs of shoes did you take

pictures of, if you can recall?

A, I prepared a list, but offhand I'd say probably in

excess of 16 pair.
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Q. 60?
A. No one six.
Q. oh, 16.
Q. Were -- To your knowledge were there other people

in your department though in the I.D. Division at that point in
time taking pictures of shoes as well?

A, Yes, there was,

Q. On the date, June the 5th, 1983, YOubwere -~ were

you in a Sheriff's Depattment vehicle?

A. Yes, I was,

Q. What was that?

A. It was a Ford pickup truck;

Q. Showing you Exhibit 517, does that appear to be the

Ford pickup truck there parked, the white vehicle?

A, Yes, it is.

Q. On that same date that you were —-- you were seizing
the hatchet, did you sees any other particular, other evidence
from 0l1d English Road here or English Road here?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. What was that?

A, There was three six packs of beer, empty beer
bottles I believe, and two or three larger empty bottles of
wine,

Q. And they were -- were they in a, sort of spilling
out of a bag as it were?

A, Yes.

Q. Could you put an arrow with the beer on this

Exhibit 517 for the spot that you picked up those items?
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A. (Witness complied.)
Q. Approximately in distance, if you could estimate,
how far were those beer --

They were bottles?
A. I believe so, yes,
Q.  Miller? .
A. Yes,
0. How far were the Miller beer bottles from the axe?
A, Approximately a tenth of a mile,
Q. They would not have been -- it doesn't show too

well, I guess on this picture, but they would have been a little

bit towards the Dunn's residence from the actual intersection

there; is that right?

A, Yes.
Q. But within just a couple hundred feet of the
intersection?

A. Closer than that,

Q. How close?

A, Ch, I'd say maybe 75 to a hundred feet,

0. Okay. They were definitely on 0l1d English as
opposed to Peyton?

A, Yes, they were.

THE COURT: Mr. Kochis?

MR. NEGUS: Mo, I just meant it was noon, I didn't -- I
probably have an few more questions,

THE COURT: We will take the noon recess.

Remember the admonition, please. Return at 130.

Thank you.
(Noon recess taken.)
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--000—

THE COURT: Mr. Negus.

RICK ROPER,

The witness on the stand at the noon recess, resumed the stand

and testified further as follows:

BY MR. NEGUS:
Q.

CROSS EXAMINATION (Resumed)

Mr. Roper, what time did you get to the Ryen house

on June the 5th, 19832

A.

Q.

1'd say between 4:00 and 4:30 p.m..

Okay. When you got to the house did you go right

into the master bedroom?

A.

Q.
bedroom?

A.

Q.
bedroom by 4:

A,

Qo

Al
Q.

approximate,

Not initially, no.

How long was it before you went to the master

Ch, maybe as long as 10 or 15 minutes,

So, probably you would have been in the master
30 in the afternoon, is that fair?

Yes, that's right.

Ckay. Do you still have black there,

Could you put circa 1630 after the master bedroom.

{(Witness complied).

A little ®"c" in there to indicate that it is
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A, c?
Q. we're using Latin here.
Okay. When you were in the -- when you went into

the master bedroom, was there énybody else in there?

A. Yes, there was.
Q. who?
A. I believe Detective O'Campo was in there, Detective

Hall, and I believe that may have been all.

Q. what about John Clifford. Did you see him in the
master bedroom on that particular day?

A. Later on in that particular day I recall it, yes.

Q. Could you put 6-5 then for John Clifford there.

A, (Witness complied).

Q. And did you see both Mr. O'Campo and Mr. Clifford
in other parts of the house kesides the master bedroom, master
bathroom and hall near Jessica on that particular day?

A. I am sure I would have. I don't recall where
though. Possib}y in the kitchen area.

Q. Ookay. Bﬁt you are sure they were beyond, they were
in the rest of the house at least some part of the rest of the
house,

A. Yes.
Q. Could you put little check marks under "Rest of the

House"™ for both of them,
A, (Witness complied).
Q. Um, how about -- you know Captain Don Meyers; is
that right?

A, Yes, I do.
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Q. Okay. Did you see Captain Meyers in the hall
outside the master bedroom on that particular day?
A. Yep.
Q. Could you then put 6-5 for Captain Meyers.
Were you present -- did you ever see Captain Meyers

on the patio outside the master bedroom?

A, Yes.

Q. Did you -- in fact did you have a talk with him out
there?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. Cduld you put a check mark for there.

A. (Witness complied).

Q. How about Dr. Root. Did you ever see Dr. Root in

any part of the house other than the master bedroom, master

bathroom or hall near Jessica?

A, No. I only saw him while he was in the master
bedroom.

Q. Did you ever see Phil Danna come in the house that
night? A

A, No, but I spoke to Detective Danna outside of the
house,

Q. Where wculd that have been?

A, In the front, front yard area.

Q. Ckay. O©On that particular day, were you present

when the Coronor's office removed the bodies of the various

victims from the house?
A. Yes, I was.

Q. Do you know the name of the persons who are
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involved in that transportation service?
A. No, I do not,
Q. Did you see both of them in the Ryen master
bedroom?
A. I saw two, Yyes.,
Q. Ckay. Let's just -- on this next we have been

marking on diagram 226, on 227 could you put just sort of
"Southwest Transport®™ over here on the left-hand column under
No. 40.

A, (Witness complied),

MR. KOCHIS: Your Honor, the objection I have to that is
that it is a duplication. I believe they're names were on
another part of the chart,

MR. NEGUS: Only one of the names are that's why I'm
doing it. The person -- nobody knows the name yet of the second
person.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

BY MR. NEGUS:

Q. Okay. And you saw that person, you saw both

persons in the master bedroom. Could you put 6-5 there for

"Master Bedroom".

Do you recall the race of those two people?
A. One was a clack male the other a white male.
Q. Ckay. Could you put underneath this particular No,

40 in parenthesis "Black".

A. (Wwitness complied).
Q. Now, are you familiar with Assistant Sheriff
Follett?
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A, Yes, I am,

Q. Did you see him at the house on June the 5th?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Okay. Could you put Charles Follett on No., 41. I
think it is spelled without an "e® at the end.,

A. {(Witness complied).

Q. I think it is two "t's",

Where did you see Assistant Sheriff Follett?

a. Well, I spoke with him in the training arena where

the beer can was found and he accompanied me down to 2991 that

evening to walk around that house,

Q. Okay. Did you ever see him inside the Ryen house?
A, Not any place specifically that I can recall, no.
Q. Could you just put 6-5 over here, for the Ryen

general area there,
A, (Witness complied).

0. Was there -- let me think., Did you see the Sheriff

that night in the master bedroom?

“A. No, I did not.

Q. How about, do you know Deputy Chief Majors?

A. Yes,

Q. Did you see him in the master bedroom that night?

A. Yes.

Q. How about Jimmy Bradford who was then head of
homicide. Did you see him in the master bedroom that night?

A. No, I don't recall seeing him.,

Q. Were you back there on June the 6th?

A. No, I was not, not at the Ryen residence.
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Q. what about Tim Wilson did you see Tim Wilson inside
the Ryen house that particular night?

A, No, I don't recall seeing him,

Q. When you swing up here to -- when did you start
taking fingerprints inside the house?

A, It would have bkeen right around 6:00 in the
evening. 6:00 p.m..

Q. Well, some of these were actually 5:30, 5:25.

A. Yep 5:30, 6:00 o'clock.

Q. Okay. Before you took those fingerprints, did you
take any photographs?

A. Yes, I did.

0. wWhat did you do with those photographs?

A, Developed them,

Q. Are they -- are they part of the "A™ series of
photegraphs that we have in this particular case?

A. I'm sure they are, yes.

Q. At this point in time wculd you be able to tell the

photographs as to which you took as opposed to which Mr. Duffy

took?

A. I could try. It pay be kind of difficﬁlt.

Q. Do you know what kind of a camera you used?

A, Yes, A Pentax .35 milimeter,

Q. The purpose of your taking photographs was as a
back-up?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, on the date that you did the lifts of the

Lease residence, that was the -- that was the next day; is that
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correct? Or excuse me. That was three days later on the 8th of

June,
A, Yes,
Q. Okay. And was that the only day that you were

actually at the 2991 residence like inside as opposed to walking
around?

A, Yes, I believe it was.

Q. At that point in time had you already or was there
evidence that the particular areas in that house had already

been dusted for prints?

A. Yes, there was.
Q. Okay.
A. I was actually at that residence on the evening of

the 7th for a short time while it was being examined.

Q. Ckay. But you, yourself, weren't processing any
prints at that time point in time.

A. No. I was not.

Q. Now, one of these particular, one of these
particular sets of prints that you lifted from the Lease
residence, you have a identified as "See Duffy Photo No. 32".

Is that so you can identify from marking lifts by
Mr. Duffy on the, on the wall which one of these particular
fingerprints you are talking?

A, Yes. On the the closet door.

Q. Okay. Now that particular print was lifted at
1833; is that right?

A. Yep.

Q. On your chart here you don't actually have that
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A, That's correct.

0. Okay. The photograph that I'm showing you,
Photograph 151, does that indicate the markings by Deputy Duffy

that you were referring to?

A. Yes,

Q. Now, we have been through this before; is that
right?

A. I believe so,.

Q. Showing you Exhibit 49, a photograph. Does that
appear to one of the closets there?

A, Yes, it does.

Q. And the little orange letters "RR"™, were those
placed there by yourself at a previous hearing?

A, Yes, it was.

Q. And did they indicate the location of the door
where fingerprints below that No. 32 were taken?

A. No. I would -- there was another double set of
doors that's not in the photograph here. I believe it was on
that other door, the other set of double doors.

Q. The photograph that you have in your hand, is there
a vellow "S-28" on the back of that?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. I would Like to read, your Honor -—- by the way the
photograph for Mr. Duffy, the Exhibit 32, does that have the
yYellow H-268 underneath the =--

A. Yes, it does.

Q. Are those the two photographs that you were shown
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at a previous hearing --
A, Yes.
Q. -- that we have been talking? 3247,
THE COURT: Volume?
MR. NEGUS: The motions. 1I'm sorry, I don't have that

volume, just --

MR. KOCHIS: It is not necessary we have a volume for

that.
MR. NEGUS: 3247, Line 23 through 3248, Line 23.
THE CCURT: Go ahead.
BY MR. NEGUS:
Q. {Reading)
"Question: Showing you H-268. 1Is that a

photograph of the closet door to which you are

referring?

"Answer: Yes, it is.

"Question: Could you put a number 'l*' and a
number '2' if it appears for the latents that you

have lifted for the spot that they were lifted

from,

*Answer: No. This says '32' but it appears they
were even further down than that in it and the
area I believe I lifted them from does not even
show in this photograph}

"Question: So they would be toward the bottom of
the photograph there?

"Answer: More toward the carpet, yes.

"Question: How far up from the carpet were
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they?

"Answer: The exact measurements were marked on the
latent card but I believe one was about six to
eight inches, the other approximately maybe a
foot.

"Question: Showing you S-28. Does that appear to
be a photograph of a closet that you developed it
from?

"Answer: Yes, it does.

"Question: There appears to be four different
closet doors that appear on that. Can you tell
which is the one?

"Answer: Yes, I can,

"Question: Can you mark that.

"Answer: It was inside of this door here with just
the edges showing.

"Question. Could you put 'RR' on the photograph on
that door.

"Answer: (Witness complied).

When you were in the, going to the Ryen scene on

June the Sth, did you have a particular call number designation

that you used on the radio?
A. Yes, I did.
Q. And what was that?
A. 43-David, it was either "1" or "3". It was -- 1
orginally had "3", it was subsequently changed to "1", But I

can't recall when that --

Q. You would have been the only person on that
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particular date, that particular scene, broadcasting with a
*43-David" number though; is that right?

A. on the 5th of June?

Q. Yes.
A, No
Q. Who else would have been?

A. Deputy Duffy.
Q. So it was either *1" or "3® though,
A. For mine, yes.

MR. NEGUS: Nothing further.

FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. KOCHIS:

Q. Sergeant Roper, did you determine over the lunch
hour that you did not mark on the diagram of the Lease house all
of the lifts that you had in fact made on the 8th of June?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Could you step to Exhibit 5-F and could you add the

lift that you left off.
A. {(Witness complied).

Q. Did you indicate a date and a time on that as well?
A, Yes, I did.

MR. XO0CHIS: Thank you.

Your Honor, I have no further questions.

THE COURT: Anything else?

FURTHER RECROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. NEGUS:
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Q. Do you have an independent recollection of that
lift being from the closet door which you have indicated rather
than your previous testimony?

A. I know that it was from the closet door that was
marked 32. When I lifted it I was still lying down in the
closet and I didn't have -- in the way I was doing it, I didn't
want to try and write, but I knew No. 32 was there.

But recalling now it appears to me that it was the
first double set of doors as you walked in the room to your
right. It would be the closet doors closest to the doorway.

Q. Are you basing that on information that you have
received from the prosecutor or from Mr. Duffy?

A. No, it is what I recall now, .

Q. Do you -- was your recollection better last June
when you testified to the contrary at the previous hearing?

A, It should have been.

Q. Do you have any explanation as to why you marked
the other set of doors at that time?

A. No, I do not.

MR. NEGUS: Thank you. That's all I have.

MR. KOCHIS: 1I have no further questions,

THE CCURT: Thank you again. ‘

MR. KOCHIS: Dr. Root is not available until tomorrow. I

- didn't anticipate we would be this expedient with the witnesses

today.
THE COURT: MNobody else, Mr. Kochis?

MR, KOCHIS: No.

THE CCURT: Well, this comes as somewhat of a surprise to
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me. It seemed like we could have forseen this before lunch and
could have have even had him drive down.

MR. KOTTMEIER: Your Honor, Dr. Root was in the process
of an autopsy over the noon hour and was still in the autopsy at
1:30 when I called him.

THE COURT: You have established a bad precedent, Mr.
Kochis, having everybody in line.

We will have to break for today, having exhausted
the present witnesses. Remenber the admonition, return tomorrow
at 9:30. 1In the meantime,bdon't talk about the case with one
another, or discuss it, nor express or form an opinion on the

matter.

we will see you tomorrow morning at 9:30.
~--o00000--

(Adjournment)
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THE COURT: Good morning.

Mr. Kottmeier.

MR. KOTTMEIER: Morning, your Honor.

The first witness will be Dr. Irving Root.

And as Dr. Root takes the stand, 1 would request
leave of the Court to give Court and cousel a paper ruler that
has a centimeter conversion on it. Dr. Root will be testifying
strictly in centimeters, and to most 6f us that's kind of a
foreign measurement.

THE COURT: Come forward, doctot, Please,

IRVIKG ROOT,

called as a witness on behalf of the People, having been first
sworn, testified as follows:

THE CLERK: Thank you. Would you state your full name
for the record, please.

THE WITNESS: 1Irving Root.

" THE CLERK: Spell your last name.
TBE WITNESS: R-o0-o-t.

THE CLERK: Thank you.

DIRECT EXANINATION

BY MR. KOTTMEIER:
Q. Mr. Root, what is your occupation, please.

A. I am a doctor, medical doctor. I specialize in the
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practice of pathology.

I am board certified in three areas: Anatomic
Pathology, Clinical Pathology, and Forensic Pathology;

My practice is today primarily forensic pathology.
I am in private practice, but the bulk of my time in practice is
in conjunction with my contract with the County of San Bernadino

as the pathologist for the Coroner's Office of San Bernadino

County.

Q. As a pathologist have you been trained as a medical
doctor?

A. Oh, yes, that's the primary requirement.

Q. And generally, can you tell us what your

educational background consists of?

A, I received my Undergraduate Bachelor's Degree from
the University of California at Berkeley; entered medical
school, University of California School of Medicine four year
curriculun, 1949 through 1953; received the M.D. degree from the
University of California School of Medicine San Francisco in
1953.

I had a one year internship, general clinical
internship, rotating internship. I was licensed to practice
medicine in the State of California in 1954.

I began a specialty training program, a residency
in pathology, anatomic and clinical pathology, in 1954,

That was interrupted by a tour of duty in the Navy.
I was in the Navy as a doctor, a flight surgeon, for two and a
half years. And upon release from active duty, I resumed my

training, my specialty training residency in pathology, anatomic
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and clinical.pathology, at the University of California School
of Medicine, San Francisco.

Let‘me interrupt for just a moment. My internship
in the first few months of the residency were in Connecticut
Hartford Hospital, Hartford, Connecticut. I completed my
residency, four year residency training program, anatomic and
clinical pathology, 1961.

I took the board examination given by the American
Board of Pathology for specialty certification for anatomic and
clinical pathology in 1962, That was a three-day written
practical exam, which I passed, and was then certified as having
achieved specialty status in anatomic and clinical pathology.

Upon completion of my formal residency training
program in 1961 in anatomic and clinical pathology, I began in
private practice in pathology. And about half of my time in
the -- for a number of years was spent involved in the field of
forensic pathology, which was just beginning to evolve as a
separately recognized area of specialty expertise.

Based upon years-of experience and some additional
postgraduate courses I became eligible for board examination,
again the American Board of Pathology, in forensic pathology in
1970, I took that exam, an one-day written practical
examination, passed that and was then certified as having
achieved specialty status in forensic pathology also.

Q. You've used three terms. First of all "anatomic
pathology®, can you just give us a brief description of what
that particular field encompasses?

A. Well, let me start with the term "pathology® first
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in general. Pathology is that specialty practice of medicine
dealing with the evaluation, interpretation, analysis, the
understanding of the caﬁse of abnormality in the human body.
It's not a treatment area. We do not generally treat patients.
It's more in the diagnostic area.

In the case of anatomic pathology, these
evaluations, studies are done through examination of the tissues
of the human body, either examination biopsies, specimens of
tissue removed during surgery from a living patient, either a
biopsy or an excision of a portion of tissue. These are
examined in vary various ways. A diagnosis is made,
interpretation.

The anatomic pathologist also dces do autopsies,
the examination of the body after death to evaluate the disease
process.

Anatomic pathology is primarily concerned with
those disease processes, those abnormalities, those changes that
are a result of other than natural disease process -- I'm
sorry -— with natural disease process, I correct myself, with
natural disease process, aging processes, infections,
degenerative diseases, cancer, all of the ails and ills that the
human body is heir to.

Clinical pathology, if I might jump on, is very
similar in that it also deals with the understanding,
interpretation, evaluation of those changes that are a result of
natural disease process; but this is done through various types
of laboratory studies, tests, and analysis that might be done in

a laboratory, chemistry studies, serologic studies,
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bacteriologic studies, the kinds of things that are done in a
medical laboratory, but again primarily confining itself to
those areas of change that are a result of the natural disease
processes. |
Q. Forensic pathologist, the last area that you're

board certified in, what does that particular area --—

| A. Well, again, patholegy I've already defined, and
forensic pathology then is more concerned with the analysis, the
evaluation, the interpretation of those changes that are a
result of other than natural disease process; the effects of
trauma of all kinds on the human body, blunt injuries, cutting
injuries, stabbing injuries, gunshot wounds, the effects of
poisons, drugs, chemicals of all tyres on the hﬁman body; the
evaluation, the nature, the interpretation of these in terms of

function, physiology, the effects on the human body.

Q. Are you a member of any professional organizations?
A. Yes,

Q. Can you give us an example of some of them?

A. Well, I'm a member of my county redical society,

“hich is San Bernadino County Medical Society; a subsidiary
group of that, the Foundation for Medical Care, I'm past
president of that; a member of the California Medical
Association; just recent past chairman of the committee of the
CMA, California Medical Association, on Automobile and Highway
Traffic Safety.

I'm a menber of the American Medical Association,
the College of American Pathologists, American Society of

Clinical Pathologists, American Academy of Forensic Sciences,
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National Association of Medical Examiners.
Q. Have.you been published in the past?
“the field of

A. 'Yés}-l‘Ve’haduseveralJarticlé‘3‘

forensic pathology and toxicology published.

Q. Have you done any teaching in the area of
pathology?

A. Yes.

Q. And for what university or schools?

A. Well, currently I have an appointment as Associate

Clinical Professor of Pathology at Loma Linda University Medical
Centeér, and basically this is in the area of forensic pathology.
I have lectured for a number of years at the University on
various topics of forensic pathology.

In the last few years there have been a
change in the requirements, the national requirements for board
certification in anatomic pathology for the residents in
anatomic pathology, that requires that the applicants, the
residents, have some actual on-~-hands experience, actual time
involved in forensic pathology. And to that extent the
residents, the pathology residents at Loma Linda, all spend
sometire, at least one month with me. Some of them have been
back for two or three additional months as part of their
training program.

V In addition to that and independent of Loma Linda,
I have my own residency training program in forensic pathology.
Tﬁere are 32 such training programs in the United States in
forensic pathology. Most of these are in forensic pathology are

really outside of the University, only a handful of them are
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actually associated with the University. The -- I have one of
those.

I currenfly do have twd residents, young doctors in
training. This is an one-year training program. And so I have
the teaching responsibilities in that regard, in that area also.

Q. Pathology is a relatively limited field, isn't it?

A. Yes.

Q. In fact, about how many board certified
pathologists are there in the United States?

A, Well, in practice there are perhaps about 250, and
this contrasts with maybe 10,000, 11,000 pathologists with board
certification in anatomic pathology and clinical pathology, the
areas of pathology as practiced in most hospitals.

Q. Dr. Root, in your experience approximately how many
autopsies have you performed?

A. Well, perhaps 15,000.

Q. And during the period of time that we're talking
about, have you ever been called to testify as an expert witness

as a result of your findings from those autopsies?

A. Yes,

Q. About how many times?

A, Oh, I've testified, 400, 500 times.

Q. In both the Municipal Court, Superior Courts, and

Federal Courts?

A, Yes.

Q. And in a variety of counties, states and
jurisdictions?

A, Yes. Also in criminal as well as civil

COMPUTERIZED TRANSCRIPT

LJ
|

/
-
/
1
<

"
-t

f_.C



W @ N O N e W N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

25
26
27
28

3833

proceedings.

Q. On June the 5th, 1982, a Sunday, were you called to

a scene of a homicide in the Chino Hills area?

A, Yes, I was,

Q. And do you recall about what time you arrived
there?

A. I don't recall the precise time. I made no records

of that examination., It was latg afternoon. It was still
sunlight, But I don't recall the precise time. I think it -- I
recall receiving the phone call, I think we were having supper,
so it was late that afternoon.

Q. And about how long did you spend there at the
homicide scene?

A. I don't recall precisely, an hour or two. I don't
have an independent recollection and I made no note.

Q. And what was your purpose in going to that scene?

A. They -- my presence was requested basically, I
believe, to allow me to get some better impression, overall view
of the circumstances, to enable me to put the scene's
circumstances in perspective with my autopsy findings, more of
an overall impression than to look for specific -~ anything
specific. I rade no specific notes of my visit.

I do go to the scene on some occasions and I
usually do not make specific notes as to my observations at the
scene, only my observations at the autopsy examination.

‘Q. v At this particular scene did you observe four
victims that you later performed autopsies on?

A, Yes.
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MR. KOTTMEIER: Your Honor, may approach the board?
We're going to be using some models and it will be easier to
work with the witness.

THE COURT: Yes.

BY MR. KOTTMEIER:
Q. Now, first of all, Dr. Root, showing you Exhibit

176, do you recognize the person in this picture?

A, Yes,
Q. Did you perform an autopsy on this particular
decedent?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. For our purposes here we've identified the person

in 176 as Douglas Ryen.

And I would direct your attention for the record to
a plastic model that has been labeled 525. It is an approximate
one foot high plastic model.

You've had an opportunity to look at 525 before
today, haven't you, Dr. Root?

A, Yes, I have.

Q. Now the purpose of 525 specifically is to show the
location of various wounds and types of wounds on the model in
approximate locations similar to those that you discovered on
Douglas Ryen; is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. The model itself is not necessarily an accurate
representation of his size, weight, and so on, is it?

Ao NO' sit.

Q. Can you give the jury an approximate idea of
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Douglas Ryen's height and weight?

A, Measured height 74 and a half inches, weight
measured 176 pounds.

Q. In regard to the Exhibit 525, you've had an
opportunity to verify generally the location of the various
wounds; is that correct?

A, Yes.

Q. Within this particular model we have used the color
brown to represent, for lack of a better term, chop wounds.

Can you explain to the jury what a chop wound means
to you as far as a forensic pathologist?

A. A chop wound is an injury produced by a chopping
nmechanism, a relatively sharp-edged instrument such as a hatchet
or axe striking against some relatively resistant surface so
that the edge -- there is incizing or cutting injury caused in
part by the relatively sharp edge of the instrument, but in part
by compression against a somewhat non-giving object.

Certainly the impact is in part a result of the
weight, the mass of the instrument, plus the speed, the
velocity, the force then applied against a resisting object,
such as bone, or certainly a nuch more common object, wood, when
one chops wood for a fireplace.

The injuries that are prcduced to be identified as
a chop injury will have a pattern somewhat similar to that that
appears in a piece of wood, a log, that one chops with an axe or
a hatchet. There's a wedge-shaped deformity in the bone.

About the only way normally that I can distinguish

an injury as a chop injury from, say, produced by a sharp-edged
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instrument such as a hatchet or an axe from an incised injury
caused by a knife is that the injury must produce some injury
into the bone also.

Q. So, you need that solid bone surface from which to
get that finalized information that it was a chop as opposed to
an incision?

A, Yes. From my point of view I have to do that. I
think it is possible to produce injuries with, say, a hatchet
into soft tissue without impacting into bone, but I don't think
I would -- at least in a number of those cases, I don't think I
would be able to call that a chop injury. I wouldn't be able to
distinguish it.

Q. This is going to be somewhat difficult because I
need to also refer to these models, but, doctor, as you perform
your autopsy do you assign numbers to the various injuries that
you see on the body?

A, Yes.

Q. Those numbers don't mean énything as far as the
order in which the wounds were received, does it or do they?

A, No. The numbers are strictly for my convenience to
refer to a particular injury. They are strictly random.

Q. Let me direct your attention first of all to a
series of chop-type injuries that also had with them some
fracturing of bone material.

Did you notice any of those kinds of injuries on
Douglas Ryen?
A. Yes; yes.

Q. Directing your attention first of all to Wound No.
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7, which on 525 would correspond to the upper portion of the
right forearm.

A. Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All the jurors can't see that.

MR. KOTTMEIER: I'm not sure what we can do.

Q. If you can possibly indicate on your own body.

A, First of all, there is a brown line just beyond the
elbow on the inside of the right forearm on the model. On my
case that would be -- well, it would be on the elbow on the
little finger side of the forearm.

Q. And that is consistent with a chop wound that you

discovered in Doug Ryen; is that correct?

A, Yes.,

Q. And that particular chop wound also cut the bone
underneath?

A. Yes. Well, in this case it went clear through the

bone. The particular bone involved was the ulna.
There are two bones in the forearm. This is the
ulna and the radius.
And this particular injury chopped, went clear
through the ulna, as well as, of course, the skin.
Q. Moving down the arm just a little bit, that same

arm, did you find another chop wound that you labeled Wound No.

82

A, Yes. That's shown -- well, it's above the wrist on
the right forearm on the little finger side. There is a black
or brown line, right forearm, and that would be about, well, let

me doublecheck myself, eight centimeters above the wrist, which
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would be about here.

Mr. Kottmeier, let me go back to that ruler that
you gave out. May I see one? All right, yes. Never mind,
that's fine. I see exactly what I need.

That particular ruler, for reference purposes, has
both a‘centimeter and an inch rule on it, and it -- the -- it
might make it easier to compare. For instance, eight
centimeters is equivalent to just a little over three inches.
So you might use the ruler from that point of view to compare,

to put it into terms that you might be more familiar with so.

Q. wound No. 8 also cut the ulna; is that correct?
A. Yes, it did.
Q. In fact, that literally took almost a wedge or a

pie-shaped section out of the forearm when it struck?

A, Yes. It -- it produced -- well, yes, it produced
actual fragmenting of the ulna also.

Q. Now, directing your attention to the head area, in
particular a series of wournds that you have labeled 19, which
would correspond on the model or diagram to the top wound on the
left-hand side, it's the longer one.,

aA. There are in your -- on the model here a series of
brown lines on the left side of the head one of which does go
through the left ear. |

Q. Tre cne, 19 is the topmost on. that particular
model; is that correct?

| A. Yes.
Q. Now, 19 when you examined it, did you form an

opinion as to how many blows were struck to cause the resulting
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damage to the left side of Doug Ryen's head?

A, Although on first impression there seems to be a
single cut or incision, chop incision, actually on closer
examination there appear to be two separate lines; and,
therefore, my impression is that that represented, No. 19
actually represented two separate chop incision injuries.

Can I interrupt myself for a moment? Let me define
another word that I have been using several times here,
"incision®. As a pathologist I'm going to use certain terms in
describing wounds in a, I hope, somewhat reproducible precise
fashion. It may not always be so.

The term "incision®™ is an injury that is produced
in the body by a sharp-edged instrument, a knife, a razor blade,
a piece of sharp-edged glass, a scalpel. The wound edges are
cleanly cut. There is no tearing of the skin.

I will also use the term "laceration®. Aand that is
an injury caused by tearing. The edges of the skin are somewhat
rough and ragged.

Now the term "cut®" is used, not very precisely by
most people} to imply either an incision or a laceration. And
from the term "cut® I can't tell you how the injury was caused,
so I try to avoid that term. I may even lapse into using it
myself occasionally, but I try to avoid it because it is not a
very precise injury -- I'm sorry precise description.

Q. In regard to No. 19 though, that particular wound
itself did cause fracturing of the skull, didn't it?

A. Yes, it did.

Q. Directly under 19 there is a wound that you labeled
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No. 20 which goes through the left ear?
A, That's correct; yes, sir.
Q. Is that also a similar type of chop with fracture

wound as in the case of the two wounds or two motions in 19?2

A. Yes, it is.

Q. Moving then to an area that corresponds to just
behind the left ear, at kind of a diagonal angle between 19 and
20 -- yes, between 19 and 20; is that wound 22?

A, Wait a minute. 20, well, 21 is the vertical up and
down one. Let's see. Let me go back over these.

19 goes from front to back and it's the uppermost
of the wounds, of the lines. 20 goes through the left éa: from
front to back. 21 is more or less up and down from head to foot

toward the back end of 19 and 20.

Q. 22 is --

A, 22 is --

Q. -- right at that point?

A, That's correct. 22 runs from front to back, if you

will, or at least in the same general direction as 19 and 20.

And then 23 is the lowermost of that group of brown
wounds over the 1eft side, the lower part of the skull, and it
also runs from front to ‘back.

Q. Oof Ehose'five marked locations on 525, four of
them, that would be 19, 20, 22, and 23, are all chop wounds with
fractures; is that correct? |

A. Yes.

Q. Now, you also mentioned that vertical wound or

diagonal wound which is right in this area here between 19 and
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20, the one that's almost diagonal --

A, Yes, ‘

Q. -- from the others that you labeled as Wound 21; is
that correct?

A, That's correct.

Q. Now, Wound 21 did not have any fracture with it,
did it?

A. No. It did not go into the bone.

Q. And as a result, as far as your earlier description

of wounds, that could have been caused by either the hatchet or

some other kind of cutting instrument in an incision-type

fashion?

A. Yes.

Q. And that's because there is no injury to the bone
undecneath?

A, That's correct. That's correct.

Q. Now, in these wounds, 19, 20, 21, 22, and 23, could

those have been delivered to Douglas Ryen in the position that
he is in as pictured in Exhibit 1762

A. They could have been, yes.

Q. Could they have been done in very rapid succession,
within just a matter of a second or two?

A. Yes, they could have.

Q. In fact, the way in which those wounds are laid out
on the skull tend to indicate that the skull was not moving at

the time the blows were delivered, doesn’t it?

A, Yes. They are -- that is what I would call ‘a tight

pattern.
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Q. In your examination of Douglas Ryen, did you form
any opinion in particular about Wounds 19, 20, and 22 as to
whether he was dead or alive at the time he received the wounds?

A. I can't be sure on those three. My -- my
determination as to whether an injury is inflicted before or
after death depends upon the finding of bleeding with the wound.
And basically I have to find bleeding into the tissues, not just
bleeding from the surface of the wound, because there can be
some oozing or loss of blood from the surface of a cut injury
after death, a small amount. But basically I have to have
evidence that the hurt was pumping and, therefore, there was
bleeding that has occurred, and that will -- for my findings has
to be bleeding into the tissues where I can see an accumulation
of blood.

I simply was unable to make up my mind on those
three whether there was bleeding intovthe tissue. I thought

there might have been in particular with 20 -- Oh, dear.

Q. We will get to that one in just a moment.

A, You --

Q. 232

A. No, 22. Well, those three I had hesitations on,

but 22 I was thinking a little more likelihood that bleeding,
but again, it was ~— I was -- I am equivocal on that. I simply
do not have a good opinion.

Q. As and individual goes into shock, can that
individual have a corresponding loss of blood pressure as the

shock progresses worse and worse?

A. Yes, certainly. I really have to expand on my
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terminology.

I've said my distinction between whether a person
was alive or whether the injury occurred before or after death,
really also applies to a person in shock. A person in shock is:
alive, but if the blood pressure is too low there may not be any
bleeding and so really I guess what I'd have to do is say that
there was bleeding or there was not bleeding and I'm not
absolutely certain then whether they are alive or not.

Q. So it is possible that when you find very little
bleeding that person was in shock or close to dying although not
fully dead or deceased.

A. That's a possibility that I can't distinguish.

Q. In regard again to Wound No. 23, that's the wound
that arose mostly behind the left ear.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you find bleeding in that wound?

A, Yes, this one definitely had bleeding.

Q. And in regard to 23, is that the kind of injury
that would normally knock a person unconscious?

A. It certainly could. No. 23 has resulted in injury
to the bone, and I think any, any blow that causes damage to the
skull bone is a blow of sufficient magnitude that it could cause
loss of consciousness. Whether it did of course I can't say;
But it certainly could.

Q. At least as far as this group of wounds that we
have been discussing, would it be your opinion that 23 came
before the other chop wounds to the left side of the head

because of the presence of bleeding?
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A. Well, certainly that is a possibility, yes. Based

on that finding alone, yes.

Q. Are there other considerations that would effect
your decision in that regard?

A. Possibly. Let's see. There was one of these in
particular -- yes., 21. This is purely an incisional wound,
that is, it did not go into the bone, and it is possible that
one might have less obvious bleeding from that kind of a wound
than the wound that causes damage to the bone, where it would.

have bleeding to the tissue more likely.

So that's a variable that I can't completely deal
with.

Q. Directing your attention now to the right side of
the head., You have marked on that, or there is marked to the
right side above the right ear and a little bit to the back, a
group of three separate marks.

A, Yes, sirt.

Q. First of all, directing your attention to the two
that are more to the back of the head than the other one.

Are those Wounds 26 and 27?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And those what you would call chop incisions?

A. Yes. let me double-check this out. 26 is
definitely a chop incision -- no. 27, I don't know.

27 is more of a laceration or tearing of the scalp.

It could have been caused by a chopping action, I simply don't

know, Yeah, 27, I did not in my original report describe that

as "chop”®.
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Q. In 27 the thing that is different than the wounds
that we've talked about thus far is the fact that some of the
edges of that particular wound are irregular or abraided; is
that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. When you talk about irreqular or an abrasion around
the wound margins or edges, can you give us a more detailed
explanation as to what kind of abrasions or lacerations you're
talking about?

A, Well, this is scraping of the wound margins and
this is something that is caused by a rough, not clean cutting
edge, not clean incising knife edge,

Now, it might be caused by a relatively sharp-edged
object, but unless it‘is an edge that has the configuration of a
knife, razor blade, the injury will be slightly -- will have the
appearance of being slightly torn rather than very cleanly

incised through.

For instance, a sharp-edged piece of metal, right
angle, is a fairly sharp edge but it is not truly a cutting
edge. The impact with that kind of object, that kind of edge
could produce something that's quite sharp, but it is not
perfectly sharp and therefore it has to be defined as a

laceration.,

Q. Let me direct your attention for a moment to the

right hand of Douglas Ryen.

In your examination of him during the autopsy, did
you find what you numbered Wounds 1, or excuse me, Wounds 9 and

10 to the right hand, which would be the right middle finger,
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and then the finger next to it, which would go towards the
little finger? _

A. Yes. The ring middle would be No. 3 and the ring
finger No. 4. And, yes, I did.

Q. In fact, as far as those particular hands were
concerned, the middle finger of Douglas Ryen was missing just
below the knuckle.

A. Yes.

Q. Did you find a finger or was a finger delivered to
you that fit that particular location?

A. Yes. It was -- the finger was amputated. The

finger was found at the scene and was brought in with the body.

Q. In addition --

A, Well, let me -- and, yes, it fit. It was his
finger.

Q. In addition in the ring finger on that right hand

there was a wound that was towards the amputated middle finger;

is that correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. Did you form an opinion as to the same blow may
have caused the injury that amputated the finger as well as the
injury to the ring finger?

A. Yes., I think it is in such position and such a
direction that one motion could have caused both injuries 9 and
10. 9 being the injury where the finger has been amputated and
10 the chopping injury, but not completely am amputational.

Q. The chopping injury then to the ring finger?

A. Ring finger.
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Q. Without amputation.
A, Without amputation.
Q. The reason you can use the term ®chopping® is

because you have an injury to the bone in the finger itself; is
that correct?

A, Yes. That's --

Q. Based upon your experience, is it possible or
consistent with what you saw ih Douglas Ryen that the injury to
the fingers, 9 and 10, were a result of the blow to the head of
Wound 27 that had abraided rcargins, that is, in a form where
Doug Ryen had put his right hand up to protect his head, and a
hatchet blow came through the middle finger and continued onto
cause the abraided wound or laceration that you've referred to
as Wound 27.

A, Certainly it can be caused in that way, and that
the injuries to the hands are comconly referred to as, well, by
pathologists, as defense injuries, particularly when they're
present with numerous other injuries about the body.

That word "defense® izplies that the hands were not
the primary target of the attack, that the hands, or it may
certainly be other parts of the body, too, but that the hands
were used in an attempt to protect one's self, hence the term
"defense wounds®,

But there is nothing characteristic about the
injury beyond the location that would enable me to say this is a
defense wound.

Q. In fact, we're going to see later on in some of

your cbservations other defense wounds to the hands of the other
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victims.
B, Yes, that's quite correct.
Q. However, there is something unique, isn't there,

about the finger being amputated in that it is very difficult or
a problem to have a finger held in the hand, held in the air and
take a chopping wound and chopping that finger off.

A, Yes. For a chop to be effective, the object that's
also being chopped has to be supported. If it gives -- the
force of the blow is going to be dissipated.

On the other hand, if that hand is held against the
head, the finger, as in this case, is supported, the hand can't
move away, the finger can't move away and you have in effect a
chopping action just as you would in using a hatchet or an axe
to chop a small piece of wood.

Q. But supported on a stump or something.

A, Supported on a stump,

Q. As opposed to trying to hold the piece in the hand
and hit it with a hatchet to try and cut it in half.

A, That is a very good example of how it works.,

Q. Just forward of Wounds 26 and 27, we have a brown
kind of "X"™ that is rmarked.

Does that correspond to the location on Doug Ryen

of Wound 252

A, Yes.

Q. And what description did you find when you examined
Wound 25?2

A. . Wound 25 is a laceration. Not only is the skin

torn or lacerated, but the margins are somewhat compressed,
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scraped, washed, contused, is the term I used. Contused.

So, it is a contused laceration and it is slightly
irregular, almost star-like, the arms of the star radiating
outward in different directions. I'm sorry.

Q. Did you examine the scalp or, excuse me, the skull

underneath the scalp of Wound 252

A. Yes.

Q. And did you find any fracturing underneath that
wound?

A. Yes, there was a depressed skull fracture. The

bone was actually pushed into the inside of the head.
Q. However, in the total examination of that wound
area, did you find very much bleeding?

aA. Let's see, A little bit. Not extensively, no.

Q. would that be consistent with him being in shock at-

the time he received that particular wound?
A, Yes,
Q. In regard to that particular wound, that would be

what you would call a blunt end type of fracture?

A, Well,

Q. Blunt instrument?

A, Blunt instrument injury, yes.

Q. Could that be consistent with a hatchet head as

opposed‘to the cutting side of a hatchet?

A.,  The head? Well, let me use the term the
non-cutting side. If that's what you mean by the head, yes.
The non-cutting surface, the back end of the hatchet could

certainly cause this kind, could certainly cause Injury No. 25,
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Q. You also discovered a couple of injuries that you
weren't sure were caused by a hatchet or a knife that weté an
incision, or I am going to use this term and you could use it or
not use it, or a slash-type of injury that caused a very
relatively long wound into the back of Douglas Ryen just about
shoulder high on the right side, and I'm pointing now to a wound
right on the shoulder area that you marked as being Wound No.

30. 1Is that correct?

A, No. 30 is on the left side. The one you are
pointing to is either 33 or -- well, no you have a double color
there, and that one is 33. |

Q. All right.

A. Yes. Here is the diagram that corresponds with
that.

Q. Right. Okay. 33 is about how long?

A, It is eight centimeters long.

Q. Did you have a depth for that wound?

A, It penetrates at least eight centimeters into the
tissues,

Q. In fact it strikes the bone, doesn't it?

A, Oh, yes. Yes.

Q. Did it do any --

A, The shoculder blade. The scapula.

Q. Did it do any damage to that particular boné?

A, Yes. Actually it incised, cut, chopped through the
bone,

Q. Would that make 33 more consistent with a

hatchet-type wound as to opposed to a knife incision?
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Yes, I believe so.
This is a kind of an oval shaped wound when you

it during your examination, isn't that correct, but

with pointed ends?

THE
MR,
to refresh
it will be
THE
are showin
MR.

numbering

I'm sorry, I don't recall, I have to review the --
-- photograph?
Yeah. An oval.
Is that --
An eliptical.
COURT: Are you going to mark that?
KOTTMEIER: No, your Honor, I'm just going -- trying
his recollection with the photograph. I do not think
intrcduced unless there is other --
COURT: well, the practice is to mark whatever you
g.
NEGUS: I have no problems with using whatever

system we have. I don't see that as a big problem.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

THE WITNESS: ©No. 33 is eliptical, if you will, and

basically

the ends,

the nature of that appearance is simply a result of

I'n sorry, the sides of the wound gaping open.

BY MR. KOTTMEIER:

Q.

You have that same picture in your slides; isn't

that correct?

A.
Q.

Yes.

In fact, that is a picture from the slides that you

took during the autopsy examination.

A.

I believe so, yes.
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Q. I may have asked this, but to make sure, your
opinion then is that 33 is more consistent with a hatchet-type
of incision or hatchet chop than it is with a knife.

A. Yes *

Q. Now, returning to the other side for a moment, and
that would be Wound 30, the other one that we have talked that I

mentioned before which was on the left side.

A. Yes, sir.
Q. Do you see the approximate location of that wound?
A, Yes. Let's see, Yes. 30. I believe this -- yes,

this is 30. It is red, on the back of the left shoulder, is a
grouping, if you will, of three, and No. 30 is the highest or

the upper most of that grouping of three.

Q. Now, in No. 30 you called that what kind of a
wound?

A, An incision. An incised -- well, actually it is an
incision,

Q. And do you have any dimensions for Wound 302

A. Eight centimeters long, an undermining cut into the
tissue or incising into the tissue about three centimeters.

Q. Did that do any injury to the bone?

A, No. Yot that I noted, no. I described this as
involving the skin, primarily.

Q. Are both of those injuries before death? Were they
received with some bleeding, or did you note bleeding?

A. 30 had some bleeding. 33 had bleeding, yes.

Q. So those would be received before death.

A. Yes.
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Q. Now, I would like to direct your attention to a
series of stab-type wounds.

Can you first of all define for us the term "stab®.

A, A stab wound is a penetrating injury that
penetrates deeper into the body into the tissues by dimension
than the surface dimension of that wound.

As an example, if a wound, if the surface of the
wound is -- the surface dimension is one centiﬁete:, a stab
wound would have to penetrate deeper than one centimeter to be
defined as a stab wound.

Q. Referring your attention to the wound that is
almost in the center of the chest, nearer the left nipple.

Did you identify that in your autopsy as Wound No.
3?

A. Yes, sir.

Q.b And can you describe for the jury what kind of an
injury you saw associated with the tissue in the area that is
depicted on 525 and labeled by you as Wound 3?2

A. Well, 3 is a stab injury, it is an incised injury.
That is, the edges are sharply, cleanly incised and it is a stab
injury. It is 3.5 centimeters long on the surface.

Q. That refers to the cut?

A, On the skin.

Q. All right. It is -- yes.

Now, I'm sorry, did you -- and the depth.

A. The depth, yes. Between nine centimeters to ten

centimeters into the body.

Q. How do you tell the depth of a wound like that?
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A, Well, that is done on the internal examination, in
most cases. Certainly in this case it was.
Q. Do you dissect the wound itself?
A, Well, not the wound as such. During the course of

the actual autopsy examination I am able to follow the path of
this wound, and come to its final resting point.

Now, I can only give an approximation of the depth
of penetration of a wound into the body, I cannot give precise
measurements because there is potential for a considerable
amount of give,

A stab wound into the soft tissue compresses the
tissue, and so in this case a knife, a knife blade could
actually be buried, if you will, three centimeters and yet
produce a wound, when the tissue is :eiaxed, that is penetrated
five centimeters. I can push into my abdomen three, four, five
centimeters, I can actually compress my abdomen at least in
half, half the normal width of it, and one can do that with a
knife so much, and that is why when I give a depth of
penetration into soft tissue, it has to be accepted as an
approximation.

Q. And in this particplar case, Wound No. 3 didn't
strike any bone or hard material that stopped the wound that
allows you to say what the specific depth was,

A. That's correct. It did strike bone but it went
through the bone; it went through the sternum or breast plate,
but that's on the outside. |

The -- I'm sorry. The wound continued through, it

actually went into the heart and, again, one of the problems
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here in estimating a depth of penetration is that many of the
organs of the body and the heart, certainly, is no exception,
can move around to the extent their position is not fixed. The
position in which I find the heart at the time of autopsy may
not be the precise position that the heart was in when the
injury was inflicted. So, that's another variable.

Q. Now, with a cut through the sternum, does that tell
you, through your experience, anything about the instrument that
may have caused Wound No. 3?

A, Something. It does -- it dces tell me that it has
to be a fairly sturdy knife. This is a knife wound, this is an
incision caused by a sharp-edged instrument.

Q. Maybe as an illustration, would a steak knife be
capable of doing that kind of an injury?

A. I am a little reluctant. I am have seen very sout
steak knives. ©No, steak knives are a little too flexible and I
would expect that the blade would actually break off striking
the bone. Even the sternum is certainly not as hard a bone a,
say, the hipbone, the femur. But even so, it is a fairly solid
object and most flexible. Many flexible knives would break off.

I can nmake one other statement about the knife.
The measurement on the surface of the sternum, the bone, is
about four centimeters long. So, it is unlikely that the width
of the knife is greater than four centimeters; it could be quite
a bit less. It could be three centimeters and there could be
some cutting action of that instrument. But it can't be very
much more than four centimeters where it went through the bone.

Q. Because the bone holds the width of the wound.
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That's right. Bone will not change shape as will

skin or other soft tissue.

Q.

Referring to the wound that is down towards the

center near the navel. Is that Wound No. 4?2

A'
Q.
A.

Q.

far it -- in

examination?

A.

Yes, sir.

And that is also a stab wound.

Yes.

And the surface dimension or length of that wound?
2.5 centimeters long.

And the depth being approximately?

I don't see that I actually measured that one how

it went. Just one moment.

That would Lhave been done on the internal

I don't see that. I'm sorry, I can't find my

record of the depth of that one and I may be missing --

THE COURT: Counsel, perhaps we can take the recess that

would give you more time.

gentlemen.

Let's take the morning recess, ladies and

Remember the admonition please.

(Recess)

THE COURT: Go ahead, counsel.

BY MR. KOTTMEIER:

Q.

Dr. Root, before the break we had talked about

Wounds 3 and 4 to the front chest and stomach area of Douglas

Ryen.
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Just at the break I had asked you in regard to
Wound No. 4 whether you had any opinion as to the depth of that
particular wound with the surface or skin length of abéut
two-and-a-half centimeters.

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Have you had a chance to review your information
and refresh your recollection as to an opinion?

A, Yes. I did not actually put down an actual depth
of penetration. I did not actually measure it. However, I have
used the term in my description of a stab wound, diagonal stab
incision, so that in and of itself implies by definition that
the penetration is deeper than the surface dimension.

This particular wound did not penetrate into a body
cavity, so all I can do is give an.approximation of the depth of
penetration, but possibly three centimeters, conceivably four
centimeters; but based on the location in the anatomy I can only
given an estimate.

Q. Those two wounds that we've just discussed would
not be consistent with having been received by Mr. Ryen in the

position that he is depicted in photo 176; --

A. Just one moment.

Q. -- is that correct?

A, Well, just a moment.

Q. We are talking about 3 and 4 to the chest and
stomach. |

A, I want to look at it on my diagram.

I think not, no.

Q. Directing your attention to the left side of
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Douglas Ryen, to the area just below the jaw line on the neck
there is a red mark on 525; does that correspond to your stab
wound No. 24?2

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And can you give us a description of the length and
depth of that wound?

A. 24 is a stab wound, stab incision, at the surface
dimension approximately five centimeters long. It is just below
the angle of the jaw on the left side in the -- into the left
neck., The wound penetrates from above, down. It is a wound
that is hemorrhagic, that is, it has bled. It was inflicted
prior to death. And it has penetrated, and this is based upon
the internal examination, perhaps eight centimeters to nine
centimeters into the body. It has penetrated some vital
structures. It is completely cut, transected the left common
carotid artery, and it has produced an incision into the
trachea. There is some bleeding around the esophagus in the
neck. It has not actually penetrated into the esophagqus.

The left common ‘carotid artery is one of the two
rajor arterial supplies, blood supplies to the brain, so that
essentially half of the blood supply to the brain was cut off by
injury No. 24.

Q. That then would have affected the bleeding, for
example, on the left side in wounds 19, 20, 21 and --

A. Ch, yes, yes.

Q. -- that particular wound is shown in Exhibit 176.

And could that have been delivered in the position

that Mr. Ryen is in in that photograph?
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A, Well, it -- it could have been, certainly it could
have been., I'm inclined to say it didn't.

Q. For what reason?

A, This particular one is quite a bloody'wound. It
should have bled very massively, and I simply don't see that
much blood on his body in this location. It suggeéts to me that
No. 24 actually occurred someplace else.

Q. Is it péssible that 24 occurred at a point in time
when he was dying and did not have much blood pressure?

A. No, no, because my description of No. 24 is that
there is a lot of bleeding with this wound, so ~--

Q. Is that -- Go ahead. |

A, I'm sorry. Specifically extensive hemorrhage
around the left carotid sheath. No, this occurred somewhat
early in the game, and I am --

Q. Is that -- When you say, "early in the game”, is
that the kind of a wound that would cause spurting of blood out
of the wouﬁd and maybe even up on the wall above the head of the
bed?

A. Yes, it could; yes, it could.

Q. This is an area that, as far as the carotid artery
is concerned, is at least blood that is under some pressurej
isn't that correct?

A. Yes; yes, considerable ‘pressure.

Q. And the depth from the artery to the surface is
approximately what?

A. Well, I can't answer that completely because I

don't know. I did not measure how far down the wound traveled
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before it hit the artery.

This is not straight in. If one goes straight in,
transverse, the depth of penetration to the skin is perhaps two
centimeters, maybe three centimeters. But in this case the
wound did go from above, down. And I simply did not measure the
distance from the skin surface to the point where it finally did

hit the artery.

Now, as far as arterial spurting, with this
particular wound it would not spurt all the time because there
is a flap of skin, flap of tissue rather, because of the fact
that this wound is inflicted from above, down, so there is a
flap of tissue that would tend to close the wound off to the
outside. The bleeding would continue but it would tend to close
it off to the outside and dampen down the spurting to the
surface. However, one could certainly move the body by bending
the neck in various positions to allow spurting occasionally.

Q. And the wound itself to the carotid artery was
virtually a severing across the artery and into the trachea aé
opposed to just a puncture?

A. That's correct, the artery was completely severed.

Q. Directing your attention now to an area on the left
rear shoulder, a wound that you have indicated is Wound No. 28,

a stab wound.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Probably lowest on the shoulder that comes off on
the arm?

A, Yes, sir, it does. There's a group of three lines,

red lines, crosswise, side to side over the left shoulder, and
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the lowest of that grouping is No. 28.
Q. And can you describe for us the measurements of 28?2
A. 28 is a stab incision. The surface dimension is

3.2 centimeters. It does go towards the left scapular spine,
the shoulder blade, and it is a bleeding wound, a hemorrhagic
wound which I could measure penetrating between ten to eleven

centimeters.

Q. Additionally just below that particular wound on

the back itself we have a marked wound on 525 that corresponds

to your No., 32?2

A, That's correct.

Q. Can you give us a description of that particular
wound?

A, 32 is again on the back chest of an incision four

centimeters in length on the surface, but it does penetrate as a
stab wound into the body, and the total depth of penetration
estimated between nine centimeters to eleven centimeters. It
actually went into the chest cage, into the lung, and —-

Q.  As it did --

a, -~ it is a bleeding wound, hemorrhagié wound.

Q. And as it did that it cut the fifth and sixth rib
and went above the sixth?

A, Let's see?

A, Well, it cut into, it didn't completely cut, it cut
into the fifth rib, yes.

Q. And there was bleeding associated with that wound
in the back inside the body cavity?

A. Yes.
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Q. Which would indicate that that was an earlier as
opposed to a 1ater.wound in the series that Doug Ryen received?

A. Yes.

Q. Is it possible for those two wounds that we have
just discussed to have been delivered to Mr. Ryen in the
position that he is in here?

A, Yes, yes.

Q. And when I say, "here®, I'm indicating Exhibit 176.

A. Actually if I might comment, these two wounds, let
re see, 32 and 28 are both wounds that I've described as having
occurred before death, bleeding.

I believe they are actually shown, if I might point
to the photograph, on the left arm deltoid area, is a vertical
oriented incision in this photograph, and a trail of blood
trailing down the left arm. That drainage pattern is what I
would expect if that wound bled in the position in which his
body is found. I think that this actually was bleeding. He was
actually alive when he was in this position.

Now I can't say that he actually got the wound in
that position, but certainly this drainage pattern suggests that
he was still alive when he was in this position.

And in a similar fashion, because of the drain
pattern of blood I would expect that 33 -- no, 32, I'm sorry,
32, which is on the chest on the left side, has a drain pattern,
a dark streak of blocd trailing away from that also was
bleeding, he was also alive in that position.

Q. But there are other wounds in that photograph that

literally have no similar type of drain pattern even though they

COMPUTERIZED TRANSCRIPT

o = T3

iy

g

![T-.;.j -



W 0 ~N A ol WO

RNNNNNNN N K e e
)
® N OV e WO VW OO ONO U e W P : S

3863

are very serious wounds similar to 28 and 32; is that correct?

A, Yes, that is correct.

Q. Which would tend to lead you to believe that these
are much earlier and probably even in existence before he
reached that position?

A, That's quite possible, yes.

Q. Directing your attention now to the right back
area, We have two marks that correspond to these two locations.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are those 34 and 352

A. Yes, sir. 34 would be higher, towards the head; 35

away from the head.

Q. Can you give us the general surface dimensions of

those two wounds?

A, 34 is an incision, five centimeters long on the
surface.

Q. 34 is five centimeters?

A, Yes, five centimeters in length on the surface of

Let's see 35 is 3.5 centimeters long.

There is communication between wound 34 and wound
35, a path under the skin of about ten centimeters.

However, 35 also has a depth -- a wound of
penetration actually into the chest itself. It has gone between
two ribs, between the sixth rib and the seventh rib in toward
the lung. And I measured that wound as penetrating, estimate 12

centimeters to 13 centimeters.

Q. So, that this is not an entrance and an exit wound,
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it just so happens that one of the wounds intersects with the
other wound?

A. Yes; yes.

Q. Now, 1'd like to direct your attention to a series
of wounds that you have related as incisional wounds or wounds
that are different than stab wounds.

How would you describe the difference between an
incision and a stab?

A. Again, an incision is an injury caused by a

sharp-edged instrument, a knife as the typical type of injury,

.clean sharp-edged penetrating wound. An incision by definition

is an injury that is longer, the surface dimension is greater
than the depth of penetration of that wound.

Now sometimes we have the possibility of a mix of
things. For instance, it is possible to have an incision that
cuts or incises deeply into the tissue but still ought to be
classified as an incision rather than an stab.

Q. Incision tends to carry with it almost a medical
connotation of certain care. Is that meant to go along with
that particular term when you use it?

A, No, not at all. The term ®incision® as I use it
simply implies the type of instrument that causes the injury,
that is, a sharp-edged instrument. Certainly a scalpel as a
surgeon uses it causes an incision; a razor blade causes an
incision; a steak knife or any other kind of knife, sharp edged,
causes an incision. That's the definition of that type of
injury.

Q. And basically for our purposes, to maybe put it
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another way, the surface injury or the surface cut incision is
longer than the depth of the wound itself?
A, Generally that's the definition, yes.

Q. First of all, to Doug Ryen's right face we have two

injuries, the topmost being injury No. 1.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you give us a description as.fat as size of No.
1?2

A, No. 1 is -- Well, is an injury to the surface of

the skin which the skin is, has actually been sliced away,
almost like you would peal an apple skin, slicing. It is an
incision. 1It's caused by a sharp-edged instrument. It is an
oval outline approximately 1.3 centimeters by three centimeters.
And it is located on the right side of the cheek.

Q. And would you give us the dimension of Wound No. 2,
that would be the injury to the right cheek underneath it?

A, Right. Yes. No. 2 is an incision through the
right side of the check. It is 5.5 centimeters long. Actually
it penetrates into the bedy, into the mouth. It actually
communicates with the mouth. And there's a depth of penetration
of Wound No. 2 about. three centimeters long -- I'm sorry, three
centimeters in depth as it goes into the mouth.

Q. Neither 1 or 2 could have been done in the position
he was in because in effect his cheek was laying on his arm in
that position?

A, That's correct.

Q. On the right leg, upper thigh area there is a

wound, an incisional-type wound which you labeled as No. 5.
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A. Yes, sir.
Q. And the description of that wound?
A, No. 5 is also an incision. It is seven, about

seven centimeters long. And it penetrates about three
centimeters into the tissue, into the skin, muscle. It is a
wound that bled. It occurred before death.

Q. No. 6, referring to the left leg just above the
knee, is that also an incision?

A. Yes, Number 6 is 8.5 centimeters iong. It
actually penetrated about six centimeters into the underlying
tissue towards the bone. And No. 6 is a hemorrhagic wound that
occurred before death.

Q. On the back of the left hand in this area just

about near the wrist, just below the wrist itself, is that Wound

No. 1272
A, Yes. No. 12, vyes, sir.
Q. And the dimensions of that wound?
A, Well, No. 12 is an incision and it is about three

centimeters long. It's quite shallow. It'penetrates only three
to four millimeters. There was a little bit of bleeding with
that. My impression then is that that did occur before death.

Q. Those three wounds in particular, 5, 6, and 12,
could they have been done with the hatchet, Exhibit 42, being
used as a slicing-type of instrument as opposed to the chop-type
wound?

A. Yes; yes, certainly if the hatchet is sharp enough.
It has a cutting incising edge and it can cause an incised

wound. And if used in that fashion there's no way that I could
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tell whether it -- whether the wound was -- what kind of an
incisional instrument, whether knife or hatchet, was used.

This has a relatively sharp edge. 1It's somewhat

blunted, but has the potential of being quite sharp.

Q. As far as Exhibit 42, could it have been
responsible for 5, 6, and 12?2

A. It could have, yes.

Q. Oh, in the -- I don't know if you refer to it as
the shoulder or the neck, on the left-hand side towards the
back.

Q. Probably closer to the shoulder,

A. " Yes, sir.

Q. That'é Wound No. 312

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the descriptions of 31?2

A. Is a stab incision. This is one that's kind of
borderline. It is about 2.5 centimeters long and it penetrates
about two centimeters. So this is one of those that I am kind

of on the borderline as to whether it should be a stab or an

incision.

Q. You didn't find much bleeding with that wound, did
you?

A, No. And I don't know whether -- no, I didn't --

did not find a significant'bleeding. Well, no, whether or not
bleeding is present, I simply can't answer.

Q. In regard to that Wound 31, could that have been
received in the position that Mr. Ryen was in?

A, Well, I believe so. The left side is -- the left
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side of the neck is exposed. Yes, it certainly cduld have
occurred there.

Q. And the left side buttocks area just below the
buttocks, is that Wound No. 362

A, Yes.

Q. And that incision is what dimension?_

A. It is eight centime;ers long. It peretrates into

the muscle skin, anus fat muscle, about seven centimeters and
there was bleeding with the wound. Even though the surface
dimension is almost the same as the penetration, I think this
properly is more of an incision than a stab.

Q. Now, that éa:ticular wound you can see just a
portion of in Exhibit 36 in the lower buttocks area or you can
see it in Exhibit 176 in the lcwer buttocks or the lefé upper
thigh area.

A. Yes.

Q. And 37 is a wound to the upper right shoulder in
this area.

A. Yes.

Q. On the model it is -- sorry about that -- it is the
furthest one out towards the tip of the shoulder. Is that a
somewhat superficial-type wound?

A, Yes. I have measured that about five centimeters
in length. Quite superficial.

Q. When you use the term "superficial®, what does that
mean to you as a forensic pathologist? .

A, Depth of penetration into possibly just through the

skin. Depth of penetration one millimeter, two millimeters,
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possibly three millimeters.
Q. Relatively minor type wound.
A. Yes.
Q.  We have in Exhibit 527 a series of superficial

wounds to the fingers on the left hand.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Those are labeled 11, 13, 14, 15, 16, and 17; is
that correct?

A, Now, 11 is on the right hand.

Q. All right.

A, The others are on the left hand.

Q. And are all of those -—- excuse me -- what you would
classify as superficial type injuries?

A, Yes., They ~- yes.

Q. We have also No. 18, which is a scratch to the left

forearm area. 1Is that superficial?

A, Yes. In minimal depth of penetration, one or two

millimeters.

Q. You don't know necessarily how that was caused

based upon the wound itself.

A, No, other than -- well, it is -- my description is

incision, therefore it is a sharp-edged instrument.

Q. You also show, in regard to that particular wound,

if you would, that the depth of penetration is only one to two

millimeters.
A. Yes, that's correct.
Q. And we also have Wound 29 to the back area which is

also an scratch.
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A, Yes. That is -- well --
Q. Superficial.
A. An abrasion. I don't know 29 is an abrasion. The

only hesitation is the word "also®, because this really truly is
a scrape, and it is not made by a cutting edge. 29 itself is
made by a scraping edge.

Now, let me just double-check myself one moment,
please. Yes, it is the one -- I think it is the middle one of
the three in a row over the left deltoid area. 1It is a scrape,
a superficial abrasion, line-like. It is about two cent -- no,
I'm sorry, it is 2.3 centimeters long, three millimeters wide.
It is simply a scrape.

Q. Are all of the chop wounds to Douglas Ryen

consistent with having been caused by Exhibit 42?

A, I believe so, yes.
Q. Yes.,
Q. Referring your attention to Exhibit 165 here, and

not necessarily to scale but just the shape of the knife that is
drawn in this particular picture, assuming that kind of shape

165.

Could all of the stab and incision wounds that you
have described have been caused by that knife if they were not
caused by Exhibit 42, the hatchet?

A, Assuming not to scale, yes.

Q. Just shape.

A, The shape, yes.
Q. The general shape.
A, Yes. My -- part of the problem here is you have
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two diagrams here, and the lower one is small and it seems to be

relatively short, and that one, the length of it bothers me,

Q. The only one that I'm really concerned with is the

uppermost.,

A. All right.

Q. What appears to be a huntiig knife configuration or
shape.

Is that consistent with the incisions and stab

wounds that you saw on Doug Ryen?

A, Yes, that certainly is, and that length is a
reasonable approximétion.

Q. Maybe one or two centimeters off?

A, Oh, yes, that is quite poésible. There are
tremendous variations in shapes of knives that can cause similar
injuries.

Q. Baving gone over, and we have just previously
described Exhibit 525, is that a fair and accurate
representation of the general areas of where the wounds that we
have described were received to Douglas Ryen?

A, Yes.
Q. We have had marked as Exhibit 526, for the record,

a plastic model of a female.

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Have you had a chance to examine Exhibit 526 before
today?

A. Yes, I have.

a. And we have laid out on Exhibit 526 a number of

marks in brown and red, and I believe one green to indicate

COMPUTERIZED TRANSCRIPT

-
u
[

/

-

I
L
|
L
L
L
S



W ©® N o e W N

NN N NN NN N R M e e e e e e e
® N A Ve W N O L O e R BB

3872

wounds similar in effect to those that we did with Doug Ryen as
far as brown being "chop®, red being "stab®" or "incision®, and
the green being "post-mortem® injuries.

A, All right. Yes, sir.

Q. First of all referring your attention to chop~type
injuries with fracture.

In Peggy Ryen, there is almost an upside down "V*®

in her forehead area.

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Is that Wounds 1 and 2?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. And that particular wound is really the result of

potentially one blow with a hatchet.

A, Yes, that would be the mcst likely mechanism,

Q. And that wound caused fracturing under the
forehead?

A, Yes, it did.

Q. Wound No. 3 is to the upper right side.

A. Yes. '

Q. Above the forehead area in the hairline; is that
correct?

A, Yes, it is.

Q. Is that a chop wound that also has fracturing?

A, Yes.,

Q. Did you notice any bruising around that wound?

A, Yes. There was some bleeding and bruising around

Wound No. 3.

Q. Would that indicate to you that it was an early
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wound?
A, Relatively early in that there was bleeding, yes.
Q. Early as opposed to close to death or dying?
A, Yes.
Q. Could a wound such as No. 3 cause unconsciousness?
A, Yes. And, again, for the same reason that I gave

in referring to chop I believe on Douglas, any kind of impact

with

enough force to cause cutting, chopping, fracturing of the

skull, carries with it enough force to render a person

unconscious, Whether it did, I can't say, of course.

Q. Wouhd No. 5 is present on the left ;heek in an area
near the nose and descending away from the nose towards the left
ear; 1is that correct? |

A, That's correct.

Q. . 2And that particular chop wound had bruising with it
near the nose on the left side.

A. Yes, it did.

Q. In fact, that particular wound, Wound No., 5 you
have been able to give us some estimate of time as far as how
long Peggy Ryen would have been alive to cause the bruising near
the nose.

A, 1 think it would take a few minutes to produce that

amount of Bleeding that I found there.

Q. One to three minutes?
A. Certainly well within the realm of possibility.

Q. But, as in 1, 2 and 3 there is fracture of bone

underneath the cheek area associated with Wound No. 5; is that

correct?
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A, Yes, it does. Facial bones,

Q. Wound No. 8 is a somewhat vertical up and down as
the body is standing upright type of wound to the right side of
the head; is that correct?

A, Yes,'sir. There are a series of wounds in the
right side of the head in brown.

I wonder if it might help to number those first or
would that be more confusing?

Q. Well, we can if you like, No. 8, 9 and 10.

A, All right., 8 is a vertical -- well, let me take
the transverse wound first as a contrast, that's No. 7. All
right.

Then coming up over the niddle of No. 7 a vertical
wound is 8. The one behind that is 9, and in that group of
three the furthest towards the back of the head would be 10.

Q. Let's start then with No. 8 first. That one had
fracturing associated with it.

A. Yes. This was a chop wound.

Q. In fact that wound MNo. 8 literally put a triangular
type of cut into Peqggy Ryen; is that correct?

A, Triangular defect in the skull, yes, sir.

Q. Which would be consistent with the point of the
hatchet, Exhibit 42,

A, Well, that word "point" bothers me.

Q. Okay. Consistent with the application being more
in the fashion that I'm showing here as opposed to the --

A, That's correct.

Q. .~ —- flush side of the blade.
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A, That's correct., Either -- actually it could be
either the bottom of that, the bottom or the top either one as
far as I am concerned. But, yes, rather than the full cutting
surface, the edge of the cutting surface; the point.

Q. And No. 8 was received prior to death and had
bleeding associated with it?

a, I don't -- I believe so. Let me double-check
myself. My recollection, from the previous photograph, my notes
don't reflect it but my recollection from the photograph is that
there was a small amount of bleeding with No. 8.

Q. No. 9, the next wound back towards the back of the

head is a chop wound.

A. Yes.

Q. With fracturing.

A, Yes.

Q. This one had minimal bleeding associated with it.
A, Yes.

Q. And could have been done when Peggy Ryen was in

shock or close to death. .

A, Yes.

Q. Is No. io, the wound next in order towards the back
of the head, a chop with fracture?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, you also mentioned in your discussion the
wound that was horizontal that is just below No. 8.

A, Yes.

Q. And that was wound No. --

A. 7.
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Q. Now that particular wound you related as being a
chop?
A, Well, that particular one did not --
Q. Practure the bone.
A, -- did not fracture the bone. 1I'm inclined to

think that No. 7 may have been a chop wound, because the hair
was actually cut in association with Wound No. 7.

In order to cut the hair with a sharp-edged
instrument you have to stablize it at least in part with a pair
scissors. You stablize it with the blade while you come down
chopping it with the other.

A knife blade, by itself, will tend to move the
hair out of the way, it is possible, whereas a chopping tends to
fix the hair against the side of the head, in this case,
permitted to be cut.

‘ I use the word "cut" because that's I guess what
you do to hair.
Q. Additionally, moving on around towards the back of
the head we have another chop fracture in No. 12.
A. Yes. No. 12 is the brown mark on the almost

midline of the back of the head.

Q. There was fracture under No. 122
A. Yes.
Q. This group of wounds that we have just discussed,

chop wounds, could those have been delivered in rapid

succession?
A. Yep.

Q. For example, just a matter of a few seconds?
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A. Yes, they do tend to be grouped in an oriented
pattern., I'm sorry, they tend to be grouped in a pattern. I
shouldn't use the word "oriented®.

Q. Returning to the face for a moment on the left-hand
side. The wound that is towards the chin on the left side, is

that Wound No. 6?

A. Yes, sir.
Q. And that is a chopped incision without fracturing?
A. Yes. It does -- well, it actually goes into the

bone, into the mandible, makes a defect in the mandible and most
technically, any injury to the bone can be classified as a
fracture, I ‘am not sure that that's -- that may be an equivocal
use of the term.

Q. Anyway, as far as that particular wound is

concerned, No. 6, that is consistent with Exhibit 42, the

hatchet.
A, Yes, sir.
Q. We also have Wound No. 11, which is a chop incision

just abové No. 3.

A. Well, to the right side of the head, yes. I --
well, let me go back for a moment. There is a mark that is
transverse, front to back mark that we previously identified as
No. 7 on the right side of the head. ©No. 11 is shown in front
of the -- in front of No. 7 as a vertical mark.

Q. It should be really in back of --

A. No, 11 is correctly positioned, I'm just orienting
it from my previous remarks.

Q. Just your tone of voice was as though we ought to
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move No. 11 back.
A. No, just orienting it in numbers.
Q. Can you describe No. 11, please.
A, It is an incision, fourteen millimeters long, 1.4

centimeters or 14 millimeters are the same, and it goes through
the scalp. It does not actually go into the bone.
Q. In Peggy Ryen, similar to the situation with Doug

Ryen, do we have an injury to the hand, in particular, Wound No.

22?2
A. Well,
Q. Which correspends to the right thumb?
A, Yes, but certainly Doug did have injuries to the

hand, but he had several different kinds. He had an amputation
as well as incisions. I think this -- this is not an

amputation.

Q. Right. But the question that I wanted to bring out
as possible similar between Doug and Peggy, is Wound No. 22 a
possible result of having placed her right hand up in the area
where all of these chop wounds were received around her head
causing the defensive incision to her right thumb?

A, Oh, yes, that's quite possible. It does actually
go into the cartilage of the finger, 22.

MR. KOTTMEIER: This would be a convenient time, your
Honor.

THE COURT: All right, let's return at 1:30. Remember
the admonition, ladies and gentlenen.

--00000--

(Noon recess)
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SAN DIEGO. CALIFORNIA, TUESDAY. NOVEMBER 27. 1984, 1:35 P.M.

THE COURT: Everybody is assembled, Mr. Kottmeier.

MR. KOTTMEIER: Thank you, your Honor.

IRVING ROOT,
called as a witness on behalf of the People, having been

previously duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION (Resumed)
BY MR. KOTTMEIER:
Q. Dr. Root, you recall before the noon hour we had
just discussed the injury to the thumb on the right hand of
Peggy Ryen, which was No. 22?2

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And we had just discussed the possibility of that
injury having been received in a defensive movement during the
time of the chop wounds to the right side of Peggy Ryen's head?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Directing your attention now to the area of the

forehead just above the hairline and a wound that you numbered

No. 4.
A, Yes, sir.
Q. That's just above the hairline on the left side?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. That particular wound was what kind of a wound?
A, A chop injury, chop incision.
Q. Was there a skull fracture with that wound?
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A, Slight, very slight.
Q. And that particular wound had abraded margins?

A. Yes.

Q. In that particular wound did you check on the

internal examination as far as bleeding?

A, Yes. I think there was some evidence of bleeding
in No. 4.

Q. In fact, there was bleeding into the brain itself?

A. Now that I will check. There was some area of

bleeding in the brain.

Let me go back and correct one statement, please.
I think I said in reference to skull fracture "slight", but
actually it was really a rather significant skull fracture on

No. 4 as I look over the remainder of the report.

I ktelieve there is a contusion -- Well, there is
bruising of the brain on the left side, and I believe it is

related to No. 4, yes, sir.

a. In fact, as far as the upper portion of the head
concerned, Wound 4 is really the only one that we have on the
left side that would correspond to an injury to the brain; is

that correct?
A, On the left side, yes. Let me just doublecheck
myself one moment, please.
Yes, sir. That's correct.
Q. The wound in No. 4, is that also consistent with
having been deflected at the time it was received?

A, Well, by a hand?
Q. It's hard to say, deflected by almost anything.
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A, Well, possibly. No. 4 has a depressed skull

fracture. It's -- That's why I corrected myself.

My initial comment on the external just indicated
some damage to the overlying portion of the bone, but there is a
true depressed fracture with No. 4, so there couldn't be
terribly significant deflection from No. 4.

Q. When you talk in terms of the fracturing though,
what portion of Exhibit 42 would the fracturing be most
consistent with as far as the cause?

' A. Well, it would tend to suggest that it's hit on
edge towards the, well, the point, I guess is the term we are
using. 1It's certainly not an impact with the full face, the
full cutting face of the hatchet. The injury itself is
relatively sharply incised, and it suggests perhaps more of an

impact here. I guess it would be possibly with the back edge.

.I think not. I think it's more likely with the edge here, but

there are some possible variations. It's not quite as easy to

answer., .

Q. Directing your attention now to Wound No. 13, a
wound that you have labeled as a laceration towards the middle

of the back of Peggy Ryen's head.

A. Yes, sirc.

Q. Wound 13 did not have a fracture under it, did it?
A. It did not, no.

Q. And in 13 the margins around the wound were abraded

or lacerated?

A. More lacerated. Actually Wound 13 probably is more

of a laceration than an incision, although it is very
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sharp-edged. There is actually tearing of the skin margin. So
probably 13 really ought to be classified more as a laceration.

Q. There are even tissue bridges in the wound itself,
or pieces that connect across the wound; is that correct?

A. Yes, and that's why I think that should be
classified as a laceration even though the edges are fairly
sharp. Sometimes we find wounds on -- that kind are very
difficult to distinguish laceration from incision, an extremely
sharp-edged laceration is at that point why I, a pathologist,
have scme trouble saying which is which.

Q. wWhat portion, if any, of Exhibit 42, the hatchet
could have caused the wound?

A. If the hatchet were used it would more likely than
not have been this squared-off end, the right angle of the
non-cutting edge, and it could be the top, I suppose, or the
bottom, it could. I think from the striking force it might be

easier if it were on the bottom side because you get more force

than with the top, but it's possible,
Q. In that particular wound did you notice bleedinglso
that it was before death?
A. Let's see. I didn't comment there. One moment
please. I don't comment here. See if I can figure that out.
No, sir, I simply don't -- I don't note any

hemorrhage of that, of 13.

Q. You don't note one way or the other?
A, That's correct.
Q. Now, I'd like to direct your attention to some stab

wounds, primarily beginning with No. 18, which is in the chest
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or lower chest, maybe stomach area. The wound on what would

correspond to the right side just above the navel.

A, Yes, sir.
Q. Would you describe the dimensions of Wound 182
A. It is 3.5 centimeters long and it is associated

with some bleeding. It does penetrate under the skin towards
the -- well, from right to left.

Q. Did it go into the stomach wall?

A, Well, let me check that.

It did not actually penetrate into the abdominal
cavity. I think it may have incised the peritoneal surface in
one area. No, it did not actually penetrate the peritoneal
cavity or membrane itself. My estimate of depth of penetration
was about 13 centimeters.

Q. Directing your attention to No. 19, it is an area
that is below the navel on the right side in the stomach area,

lower abdomen?

A. Yes, sirc.
Q. What were the dimensions of that wound?
A, 19 is an incision, 2.5 centimeters in length,

penetrating, is a stab wound -- well, 1 know it's at least five
centimeters long. It is actually gone into the abdominal
cavity, however, it does not strike any object or -- I'm sorry,
any structure inside the abdominal cavity. It can go in and
pass between loops of intestine. Since there is no internal
point of injury I simply can't say how far.

Q. Can’'t tell the maximum?

A. I can't tell the maximum, It's got to be at least
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five centimeters, but it could be more.

Q. Referring your attention then to Wound No. 20.
That's higher on the right side towards the right breast area.

What were the dimensions of Wound 20?

A. Oh, yes. Excuse e one second, please.
Q. You have it on your diagram. It's on the -
A. Yes, it is -- It's a side view, yes, I have it.

No. 20 is an incision three centimeters long.

Q. Excuse me., Incision or stab?

A. Well, it is a stab wound as it turns out. The
surface dimensions is three centimeters in length.

Q. Then when you did the internal examination you
found it to be how long?

A. It penetrated at least ten centimeters. And again
my cozmment is the same. The, let's see, No. 20. Well, minimum
depth of ten centizeters because I don't find a peint at which I
can say the knife blade has core to rest. So it's gone ten
centimetérs, but maybe more.

Q. In tkat particular wound, No. 20, did that
penetrate into the lung itself?

A. Yes, it did.

Q. In fact, there was blood that was recovered during
your examination from the lung associated with that wound?

A, Yes.

Q. About how much? »
A. There was about 100 cc's of blood in the right

chest cavity. This went into the right chest cavity. That's a

minimum amount.
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Q. That bleeding then would tend to tell you that No.

20 to the area just below the right breast was one of the
earlier wounds as opposed to a later wound?

A, Yes, that's cb::ect.

Q. And earlier/later cbviously are relative terms.

There are a lot of wounds you just can't place anywhere in the

spectrum?

A. Well, that's correct, yes.

Q. The next wound down on the right-hand side was
Wound 21?2

A. Yes.

Q. And what were the --

A. Let's see, I don't know if the jury can see those.

No. 20 to and 21 are in the right side of the chest

wall. This one is No. 20 and this is No. 21, the lcwer one.

21 is three centimeters long on the surface, and it

penetrated into the body perhaps nine to ten centimeters between

two ribs, through the diaphragm, into the liver, but again it

went out of the liver and I can't tell how far it went beyond

that because it didn't leave a final point. Again between

structures basically. So I would say it's a minimum depth of

nine centiéeters to ten centimeters, possibly a little more.
Q. So, this is a stab-type wound?

A, Yes, this is a stab wound.

Q. And that particular wound itself, did it fracture

any of the ribs?

A, Well, yes. The eighth rib on the right.

Q. Shifting from the trunk area of the body to an area
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on the left arm just above the elbow, in this position, does

that correspond to the stab wound that you labeled 272

A. Yes, sir. Yes, sir.
Q. And the dimensions of that stab wound?
A. This is 16 millimeters in length on the surface.

It is a stab wound, and it can be probed about two to three

centimeters and it is a hemorrhagic wound.

Q. A bleeding wound?

A, Yes, bleeding wound.

Q. Indicating before death?

A. Before death.

Q. Directing your attention to Wound 33, which appears

to be a wound in the side on the left side. It may actually be

listed closer to the back area.

A, Yes. Well, no, I show it on the left chest area.
Yes, sir.

Q. Is that consistent with the green mark on Exhibit
5262

A, Yes, sir.

Q. It's actually maybe a a little bit more towards

under the arm than is depicted on 526; is that correct?
A, Yes, I think it would be down a little lower and
perhaps in a little more, but that's an approximation.

Q. That particular wound, at least when you looked at

it, on the surface appeared to be an incision, that is, that the

wound was fairly long and wide; is that correct?
A. Yes.

Q. And what were the approximate surface dimensions of
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Wound 33?2
A. Nine centimeters in length. As far as the
penetrating portion, there was a tailing of superficial scrape
or abrasion an additional one centimeter long on the lower
margin. That tailing or abrasion or whatever epidermal
incision, I guess very shallow, was not a penetrating wound.
Q. During your internal examination did you also

discover that that wound contained a stab as well as that longer

incision?
A. Yes, it did. That penetrates a minimum depth of
ten centimeters. It went -- Well, let's see, incised the tip of

the rib, tﬁelfth rib on the left side, between the eleventh and
twelfth rib, the muscle between the eleventh and twelfth. It
went through the diazphragm on the left, actually into the spleen
and probably struck the tail of the pancreas where there was
very slight bleeding.

So 33 really is an injury that occurred before
death, not very much bleeding, but very slight.

Q. Is this a wound,.though, that as far as the
bleeding for the severity of the wound itself, leads you to
believe that it was very close to the end, that is, that of all
the wounds that you've seen thus far, or that you examined, is
the wound closest to point of death of any of the others?

A. Yes. It certainly is a.wound that is associated
with very little hemorrhage, but just a very slight amount, so
it's very close to death.

Q. And yet this is a very serious wound, as far as the

damage that's done to the surrounding tissue, so that you would
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expect to see more bleeding; is that correct?
A, Yes; yes.,
Q. Now, that particular wound in its location, showing

you Exhibit 217, would be inconsistent, in other words, would
not have been done while Peggy Ryen was laying in the position
that she is in this photograph?

A. That'’s correct, could not.

Q. Which would tend to indicate at least based upon
the time of the wound that her physical position was changed
after she had received the wounds?

A. Yes. May I see this for a minute, please. Yes.

Q. I guess to take maybe that one step further, what
we're getting to is since this is towards the end it would not
be right to say that any of these other wounds on Peggy Ryen
were delivered to her in the position she is in because the last
wound is one that she could not have received in that position?

A, That's true. Certainly -- Well, of course the
other thing that one can state from that photograph is that the
pattern of blood smears on her body is not consistent, the blood
smears on the front of her body are really not consistent with
having drained into that position with the wounds being
inflicted in that position. They had to have been in some other
position,

Q. Por example, we have a series of wounds that we
have yet to discuss,- some in the lower abdomen on the left-hand
side which have it appears to be drain patterns that would be
down towards the feet even though in her position you would

expect it to drain towards the side?
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A. That's correct. Also that smudge pattern on the
knee, simply all this drainage towards the ground in a normal
fashion, thét smudge pattern could not have occurred in that
position,

Q. That's on the left knee?

A, On the left knee. She had to have been elsewhere
for a period of time at least.

Q. Now, I'd like to refer you to a series of
incisional or incision-type wounds beginning with Wound 15.

Does Wound 15 appears to be just under the
left-hand breast or actually on the breast itself?

A. No, it's actually on the breast on the under
surface of the breast on the left.

Q. What were the dimensions of wound 15?2

A. About 3.5 centimeters long, although around that
there was some scraping and bruising or contusions over an
additional, about two centimeter area. 1 was able to probe into
the breast tissue.

I did not actually measufe the maximum depth of
penetration with No. 15, but there was some penetration towards

the upper outer part cf the breast on the left side.

Q. Was there bleeding associated with that wound?

A, Yes.

Q. So that would have been before death?

A. Yes.

Q. Referring you to No. 17, that -- in fact that was

the wound we just referred to in the picture, this large wound

to the left side of the abdomen area.
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A. Yes, sir.
Q. Can you describe that for us as far as dimensions?
A, That is an incision, it is ten and a half

centimeters, 10.5 centimeters long, penetrating about two
centimeters into the tissue.

Q. That's the incision part of it?

A, The incision part of it.

There's a tailing running off towards the side,
superficial scraping or surerficial, very shallow perhaps
incision just through the epidermis. Let me double-check one
other thing please.

Actually 17 was incised into the abdominal cavity
and there was an incision, stab incision going into the stomach.

Q. So that its depth is somewhat more?
A, Well, yes. The measurement that I gave you was
that which I was able to measure just from the external alone.

So, it actuvally penetrated into the abdominal
cavity and my estimate is, that it is perhaps nine centimeters

into the abdominal cavity, or total length, maximum penetration,

nine centimeters.

Q. Was there bleeding associated with that wound?
A, Yes.

Q. So it was before death?

A. Yes.

Q. That, like the wound in green on her back, was a

very serious wound as far as the type of damage that it did.

A. It can be, yes.

Q. Referring you now to No. 28, an incisional wound or
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incision to the back 6f the neck almost right in the midline.

A, Yes.
Q. What were the dimensions of Wound 282
A, About 7.5 centimeters.

Q. And the depth?

A. But a part of the wound penetrated approximately
4.5 centimeters. Not the entire wound, part of the wound was
quite shallow.

Well, the penetrating portion was at the upper part

of the wound, and the shallow part, the lower part of the wound.

Q. Is No. 28 consistent with having been made with
either a knife or, for example, the hatchet?

A. It could be made with either. 28 has resulted in
cutting of the hair and, again, what I said about cutting of the
hair before would apply here. That is, the -- really you need

to support, fix the hair, support it to cut it with a knife,

whereas a chopping action could cut the hair.
aie.,

Q. Back over the right shoulder area is a wound. Does

that ccrrespond to Wound 302

A, Yes.

Q. And can you tell us about the dimensions of Wound
30.

A. Wound 30 is an incision, it is 8.5 centimeters in

length, penetrated relatively deeply —-- let me check that. It
did not actually penetrate into the chest cavity, I was able to

probe that about six centimeters penetration.
Q. Was there bleeding associated with Wound 3072

A. Yes.
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Q. Minimal or large?
A. Slight, as best I can tell. I just don't have a
good description.
Q. The two wounds towards the center of the back near

the backbone. There was a vertical one and then one kind of
intersects, those that you classified as two separate incisions;
is that correct?

A, Yes.,

Q. As far as your estimation Wound 32 was, that is the
vertical one, the up and down, came before the Wound 31, the one
that's at an angle?

A. More likely than not, yes.

Q. Can you give us the reason for the one being before
the other as far as your opinion?

A. I think it would be extremely fortuitous --

Well, let me go back. The margin that -- the left
side .of the diagonal Wound 31 just touches a vertical up and
down portion of No. 32. 1If 31, the diagonal one, was the first
injury, it would be extremely coincidental for the, for the
vertical wound to hit just the tip.

On the other, hand if the the vertical Wound 32 had

existed first, it would be relatively easy for 32 to end where

the skin is gaping, rather than going across, a knife going

across an open space what witﬁ the dimensions of Wounds 31 and
32, .
| 31 is the diégonal wound, it is a sharply-edged

incision about four centimeters long. 32 is the vertibral --

I'm sorry, the vertical injury, 8.5 centimeters in length.
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32 has penetrated quite deeply, at least eight
centimeters, but it is actually going into the lung. It is a
slightly hemorrhagic wound.

Q. That meaning it was before death?

A, Let's see. I'am sorry, just a moment. Excuse me.
I want to stand corrected on that.

Yes, it was before death. But the eight
centimeters is incorrect. That eight centimeters refers to an
incision on the pleural mezbrane, lining of the chest wall,
where it actually entered the chest cavity.

So, 32 rmight have penetrated six, eight
centimeters. I did not give a specific measurement in depth.

Q. Referring your attention to those particular
wounds. Because of the minizal bleeding did you form an opinion
that they occurred during shock or deep shock?

A, Well, I can't really state. There is some
hemorrhage associated both with 31 and 32. There was a heart
action, that is all I can state.

Q. Now, directing your attention to some superficial
wounds, Fo; example, a wound that is just above the breasts and
almost in between closer to the right breast.

Is that a superficial wound that you numbered 14?

A. Yes.
Qo Just -
A, Five centizeters long.

Q. Just generally broke the skin?
A, Well, in nost areas just broke the skin, but in one

area it has gone as deep as eight millimeters, still quite

COMPUTERIZED TRANSCRIPT

—d = CJ

S g g

f o



.

W @ N &6 Bt e W N

W)
o

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

3894
shallow, and it is associated with very slight bleeding;
minimal.

Q. Also, referring your attention to the left side,

this small wound here, indicating on the left side below the
breast. 1Is that No. 162

A. No. 16.

Q. And that's an abrasion?

A, Yes. Quite a fine line; a linear abrasion, 2.3
centimeters long, and non-penetrating. A

Q. We have on the left hand towards the back, a little
difficult to see there, under the fingers, the margin near the
knuckle area, two wounds, 23 and 24, both of which are
abrasions. You may have actually listed 23 as an incision.

A. 24 is a tearing away of skin, probably an abrasion
is the best -- it is the epidermis torn aﬁay.

23 actually is a an incision, eight millimeters

long, five to seven millimeters penetration.

Q. These are millireters not centimeters?
A. These are nillireters.
Q. 25, on that same left side, is a forearm type of

scratch, an abrasion.

A. Yes.

Q. Incision.

A, Yes. It is a combination, actually.

Q. Shallow and superficial.

A. Yes. It is, however, a penetrating wound.

The surface dimension of 25 -- well, the

penetrating portion is seven =millimeters long, but there is some
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abrasions both on either end of it, which extends an additional
three millimeters to four millimeters, through the penetrating
portion.

The penetrating portion is an incision of 25. I
can probe a defect about two centimeters depth.

Q. 26, moving up the left forearm, is also an
abrasion, shallow and superficial or incision.

A. No, it is an incision, is a better description
of —- let's see. 26.

26 is an incision, it is about seven millimeters
long on the surface and it also can be probed with a shallow
subcutaneous penetrating wound about two centimeters.

Q. And finally on Peg Ryen we have a scratch to the
back of the neck, just beycnd the -- on the right-hand side of
the neck. No. 29.

A, Okay. That is a very -- is an incision, and it is
ten millimeters in length.

Now, in reviewing this report I don't know when I
made this correction, I note that my original report describes
that as ten centimeters and that is quite incorrect. I have
changed that on my report, it is ten millimeters, and I don't
know whether your report, whether I have indicated, I changed
you previously or not. But it should be ten millimeters long.

C. It is superficial?

A. Well, it is a tearing -- relatively superficial, an
epidermal. I have "incision", but there was an area of abrasion
and contusion surrounding it. But the incision part is

relatively superficial.
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There is one other correction I would like to make
on 29. Again, I don't know that I have made that to you
previously or not. I show that as to the left midline and it is
on the right side of the midline of the neck.

Q. That is the way we have it portrayed.
A, All right. VYes, it is portrayed correctly. It is
just that my report was incorrect.

Well, actually, no. I have 29 going -- I can probe
it about a centimeter in depth so it is more than a superficial
penetration. Sorry. Yes, one centimeter deep.

Q. Directing your attention to 527, for the record, a
plastic model about a foot high,

Did ycu perform an autopsy on the little girl that
is pictured in Exhibit 1742

A. Yes.

Q. For these purposes we will refer to her as Jessica

Ryen, having been previously identified.

A. Excuse me one moment, please. Yes, sir.
Q. First of all, referring you to chop wounds with
fractures.

Wound No. 1 and 2, the almost "V™ similar to Peggy

Ryen in the upper forehead. Did you find those to be one blow?

A. Probably, yes, I believe they are one blow --
Q. In fact --
A, -- causing two different arms of the injury, but

one blow.

Q. Coming down towards the nose and in effect cutting

into the scalp as well as the skull itself?
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A. Yes, that's correct.

Q. Directing your attention to the area by the right
side of the nose and cheek section.

Does that correspond to Wound No. 4?

A. Yes.

Q. And did you find that to be a chop with fracturing?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you find much bleeding in connection with Wound
4, the one by the nose across the right cheek?

A. No.

Q. Which would tend to mean that the person was in
shock or that it was a later type of wound?

A. Yep. That is --

Q. No. 5 is the wound to the right side mouth and
cheek area.

A. Yes.

Q. Is that a chop wound with fracturing of the jaw as
well knocking out a number of teeth?

A, Yes.

Q. That in effect took out the teeth in Jessica Ryen
all the way into the front teeth; is that correct?

A, Yes. .

Q. That particular, that particular wound did not have
much bleeding either similar to No. 4.

A, That's correct.

Q. Which would tend to mean that she was in shock or

that it was received later?

A, That's right.
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No. 40 refers to a wound that is virtually right on

the top of Jessica's head.

A,

it here.

Yes, sir. Wait a minute, let me see if I can see

Oh, yes. Yes. Yes. It is partially hidden by

some Scotch tape up there.

Q.

A.

Q.

That particular chop wound -- well, strike that.
That was a chop with fracture.

Yes, sir.

And, again, you didn't find much bleeding with that

particular wound?

A.

Not very much. But I thought that there -~ let me

double-check myself.

I think there was -- my note previously was that

there was a very slight amount of bleeding; not much, not

significant.

Q.

Referring you then to the right side towards the

back of the head, we have two wounds and I am indicating upper

wounds that are closer to the front of the face.

A.
Q.
A.

Q.

All right.
The ones in brown.
Yes, sir.

The further ones to the front, would that

correspond to 41?2

A.

Yes,

And 41 did not have fracturing underneath it.
No, it did not.

So in effect that could be a chop or an incision,
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whichever way you want to describe it.
A, Yes, |
Q. Is that consistent with having been made by either
the hatchet or the knife?
A, Yes. As long as -- recognizing that the hatchet

injury, if it was a hatchet, it was shallow, it did not produce
chop injuries, but it could have caused this injury.

Q. The length of No. 41 was what?

A, Twelve millimeters long.

Q. Millimeters or centimeters?

A, Millimeters.

Q. Relatively small then.

A. Yes.

Q. 41 is the wound moving just back of that in brown?
A. Yes.,

Q. And that particular wound is a chop with a

fracture; is that correct?

A, 41 is a chop injury, yes.

Q. With a fracture.

A. Yes.

Q. Excuse me. We're at 42. We just did 41.

A, I'm sorry, did we -- I'm sorry. Excuse me. Wait a

minute. No, I have to go back. 1I'm sorry.

I note here that 41 is associated with a fracture.

41 now becomes a chop wound.

Q. . Okay.
A. The cuter dimension doesn't change.
Q. Is 42 a chop wound with a fracture?
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A. © That's what I'm -- I don't see a note to that
effect. 42 is -- I have described only as an incision ten
millimeters in length, full thickness through the skull, but I
don't describe skull. I'm sorry, fracture with 42.

Q. You mean full thickness of the scalp?

A. Full thickness of the scalp. But I don't show,

comment skull fracture with 42.

Q. You may have 41 and 42 reversed.
A. Reversed. That's quite possible.
Q. Referring you then to 44, which is a wound to the

back of the head.
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is there a fracture of the skull associated with

- 442

A. No, this is 45,

Q. All right. 44 would be a little further around.

A. 44 should be this -- well, I think it is a mixture
of green and brown that you have on the lower part of the skull
on the right side. There was another one forward of that is
just the tip of the ear, green and brown, which is 43 for
orientation.

Q. Let's go to the forward most one, 43.

A. All right.

Q. That's a relatively minor, in fact classified as a
superficial cut above the right ear or incision.

A, Yes, Yes. I have that rmeasuring 2.3 centimeters

long, and relatively superficial. It did cut the hair but it

didn't go full thickness through the scalp.
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Q. Then the next one you indicated was 44.
A, Yes.
Q. And that was what kind of a wound?
A. Well, I can't tell. It is either an incision or a

chop. I can't distinguish in this case. It is an incisional
wound, four centimeters long, itself full thickness through the
scalp, it does expose the skull, but it does not produce injury
to the bone.

Q. Was there bleeding associated with both 41 and.44?
Or excuse me, 43 and 44?2

A, I can't tell on those, on either one of those. I
simply don't know. I didn't note it.

Q. Referring your attention to the forehead again, the
one that is down in the middle from the "V" that we talked about
earlier as being 1 and 2.

Is that Wound No. 3?7

A. Yes, sir.
Q. And Wound No. 3, did it cause a fracture?
A, I think not., However, there is some injury to the

bone associated with 1 and 2. I think it is the infu:y from 1
and 2 that caused the bone injury and not 3, but they are so
closely -~ they are so close together that I can;t be absolutely
positive, '

Q. Well, there is some additional problems that
injuries 1 and 2 creates when it hurts the bone, in that as far
as your opinion No. 3 actually came first before 1 and 2; is

that correct?

A, I think it would have to, yes. I think No. 1 had
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to be there first.
Q. So that --
A, What happened is with -- I'm sorry. 1 and 2 is a

result of a chop injury causing a flap of skin that is no longer
attached to the skull. It would be very difficult to make an
incision into a loose flapping flap of skin. It would be quite

easy to make that incision No. 3 if the skin were still

attached.
So, for that reason I think it is more likely that

3 came first.

Q. Would you have expected if it was a chop wound that
came second that you could get some underlying damage to the

bone that would show up?

A, I don't think I followed you on that, I'm sorry.
Q. If No. 3 came after No. 1 and 2 -~

a, Oh I see what you mean.

0. -- and it is a chop wound as opposed to the

straight incision, would you have expected that in addition to
splitting that flap of skin that it would also have done bone

damage or skull damage?

A, Ch, yes. Yes.
Q. That is, that that flap would have been braced back

against the skull and then cut.

A, That's correct. No, I think that it is more likely
that the bone damage is a result of the chop injury producing 1
and 2, the "V" shaped injury rather than the bone injury from

No. -- associated with 3.
Q. So No. 3 could have been done by either the
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hatchet, Exhibit 42, or a knife?
A, That's correct.
Q. And there was bleeding with it.
A, Yes, yes, there is.
Q. Referring you now to some stab injuries, beginning

with one of the more severe stab injuries, indicating to the

right side of the neck a wound which you marked as No. 6.

A. Yes.
Q. Can you describe No. 6 to us,
A. § is a stab wound. The surface dimension three

éentimete:s. It penetrates into the neck, penetrates about six
centimeters. It incises, completely cuts across the right
internal jugular vein. It cuts into but is not completely cut
in two, it does not completely incise the right interim carotid
artery. And it goes posterior to the hypopharynx -- that is the
upper part of esophagus between the esophagus and the mouth --
does not actually penetrate into the back of the mouth, the
esophagus or the trachea.

This is an extremely hemorrhagic wound. This
certainly occurred early in the game and resulted in massive
bleeding.

Q. With a wound like that, how long would a person at
least hold consciousness before, assuming no other wounds were
inflicted, before they would go under, submit to
unconsciousness?

A, A person could lose consciousness in as little as
30 to 60 seconds with that wound, although they could -~ they

might go as much as a couple of minutes. I don't think they
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could live or retain consciousness with that wound where the
bleeding was not controlled for much more than a couple of
minutes.

Q. Based upon the amount of blood that you found
associated with that particular wound, can you formulate any
opinion as to how long that wound was in place before Jessica
Ryen died?

A, Oh, I think she died within a period of a few

minutes after.

Q. Few minutes meaning?

A, After the wound -- after No. 6 was inflicted.

0. Two to three, five to six?

A. I would be -~ it's very difficult . I would say

five to six is certainly an outside limit. I would say two to
three is much more likely.

Q. Referring you then to Wound No. 8, 9, and 10, which
is a series of three wounds that cannot really be shown
effectively on the dolls because of their location, the area of
the right arm. Actually underneath the right arm, we've placed
them just forward of the right arm in this fashion, and I'm
indicating on the right side just in front of the right arm.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. 8, 9, and 10, with 8 being the top wound, 9 the

middle wound, and then 10 the lower wound.

A. That's correct.
Q. Are all of those stab wounds?
A. They are all stab wounds. They are all associated

with bleeding, hemorrhage. Two of them, and I can't tell which
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of the two, have actually gone into the right chest cavity
through the seventh intercostal space, the space between the
seventh and eighth rib. Let me doublecheck.

One of them actually does go into the right 1lung,
and I -- the maximum depth of penetration in that group is about

ten centimeters.

Q. And the surface --

A, The surface --

Q. -- dimensions?

A, ~=- is 7 -- I'm sorry 8, 9, and 10.

8 is 3.5 centimeters long.

9 -- Let's see. 10 is three centimeters in length.
I don't know why, but I did not put down the measurement of No.
9. My recollection is that it's very similar to the surface
dimension of 8 and 10, but the precise measurement is not here
and I do not have it. Let me doublecheck one other sourcey,

please.

Now I think it's about 2.5.centimeters in length.
Yes. That was based actually on a -- on my review of the

photographs showing scale in place.

Q. So, that's just an effort to reconstruct as opposed
to a measurement taken at the time of the autopsy?

A. That's correct. I just simply did not put it down
on my report. And that 2.5 centimeters is based upon

reconstruction from the photograph of the scale.

Q. Showing you 174 again, could those wounds have been
delivered to Jessica when she was in the position she was in in

that photograph?
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A. Well, they are in the right place where they could
have, yes,

Q. The areas exposed from the arm, and that is the
side that is up as opposed to the side that is down?

A, That's correct, yes.

Q. In fact, 8, 9, and 10 by their location, would that
indicate that they were delivered in a rapid fashion?

A. It would suggest that, yes.

Q. Referring you to 11 and 14, which are really
difficult to show. You can't show 11 because it's under the
arm, and 14 is more on the right arm itself.‘ 14 would be the --

A. Okay, yes.

Q. --'in this area here?

A, Yes. 1It's actually -- 11 and 14 are on the inside
of the right arm, which if the right arm were down to the side,
would be completely protected, would not be exposed.

Q. Do 11 and 14 have the same path, that is, can you
tell if 11 and 14 are caused by one single motion, that is, one
stab wound?

A. Yes. There is a communication between 11 and 14.

11, let's see, is 3.1 centimeters in length on the
surface. 14 -- 14 is three centimeters length on the surface,
and the path of the wound under the skin I would -- is about
five centimetets;

Q. You don't know which one is the entrance wound and
which one is the exit wound?

A, No.

Q. 'Refe:ting you to 12 and 13, which are in the same
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general area, 12 also is under the arm and can't be shown. 13
is in the uppermost portion on the right arm. -

Are those stab wounds that communicate or can be
caused by one blow?

A, 11 and 13, yeah, they do communicate. 13 is an
incision about 1.6 centimeters in length. 12 is about -- well,
it is more of a tearing injury, and it's about four millimeters’
in length.

And this indicates that the injury occurred from 13
as the point -- as the area of entry, 12, towards the exit, not
completely penetrating, producing slight tearing of the skin but
did not completely get out.

Q. Did you measure the distance from the entry, 13, to
the tearing exit of 122

A. I did not. It can't be more than two centimeters.
Well, let's see. No, about 1.5 centimeters a separation, so
that would be about the maximum depth of penetration,

Q. On that same arm down towards the interior portion
of the forearm just below the bend in the elbow, do you have
wound, stab wound 25?2

A, 25, I'm trying to find where I put it. Yes. 235 is
on the thumb side. Wait a minute, no. 25, that would be the
red mark I believe that you have on the right forearm.

Q. Yes.

A, Yes.
Q. That's a stab?
A, Yes. It is an -- the surface dimension is about 23

millimeters, 2.33 centimeters. It can be probed about three
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centimeters, It is a hemorrhagic wound.
Q. Before death?
A, Before death.
Q. Referring your attention to Wound:Neow:3S5u. That

would be the wound that is to the lower portion of the left side

of the back.

A. Yes, sir.
Q. That is a stab wound?
A, Yes.

Q. It also, though, has a long tail to it?

A, Yes.
Q. Towards the back or towards the backbone?
A, Yes; yes. There is a tailing off from 35. The

stab penetrating injury is about two centimeters in length, and
the remainder of the injury is a tailing, superficial injury.

Q. And the depth?

a, I did not measure the depth and I do not have it.

Q. In fact, this particular wound exhibits the blade
being drawn across the back and then finally inserted into the
stabbing portion of the wound?

A. That's as best I recall, but I -- just a moment.

Yes, that's correct.

Q. And there is bruising around that particular wound,
isn't there?

A, Yes, there is.

Q. Which would indicate that that was one of the
earlier wounds?

A. » Yes.
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Q. Because the tissue being damaged, then the blood
bled into the injured tissue causing the bruising?

A. That's correct.

Q. The final stab wound is No. 37, which occurs
virtually to the right side of the back just below what we have
here as a green line at something of an angle?

A. 37? Yes.

Q. And what were the dimensions of 37?2

A. 30 -- I'm sorry. 37.

Q. Excuse me, I'm sorry.

A. We are on 37, aren't we?

Q. Yes,

A, 37 is 2.3 centimeters long, and it penetrates at,

well, minimum depth of two centimeters.

Q. And is that wound before or after death?
A. I don't know. I can't say.

Q. But it is a stab-type wound?

A. Yes.

MR. KOTTMEIER: This might be a convenient place, your

Honor.
THE COURT: All right., Thank you. Take the afternoon

[ecess.

(Recess taken.)

THE COURT: Please continue,

MR. KOTTMEIER: Thank you, your Honor.

Q. Dr. Root, just before we left we finished with the

last stab wound on Jessica Ryen, which was in the back, Wound
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No. 37.

Now turning to incision wounds to Jessica, I'd like
to direct your attention to an area that cannot be shown on this
particular doll, 527, that occurs under the right arm in effect
and you labeled it as No. 16.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. This is a relatively superficial, borderline
superficial incision-type wound. Can you give us the dimensions
of it, please?

A. 16. It was about three millimeters in length.

It's an incision, almost small enough to be classified as a

puncture, punctate incision., That's it. It didn't -- minimal

penetration,
Q. Was there bleeding with that wound?
A, I did not note any. However, I did note a separate

area of bruising close by which indicated some bleeding under
the skin, but I did not note any bleeding as such with 16.

Q.  Before we go on to some of the other stab wounds,
I'd like to refer your attention to the chest area of Jessica
which you grouped together in a series of wounds as under an
item No, 7.

A. Oh, yes.

Q. Could you briefly, without giving us the
measurements and so on associated with those wounds, describe to
us what those represent, those green marks on the chest area.

A. Well, I grouped those as a grouping of injuries
that I.called No. 7. They -- Actually, I gquess there were at

least 20 such separate injuries, but I didn't try to separately
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identify them.

They are injuries that apparently have occurred for
the most part after bleeding has stopped. Some of them are
associated with slight bleeding. They appear to be caused by
some kind of a puncture instrument such as, well, as an example,
an ice pick, a nail, an awl.

Q. When you say an awl --
A, A-w-1, a carpenter's tool.

Most of them have penetrated into the skin, maybe
through the skin, not very deep, and then are associated with a
scrape, a line drawing across the chest. These are all in the
chest area as you can see from the green markings.

It would appear as if what had happened, as an
example, a puncture and then drawing across (indicating).

Now these did appear to have occurred as a puncture
through the nightgown or whatever -- I think it was a nightgown
that she was wearing -- drawing the material with it.

Q. You checked the nightgown itself? -
A. There was a puncture or a couple puncture marcks
that would fit in the nightgown.

Some of them did penetrate a little deeper. Some
of the puncture marks penetrated a little deeper, on subsequent
internal examination, and were associated with very slight
bleeding, but the lines themselves that were drawn across the
skin were really quite shallow, penetrating only just through
the thickness of the skin. They did cause an abrasion but the
abrasgion is an injury that was not associated with bleeding.

Q. As far as the puncture wounds in this group of
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wounds that you labeled 7, were they similar to the -- what we
called a stab wound, No. 16?
A. Well, it could have been caused by the sanme

instrument, yes.

Q. That's the gist of my question.
A. Yes; yes.
Q. Now, in regard to that particular series of wounds

to Jessica's chest and side, could they have been given to her
in the position that she is portrayed in Exhibit 1742

A. Yes, they could, yes.

Q. And as far as your opinion, these were all
post-mortem type injuries? |

A, Well, most of them are post-mortem. However, on
internal examination I did find a very slight amount of bleeding
with a couple of the deeper puncture wounds., And as I said,
these are a mix of a puncture mark and a scraping, as if
scraping with the point of that ice pick or whatever, that kind
of an instrument, sharp point, but not a cutting instrument.

‘But some of the penetrating, some of the puncture
marks themselves had gone as deep as one-—and-a-half centinmeters,
and that was evident only after I did the internal examination.
But, again, the linear marks that you have

indicated -- or indicated here as the line-like things really
are quite shallow. v

Q. Did you have an opportunity to check the general
configuration, the layout of those green marks with the
photographs that you had of the wounds.

A, Yes, and that's a reasonable approximation.
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Q. Now obviously Jessica didn't have the development
of breasts, but other than the female portion of the body that
protrudes in the model, at least as far as linear-porttayal they
are faifly accurate?

A, Yes. You've shown a goodly number of these
injuries tend to be across the body, side to side, and then a
few tend to be diagonal, and that's precisely what the pattern
was.

Q. Returning now to the incisional wounds,
particularly Wound 28, which is to the right thigh area on the
outside, could you describe that wound for us?

A, 28 is an incision about seven centimeters in
length. Well, this goes somewhat side to side. 1It's on the
right thigh. One part of it, the more anterior part of two
centimeters in length penetrated a maximum depth of one
centimeter into the underlying tissue. The remainder of Wound
28 towards the back here was a superficial abrasion, a line-like

abrasion or scrape.

Q. You found no bleeding in connection with incision
28?2

A, No bleeding.

Q. 1t would have occurred after Jessica was dead?

A, Well, dead or at least no blood pressure.

Q. No. 33 is a wound, occurs across the shoulder area,

virtually across the midline in the fashion, almost horizontal
or parallel to the shoulders.
A, Yes, sir.

Q. In that particular incision only a portion of it is
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of any depth; is that correct?

A, Well, with most of it is abrasion. I described the
remainder as a superficial incision.

Q. When you say most of it is abrasion --

A, Well, part of it's an abrasion.

Q. Scratch?

A, Yes, scratch,‘which doesn’t penetrate at all, and

only a part of it penetrates and that only quite shallow., And I
have that measured -~ let's see, 33 as about 11 centimeters
total length.

Q. Would this be more appropriate as a
superficial-type wound as opposed to an incision?

A, Yes.

Q. Do you know whether Jessica was alive or dead at

the time she received 33?2

A, I found no bleeding with 33.

Q. You found no bleeding?

A, No bleeding that I can define.

Q. Which would indicate that she was dead?
A, Well, or in shock again.

Q. Dying?
A, Dead or dying.
Q. Referring you to 34, which is the larger incision

to the left side of the back in this general area.

A, Yes, sirt.
Q. What were the dimensions of that incision?
A. 6.5 centimeters in length. This is an incision,

probes about seven centimeters. Even though I probe, it
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penetrates deeper than the surface dimension. I think
technically this still should be just a deeply incised wound
rather than a stab.

Q. This is at least similar in appearance to that
wound to Doug Ryen that you told us about in the forearm,
somewhat elongates with points at either end?

A, Yes.

Q. And gaping almost in the middle?

A. Yes; yes.

Q. Did you find any bleeding associated that wound?

A, I made no note pf it, no.

Q. Indicating that Jessica was dying or dead?

A, Well, I just -- on this one I simply did not make a
note, and I just don't have any -- I don't know.

Q. We've placed a small green line underneath the red

line to indicate the possibility of dyirng or death at the time.

A. Yes. That's -- I simply don't -- I can't answer
that one.

I've gone back to the photographs on that one, and
I still can't answer it. I simply cannot tell whether there was
bleeding at that or not.

Q. 36 is to the right side of the backbone in Jessica
and is laid out in green on Exhibit 527. What were the
dimensions of 362

A. The length of that is an incision, five
centimeters. The -- Actually 36 is really quite shallow,
superficial, and part of it is an abrasion and a part of it may

be two~-and-a-half centimeters of this, half of it, is I think
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maybe eight millimeters -- let's see, wait a minute, no. Yeah.
Well, actually it undermines about eight millimeters, kind of
side to side rather than -- it's not straight in eight
millimeters, it's kind of a slicing, undermined incision on one

part, but part of it is an abrasion.

Q. Did you find any bleeding with this wound?

A, No; no.

Q. So, Jessica would be dead or dying?

A, Yes, I believe so.

Q. We've kind of taken for granted as you have been

testifying the fact that you refer to reports, but basically
those documents that you are referring to are reports that you

dictated during the autopsy itself?

A, Yes, they are.

Q. Notes to yourself as to what you observed --
A. That's correct,

Q. -— observed dimensions and various information

relative to each of the injuries we have been discussing; is
that correct?

A, Well, yes, a little more than notes to myself.
These are the original of -- this is the official document, the
official autopsy report submitted to the Coroner's Office. I
have a carbon copy of that. So it's -- it is the report that I
dictated during the course of the examination, but I would say
it's a little more than just notes to myself.

Q. And with my grouping of wounds, in effect you have

to try and find, jumping from place to place, the various wounds

we are referring to as opposed to following them in the
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numerical order that you set them out in your report?

A, Yes. I -- as far as the numerical order, I simply
grouped them in convenient areas to talk about as I went through
the examination and not, the sequence does not indicate a
sequence in which they were inflicted, does not tend to indicate
the type of injury. It's simply the numerical system that I
used to have something to refer to.

Q. Referring you to 38, which is the wound to in
effect the back of the right shoulder area. What were the

dimensions of that wound?

A, That's an incision. It's about five centimeters in
length, minimal bleeding with that. And I did not indicate the
depth, but I -- in that location the indication is that it would
not be much over one to two centimeters in depth.

Q. Earlier we had -- or I had pointed out mistakenly

the wound to the back of the head.

A, Yes.

Q. That's really 45, an incision?

A. Yes, I think that is 45. Yes, that's 45.

Q. and whét were the dimensions of incision 45?2

A. 45 is an incision. It is curved, and the skin is

undermined, producing a flap of skin, I guess a semicircular
flap of skin about 2.5 centimeters by five centimeters, a full
thickness of scalp, so that the underlying skull was exposed but
the -- there was no fracture. It did not actually go —- did not
produce fracture of the skull, but it did go down to the skull.

Q. Is 45 a wound that could have been delivered by the

hatchet, 42, or a knife?
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A, Either one. I'm sorry is -- I have lost you. 42,
is that --
Q. No, I'm referring to -- this is the Municipal Court
number.

A, Then I lost you when I used the 42,

Q. Referring 42 to our exhibit number here.
A. Okay. All right.

A, Yes.

Q. We have a lot numbers.

Now, referring you to a series of superficial-type
wounds on Jessica, starting with 15, which is really behind this
little yellow tag. It starts 15 going down the outside of the
right arm. You'll find it in that section.

A, That's right here. I have it.

All right. 15 is on the, again, the medial or
inside part of the arm, the right arm, and again, if the arm is
held to the side you can't see that part of the arm.

Q. And that was similar in appearance to a scratch or
a superficial type of an abrasion.

A. Yes, it is an abrasion, but it is associated with a
bruise or contusion so that this definitely, this injury did
occur -- well, actually there are a couple of little areas of
abrasion in this medial area.

So, let's>say, thesé injuries are abrasions or
slight bruisings occurred before deafh.

Q. 17 and 18 are grouped as two on the right arm.
A. Yes, sir, and that's -- that is on the outside of

the right arm, so they can be seen with the arm to the side.
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Q. And those are scraping-type abrasions, both of
‘them?

A, No, no. Let's see. They're -- 17 is an incision
but there is some abrasion of the skin margin associated with
that incision. The incision is fifteen millimeters in length.

18 is an incision, seventeen millimeters in length,
neither of which have any bleeding, but there is also somé
abrasions, drying of the skin margin with 17 and 18. So,vit is
a mix of injury.

Q. There is no depth that you probed on either of
those injuries though, is there?

A, No.

Q. Which would indicate that they are surface-type
injuries as opposed to any penetration deep into the flesh
itself.

A, Yes, I believe so.

Q. No. 19, directing your attention to the right
forearm, in this area.

A, Yes. Well ——

Q. I am going to get to 19. 20 is the one that is
just underneath towards the thumb.

A, This is a lacerative incision, it is a sharp-edged
injury but not quite shatp enough to be classified as a knife
cut. It is a combination of injury from a fairly sharp edge,

but not quite a knife edge and perhaps maybe a little bit of

" cutting, I simply don't know. This is one of those borderline

areas.

It is about twelve millimeters in length, thete is
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scraping or abrasion in both margins, there is some penetration.
However, No. 20 also is an incision. Let's see, 20 is further
down and towards the back. Let's see, this being 19, this being
20, there is a communication between 19 and 20 under the skin
for a depth of penetration of about 3.5 centimeters. This
appears to be an injury that occurred with no bleeding as well,
18 and 19 -~ I'm sorry, 19 and 20, I think it probably is one
injury.

Q. With no bleeding?

A, With no bleeding.

Q. 21, moving on down that same right side, is Qn
injury to the wrist.

A. Yes, it is shown as the green line on the wrist..

This is an incision, it is 2.3 centimeters in
length, and it penetrates about ten millimeters and I detected
no bleeding. I don't know whether it is before or after death.
I simply saw no evidence of bleeding with No. 21.

Q. 22 is a cut or scratch to the base of the thumb on
the right hand.

A. 22 is a scrape and abrasion about two, maybe three
millimeters in length on the back of the right hand over the
fourth, well, fourth metacarpal, fourth finger side but the back
of the hand. That one is enough of a red color, No. 22 --

We are on 22, aren't we? Yes.

Q. Yes.,

A. -- to suggest that that might have occurred before
death.

Q. But you are not sure.
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A, I am rnot sure. There is -- well, it is a mix of
abrasion. 1'm sorry, it is a mix of abrasion and incision, but
there's enough of a red color to suggest that that probably did
occur during life.

Q. However, moving forward then to tke base of the
thumb, No. 23.

A. Well, 23 is an abrasion, a scrape, and it probably
occurred after death. It is about three millirmeters by
seventeen millimeters and it is over the base of the thumb on
the right.

Q. As you rotate then the hand around on the right
side, still on the wrist, there's a little red dot.

Deces that correspond to wound 24?2

A, Yes. 24 is an incision, it is only six millimeters
in length.

Q. Millireters as opposed to centimeters?

A. Yes, it is six millimeters. It is on the right

wrist, the front or the anterior part of the right wrist.

Q. And 27 is a wound, 26 and 27 to the little finger
of the left hand.

A. Left hand. 26 is on the fifth finger, little
finger side, incision, 2.5 centimeters long. It penetrates to
the bone. It does appear to be associated with some bleeding.
Let’s see., 1'm sorry, that was 26. And 27 --

Q. Yes.

aA. -- is also on the left hand, the fifth finger or °
little finger. It is an incision, twelve millimeters long. It

appears to be associated with bleeding. It is undermined so
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that there is a flap of skin and fatty tissue, maybe four
millimeters in width. It is sliced off, if you will, a flap of
skin.

Q. If the little finger were crooked or bent, could

one blow have caused both of those injuries?

A, Yes.
Q. 29 refers to the right knee.
A, Yes. An incision 3.7 centimeters long, penetrates

eight millimeters, very slight hemorrhage.

Q. So that would have been dead or dying?

A. Yes.

Q. 30 refers to a scrape and bruise to the lower right
leg off to the side area of which, according to your notes,
appeared to be healing at the time?

A, More likely than not, yes. I can't be absolutely
certain about that, but I'm tempted to say that it is healing
because there are some bruises around it that are older, and by
the company it keeps, I think it is more likely this area of
abrasion is slightly healing. That is, it occurred before all
of the other injuries on this episode.

Q. Continuing with superficial wounds, we have one in
the left knee area which you labeled as 31.

A, Yes. Well, let's see., The incision itself is
eighteen millimeters. It does penetrate about 1.5 centimeters
and is associated with minimal hemmorhage.

Then there were some older bruises on the left leg
beyond this No. 31.
Q. That may have happened before this attack?
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A. Yes.

Q. 32 is a scrape or scratch to the neck above the
earlier longer injury.

A. Yes. 32 is a -- well, a scrape, linear abrasion,
It is about ten millimeters long, lower neck, back.

Q. 39 refers to a scrape in the right lower back.

A. 39 is a mix of things. There is an abrasion or

scrape at one end of it but there is also an incision -- well,

let's see. The abrasion part is about two centimeters in length

and, sort of a linear abrasion, and at the lower part of that

there is an incision, very shallow, three millimeters in length,

and penetrates maybe two or three millimeters into the skin,

Q. Millimeters as opposed to centimeters?

A. Millimeters as opposed to centimeters.

Q. Do you know if that was before or after death?

A, It was -- there was some bleeding with 39 before
death. |

Q. And we have one blow that we may have mentioned

before to the upper right-hand scalp area of 46, which is a

small cut?

A, Wait a minute.
Q. 46.
A, 46? Oh. Okay, just a minute. Yes.

Q. Superficial-type injury?

A, - Shallow incision, four millimeters long, two or
three millimeters in depth. Quite small an incision on the
tight side of the scalp towards the back.

Q. Directing your attention to 528, an approximately
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one foot high plastic model, with certain red and brown marks on
it.

Have you had an opportunity to examine the
placement of the marks in conjunction with wounds on the body of
the little boy portrayed in Exhibit 1752

A. Yes, I have.

Q. And the young man having been previously identified

;Highés, we have referred to him as Chris Hughes.

A, Yes, sir.

Q. As far as the wounds themselves portrayed on
Exhibit 528, do those appear to fairly approximate their
relationship one with another on that particular model?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Ncw, obviously Chris Hughes was not an adult male
the same as Doug Ryen in Exhibit 525.

Can you give us the approximate size that you
measured of Chris Hughes.

A. Yes, sir. I measured 59 inches. Weight, 86
pounds.

Q. In fact I don't think we covered this. Jessica was
what height and weight?

A. Sorry, cne moment please. Jessica was 59 inches.
Weight, 80 pounds.

Q. And Peggy Ryen?

A. Peqggy was 68 inches. Weight, 140 pounds.

Q. As far as wounds that are chop-type wounds with
ffacture, we have marked those in brown on Exhibit 528.

Before starting with the head, let's turn to the
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right wrist acea.

Directing your attention to the right wrist. Did
you find that to be ‘wound No. 12?

A, Yes.

Q. Now, that particular blow almost severed the entire
hand or decapitated the hand from the wrist; is that correct?

A, I'm sorry, one moment, please.

Yes. That was -- well, that is a chop wound, and
it went through both bones in the the forearm, both the radius
and the ulna.

Q. In that particula: position, though, or in the
wrist where it was cut on the right hand, is that like the
fingers that would have to be braced, for example, on the head,
or could you hold your wrist up in a defensive manner stiff
enough to allow for the injury or the type that we see in No.

122
a, Well, I can't really answer that. It would be

possible; it would be more likely that one could prcduce this
chop injury to the wrist unsupported than it would be to an

unsupported finger.

But with a tremendous amount of force that is
required to go through both bones, it still suggests that the

hand and wrist may have been supported.

Q. In a fashion similar to having the wrist up on the
head?

A. Yes, that would be --

Q. The blow being delivered in that position?

A, -- that would be a more likely possibility. But I
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can't say it could not occur as a free blow to a free
unsupported wrist.

Q. As we have discussed before in this right hand --

by "before®™ I mean we have uther similar type injuries -- wve
have a chop wound to the forefinger and the thumb which you

labeled 13 and 14.
A, Well, 14, we -- let me skip to that first. These

are both the right hand. Yes.

14 is almost an amputation of the right finger.

1'm sorry, right second finger. Actually the finger remained
attached only by a small portion of skin.

13 is an incised wound, an incision, fifteen
millimeters in length, hemorrhage, and it is shallow, two to
three millimeters. |

However, 13 and 14 do appear to be lined up and I
can draw -— I could put a straight edge ruler across the two
wounds, 13 and 14, and this would suggest that one blow could
have caused both of those. I can't say that it did, but it
could have,

Q. You noted 13 and 14 as being chop wounds?

A. Well, 14 is the chop, 13 is an incision. And if in
fact 13 was caused by the same blow as 14, then it is a cutting,
an incised wound as the hatchet comes through on the
follow-through one way or the other. I suppose it could be
classified then as a chop wound, but technically it is not a
chop. |

Q. And that again would be consistent with the right

hand being placed up to the right side of the head in some
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protective effort and --

A, Yes.

Q. That being the brace for the finger almost being
amputated?

A. Yes, that could certainly happen that way.

Q. Continuing with a series of chop wounds with
fractures.,

And here it really isn't too necessary to identify,
I don't think, starting with 16 down through 17, 18, 19, 20, as
far as that series of chops that occurs down the side of the
head.
- A, Yes.

Q. 21 also would be included in that series. 16
through 21.

Are all of those blows chops with fractures?

A. Yes.

Q. And are all of them in the general acea that we
have portrayed with the brown pen on 5282

A, Yes., One can come a step further, not only in the
same area but the same direction. The orientation of the lines
is approximately the actual orientation of the injuries., That
is, they are parallel to each other, horizontal, if you will.
They did extend from the front to the back.

Q. All of these particular wounds, according to your
findings in‘regatd to bleeding, would indicate that Chris Hughes
was dying or dead at the time they were delivered.

A, Yes. Little, if any, bleeding.

Q. All of those wounds could have been delivered in
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the position of the body as portrayed in 175.

A. Yes, they could have.

Q. There is one dist@nction though which occurs
towards the back of the head more almost a little bit to the
left of the midline in the position that I'm indicating right
there that would correspond to Wound 23,

A, Yes. Well -- well, I'm not -- I think you said
some exceptions.

Q. Well, we're about to get to the exception.

A. Oh, all right,.

Q. But that is Wound 23,
A. Yes,.that is wWwound 23.
Q. Now the difference between 23 and 16 through 21 is

that you found some bleeding in connection with Wound 23; is
that correct?

A. Huh-uh. 1 indiéated I thought possibly post-mortem
here, indicating little bleeding. My report doesn't indicate
that. I think my recollection from the photos is that minimal
bleeding.

Q. I quess what I am asking you is, was there more
bleeding in connection with 23 than there was with the other
wounds?

A, I can't say that, no. I simply don't know.

Q. No. 23 is a wound that is, as far as the position
of the body in 175, would be a little bit difficult if not
inpossible to reach.

A. Yes. It is on the left side, and the left side is

down in this position in the position as shown there.
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Q. In addition to the chop wounds that we have just
discussed to the side and the back of the head, Chris Hughes had

a chop wound or an incision to the front of his face that cut

from the upper nose, along the nose into the nasal passage and

across the right cheek that you identified as Wound No. 1.

A, Yes.

Q. Was there fracturing of the facial bones connected

with that wound?

A, Yes.

Q. So that that would be consistent with a chop wound?

A, Yes.,

Q. Even though we've marked it as an incision or chop
wound?

A, Yes. There is cutting, incision, chopping into the

bone. Whether or not this however is caused by a hatchet or a
heavy knife, I simply can't -- slicing motion, I simply don't
know.

Q. Was there some abrasion associated with the edges
of that particular wound?

A, Yes. That would tend to point towards a chop wound
rather than a knife, but I simply don't have enough information
to be able to make that absolute statement one way or the other
on that one.

Q. - Was there bleeding?

A, Yes.
Q. Which would mean it was before death?
A. ’ Yes.

MR. KOTTMEIER: Your Honor, this would be a convenient
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place.
THE COURT: Thank yocu. Okay, we will take the evening

adjournment until 9:30 tomorrow. Remember the admonition at all

times, please.
You will have to return, Doctor.

~--00000~~

(Adjournment)
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